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tem 1. Business
Company Overview

CSG Systems International, Inc. (the “Company”, G Sor forms of the pronoun “we”) was formed in @ber 1994 and is based in
Denver, Colorado. We are a global leader in nextegation billing and customer care solutions fa ¢hable television, direct broadcast
satellite, advanced IP services, next-generatiobilmcand fixed wireline markets. Our combinatidrsolutions, delivered in both outsourced
and licensed formats, enables our clients to dehigh quality customer service, improve operatiafficiencies and rapidly bring new
revenue-generating products to market. We servel@mnts through two operating segments: the BraadlServices Division (the “Broadband
Division”) and the Global Software Services Divisifthe “GSS Division”).

Our principal executive offices are located at 7888t Belleview, Suite 1000, Englewood, Coloradd18Q and the telephone number at
that address is (303) 796-2850. Our Common Stoliktéexl on the Nasdag National Market under thelmytiCSGS”. We are a S&P Midcap
400 company.

General Development of Business

We were formed in October 1994 and acquired ahefoutstanding stock of CSG Systems, Inc. (foryn€dble Services Group, Inc
from First Data Corporation (“FDC”) in November ¥@he “CSG Acquisition”). CSG Systems, Inc. haéma subsidiary or division of FDC
from 1982 until the CSG Acquisition.

In September 1997, we entered into a 15-year eixeleontract (the “Master Subscriber Agreementffviliele-Communications, Inc.
(“TCI") to consolidate all TCI customers onto owstomer care and billing system. At the same tineeacquired a non-operational billing
system from TCI for $105 million. In 1999 and 2008spectively, AT&T completed its mergers with T&ld MediaOne Group, Inc.
(“MediaOne”), and consolidated the merged operatioto AT&T Broadband (“AT&T”), and we continued service the merged operations
under the terms of the Master Subscriber Agreen@mtNovember 18, 2002, Comcast Corporation (“Comficaempleted its merger with
AT&T, and now under Comcast’s ownership, we corgitm service the former AT&T operations under #rens of the Master Subscriber
Agreement, as modified by the arbitration rulingntiened below. We generate a significant percentdigair total revenues under the Master
Subscriber Agreement, and have been involved ilmwategal proceedings with Comcast since 2002sisting principally of arbitration
proceedings related to the Master Subscriber AgeaenThese legal proceedings reached their comelusiOctober 2003 when the arbitrator
issued his final ruling. See “Management’s Disocmssind Analysis of Financial Condition and Resaft®perations” (“MD&A”") for
additional discussion of the Master Subscriber &grent, the resolution of the arbitration proceesliggd our business relationship with
Comcast.

On February 28, 2002, we closed on our agreemeatduire the billing and customer care assets oéhtTechnologies (“Lucent”).
Lucent’s billing and customer care business coeaiptimarily of: (i) software products and relataxhsulting services acquired by Lucent
when it purchased Kenan Systems Corporation ingepr1999; (ii) BILLDATS Data Manager mediation seére; and (iii) elements of
Lucent’s client support, product support, and sales marketing organizations (collectively, the fi&a Business”). See MD&A and Note 3 to
our Consolidated Financial Statements for additidistussion of the Kenan Business and furtherildet&the acquisition.

Industry Overview

Customer care and billing systems coordinate mapgets of the customerinteraction with a telecommunications serviceviter, from
the initial set-up and activation of customer acgeuto support of various service activities, thgio the monitoring of customer invoicing and
accounts receivable management. These systemsdrBgommunications service providers to managdiftrcycle of their customer
interactions. The telecommunications industry edgmeed one of the most difficult periods in itsthry in
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2002, which unfortunately continued through 2008uMting debt combined with limited access to capésulted in reduced capital
expenditures by telecommunication service providi@rshe third year in a row. As result, telecomnuation service providers focused their
attention on reducing their operational costs, meprg margins and rolling out new revenue genegasiervices with little investment in new
solutions. This resulted in a decrease in spenalingusiness support and operational support systémesd at helping telecommunication
service providers manage the increasing complexity cost of managing the interaction between conications companies and their
customers.

As telecommunication service providers continuednsolidate and begin rolling out new productsetplyenerate new revenue streams,
they will need additional functionality and flexiy within their customer care and billing solut& This need continues to drive additional
revenues into the customer care and billing ingusiibeit at a smaller rate than previous years.

Business Strategy
Our business strategy is designed to achieve revend profit growth. The key elements of the sgyataclude:

Expand Core Processing BusinessWe will continue to leverage our investmend axpertise in high-volume transaction processing t
expand our processing business. The Broadbandi@igsprocessing business provides highly predietatecurring revenues through multi-
year contracts with a client base that includediteatelecommunications service providers. We iaseel the number of customers proce:
on our systems from 18 million as of December 3B5lto 44 million as of December 31, 2003. We pte\a full suite of customer care and
billing products and services that combine theakglity and high volume transaction processing bdjtees of a mainframe platform with the
flexibility of client/server architecture.

In addition, in June 2003, we introduced anothertiNdmerican service bureau offering aimed at nied-wireline providers, using the
ICMS billing platform.

Increase Market Share in Telecommunications Vdgica Through our GSS Division, we will pursue nevat®nships with
telecommunications service providers in the wirgliwireless, IP and worldwide broadband marketk aitr CSG Kenan FX product suite.
While the telecommunications market continues tinteedepressed state, telecommunication servimadars continue to look for solutions to
specific problems like content settlement, convenges-paid/post-paid offerings and more. We wilhiioue to look for ways to establish
relationships with those providers we have not dangness with before, or with divisions of largeyiders in which our products have not
traditionally had meaningful visibility.

Enter New Markets As communications markets converge, our prtedaicd services can facilitate efficient entry inew markets by
existing or new clients. We also intend to leveragetransaction processing engines into new \@gtithat require scaleable technology that is
flexible and open, much like we have done withgéal, a European utility, Beijing Telecom, a divs@f China Telecom, and eBay, the wosld’
online marketplace.

Enhance Growth Through Focused AcquisitionsdVe follow a disciplined approach in acquiregsets and businesses which provide the
technology and technical personnel to expeditgpooduct development efforts, provide complemenganducts or services, or provide access
to new markets or clients.

Continue Technology Leadership We believe that our technology in customee@ard billing solutions gives telecommunications
service providers a competitive advantage. Ouricointg investment in research and development (“Ré&i®designed to position us to meet
the growing and evolving needs of existing and piddé clients. Since 1995, we have invested ové&0fillion into R&D.
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Financial Information about Segments

After the closing of the Kenan Business acquisitioRebruary 2002, we organized our business arbwadperating segments: t
Broadband Division and the GSS Division. Costs rgadaat the corporate level, which are not attribletéo either of the operating segments,
are reflected in a Corporate overhead segment.riRegeand contribution margin attributable to repgrsegments and financial information
about geographical areas can be found in Noteohit@Consolidated Financial Statements and are pucated herein by reference.

Narrative Description of Business
The Broadband Divisio

General Description The Broadband Division consists principallyoof historical processing operations and relatétiveoe products
Products and services from the Broadband Divisiakerup approximately two-thirds of our companyttoevenues. The Broadband
Division generates a substantial percentage oéitsnues by providing customer care and billingises to the United States (“U.S.”) and
Canadian cable television and satellite industiié& Broadband Division’s full suite of processisgftware, and professional services allows
clients to automate their customer care and billingctions. These functions include set-up andratibn of customer accounts, sales support,
order processing, invoice calculation, productiod eailing of invoices, management reporting, etedt presentment and payment of
invoices, and deployment and management of thattdiéeld technicians.

Total domestic customer accounts (i.e., clientbssubers) on the Broadband Divisierprocessing system as of December 31, 2003
44.1 million, compared to 45.8 million as of DecaanB1, 2002, a decrease of 3.6%. The decreasgriandy due to Comcast customer
accounts being measured differently beginning Qatdh 2003, as a result of the Comcast arbitratiting. On an annualized basis, the
Broadband Division received $7.58 in processingnere per account for 2003, compared to $8.43 fOR 2@ith the decrease primarily related
to the new Comcast pricing resulting from the aabivn ruling. See the “Results of Operations —@fiag Segments” section in MD&A for
further explanation of these matters.

Clients. The Broadband Division works with the leadaalple and satellite providers located in the Urfe. @anada. A partial list of
those providers is included below:

Adelphia Communications Corporati Echostar Communications Corporati
Charter Communicatior Mediacom Communicatior
Comcast Corporation (includes former AT&T Broadbkg Time Warner Inc

Cox Communication

During the years ended December 31, 2003, 20022@0d: (i) revenues from Comcast represented appeigly 26%, 27%, and 54%,
respectively, of total revenues; and (ii) reveninesn Echostar Communications Corporation (“Echd$tapresented approximately 15%,
11%, and 10%, respectively, of total revenues.Zo@13, these percentages were calculated usingtdenet revenue base of $439.7 million
(which includes the $105.7 million of the Comcattitaation charge attributed to periods prior téyJl 2003). The calculation of these
percentages for Comcast and Echostar for 2003 asiegenue base of $545.3 million (which excludes$105.7 million of the Comcast
arbitration charge attributed to periods priorutyd., 2003) would result in 21% and 12%, respetyivWe believe these percentages are more
reflective of our dependence on these key custofoetsistorical periods, and for future periods eTdecrease in the percentage between 2003
and 2002 for Comcast relates primarily to the imgd¢he new pricing as dictated by the arbitratioling. The decrease in the percentage
between 2002 and 2001 for Comcast relates prim@rilydecrease in the amount of software and siofieal services purchased by Comca
2002 when compared to 2001, as well as an incieasg total revenues between periods from all otfients, including revenue related to
acquisition of the Kenan Business. See MD&A fotttier discussion of our contract with Comcast amdcibmponents of
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and related accounting for the arbitration chaagel the expected impact of the arbitration rulingoar future results of operations.

Products and Services. The Broadband Division’s primary product offegs include its core service bureau processingyato£SG
CCS/BP (“CCS"), and related services and softwaoelycts. A background in high-volume transactioocpssing, complemented with world-
class applications software, allows the Broadbaivis®n to offer one of the most comprehensive;iptegrated products and services
solutions to the telecommunications market, servidgo, data and voice providers and handling naspects of the customer lifecycle. We
believe this prantegrated approach has allowed telecommunicagengce providers to get to market quickly as wvaslreduce the total cost
ownership for their solution.

Over the past seven years, we have introduced2fvproducts and services including workforce automnaand electronic bill
presentment and payment. The Broadband Divisi@m$es its software products (e.g., ACSR, Workf@iqgeress, etc.) and provides its
professional services principally to its existiragb of processing clients to enhance the coreifuradity of our service bureau processing
application, increase the efficiency and produttiaf the clients’ operations, and allow clientseffectively roll out new products and services
to new and existing markets, such as high-speed|8&, IP markets, and residential telephony. C@8gssing services and related software
products are expected to provide a large percembger, and substantially all of the BroadbandiBian's, total revenues in the foreseeable
future.

CCS Architectural Upgrade. The Broadband Division is currently involvedarsignificant architectural upgrade to CCS. This
enhancement to CCS will allow us to further supgortvergent broadband services including crosseeehundling, convergent order entry
and advanced service provisioning capabilitiess Huivanced convergent solution for broadband seprioviders will facilitate our clients’
offering of combinations of video, voice and daavices. In addition, our product strategy alsdudes leveraging our Data Mediation solu
and our plaNet Consulting’s broadband telephongtgra to provide both front-office and back-offisepport for broadband operators offering
voice services, including the rollout of Voice oVer(VolP). This project was initiated in 2002. hg 2003, we invested a significant amount
of man hours on this project. We expect to migoatefirst client to this platform in 2004. Our aawsd convergent solution is expected to be
the Broadband Divisios’ next generation product offering. There are aeitdnerent risks associated with significant tembgical innovations
Such risks are described in this report in ExH8i01, “Safe Harbor for Forward-Looking Statemduitsler the Private Securities Litigation
Reform Act of 1995—Certain Cautionary Statements$ Risk Factors” (“Risk Factors”).

FDC Data Processing Facility. The Broadband Division outsources to FDC tha gaocessing and related computer services ratjuire
for operation of our processing services. The C@pnetary software is run in FDC'’s facility to @i the necessary mainframe computer
capacity and other computer support services withraking the substantial capital and infrastructowestments that would be necessary for
us to provide these services internally. The BreadhDivision’s clients are connected to the FDGlifgchrough a combination of private and
commercially-provided networks. Our service agreetméth FDC expires June 30, 2008, and is cancelably for cause, as defined in the
agreement. We believe we could obtain mainframa piedcessing services from alternative sourcegdéssary. We have a business contil
plan as part of our agreement with FDC should D€ Eata processing center suffer an extended kassingerruption or outage. This plan is
tested on an annual basis.

Client and Product Support. The Broadband Division’s clients typically redp us for ongoing support and training needsirgjab the
Broadband Division’s products. The Broadband Danshas a multi-level support environment for iierds. The Broadband Division has
strategic business units (“SBUs”) to support theitess, operational and functional requirementsach client. These dedicated account
management teams help clients resolve strategibasidess issues and are supported by the Broaddigistbn's Product Support Center,
which operates 24 hours a day, seven days a wdiekt<call an 800 number and through an automated
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voice response unit, direct their calls to the #meproduct support personnel where their questiare answered. The Broadband Division t
full-time training staff and conducts ongoing tiag sessions both in the field and at its trairfexgjlities located in Denver, Colorado and
Omaha, Nebraska.

Sales and Marketing. The Broadband Division has organized its seffegts within its SBUs, with senior level accoumanagers who
are responsible for new revenues and renewal efiegicontracts within an account. The SBUs ar¢sttpd by sales support personnel who
are experienced in the various products and sexviwd the Broadband Division provides.

Competition. The market for customer care and billing systémthe converging telecommunications industsasighly competitive.
The Broadband Division competes with both indepaehdetsourced providers and in-house developecsistbmer management systems. We
believe that the Broadband Division’s most sig@ifitcompetitors are DST Systems, Inc., Convergyp@ation, and in-house systems. Some
of the Broadband Division’s actual and potentiahpetitors have substantially greater financial,keting and technological resources than us.

We believe that the principal competitive factarsifs Broadband Division include the functionalisgalability, flexibility and
architecture of the CCS system, the breadth anthddpre-integrated product solutions, productligyeclient service and support, quality of
R&D efforts, and price.

The GSS Division

General Description The GSS Division consists of our st-alone software products and related services, whidbdes the Kena
Business. Products and services from the GSS Divisiake up approximately one-third of our compamgtal revenues. The majority of the
Kenan Business revenues are generated from iniemahbperations. For 2003, approximately 78% ef @SS Division’s revenues were
generated outside the U.S., as compared to 7920fi?. We expect a similar percentage of the GS&Divs revenues will be generated
outside the U.S. in the foreseeable future. Thexeartain inherent risks associated with operatiteynationally. Such risks are described in
this report in our Risk Factors in Exhibit 99.01.

The GSS Division is a global provider of convergeifitng and customer care software and servicasehables telecommunications
service providers to bill their customers for eixigtand next-generation services, including mobilegrnet, wireline, cable television, and
satellite. The GSS Division’revenues consist of software license and maintenfees, and various professional and consuléngces relate
to its software products (principally, implementatiservices).

Clients. The GSS Division provides its products andises to the leading providers in the global tefaowunications industry. Some
of the Division’s clients include Bharti Airtel, B&., British Telecom, eBay, Embratel, France TelectobileOne, Singapore Telecom, Tata,
Telecom lItalia, TOT, and Vodafone.

Products and Services. We combined the best of our traditional sofevemlutions with the best of the Kenan Businessvsoé
solutions and introduced Kenan FX in the late d&2003. Kenan FX is the result of an 18-month Rgiject that resulted in a business
framework consisting of prexegrated products and modules that make seraicaitable via a common middle layer. Since itsddtrction, si
customers have signed up for the new solution.cAigin this did not result in material revenues i02XKenan FX is expected to be the GSS
Division’s primary product offering in future peds.

The GSS Division’s primary product offerings incéuthe Kenan FX software product suite (a core cagerg billing platform, and its
key components and modules, which include, amoherst billing mediation threshold servers, real-time rating engines, regesattlement
solutions and pre-paid/post-paid convergent bilBotutions, aimed at helping telecommunication iserproviders manage their operations
more effectively and efficiently), and professiosalvices. The GSS Division’s professional servaggnizations provide a variety of
consulting services, such as product implementatiahcustomization, business consulting, projectagament and training services.
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Client and Product Support. The GSS Division has regional account managéeteams as well as a mulével support environment f
its clients. Primary client support for the GSS iBiien is provided in three regions: the Americ&o¢th, South and Central America),
Europe/Middle East/Africa (‘EMEA”), and Asia Padf(*APAC").

Sales and Marketing. The GSS Division’s primary method of distrilmutiis through direct sales by personnel assign#uete three
regions. The principal sales offices for each regite as follows: the Americas (Denver and MiamBIMEA (London), and APAC (Singapore).
In addition to the principal sales offices in eaebion, the GSS Division has various sales offioeated throughout the world.

Competition. The market for customer care management systethe global telecommunications industries ishhigcompetitive. The
GSS Division competes with other providers of caso management systems, and in-house developetstimer management systems. We
believe that the GSS Division’s most significaningeetitors are Amdocs Corporation, ADC, ConvergyspOmation, Portal Software, Inc.,
SchlumbergerSema, and in-house systems. Some GfSBeDivision’s actual and potential competitorgehaubstantially greater financial,
marketing and technological resources than our eowyp

We believe that the principal competitive factasthe GSS Division include the functionality, sdality, flexibility and architecture of
the software products, the breadth and depth einpegirated product solutions, product quality,fpssional services capabilities, client service
and support, quality of R&D efforts, and price.

Proprietary Rights and Licenses

We rely on a combination of trade secret and cgbyriaws, nondisclosure agreements, and otheraxctntil and technical measures to
protect our proprietary rights in our products. ¥so hold a limited number of patents on some ofn@wer products, and do not rely upon
patents as a primary means of protecting our rightsir intellectual property. There can be no easce that these provisions will be adequate
to protect our proprietary rights. Although we bgh that our intellectual property rights do ndtiirge upon the proprietary rights of third
parties, there can be no assurance that thirdegasfill not assert infringement claims against usw clients.

Historically, the vast majority of our revenue ltasne from domestic sources, limiting the need teettgp a strong international
intellectual property protection program. With tkenan Business acquisition, we have clients usurgpooducts in many countries. As a res
we need to continually assess whether there isiakyo our intellectual property rights in manyuexries throughout the world. Should these
risks be improperly assessed or if for any reasoulsl our right to develop, produce and distribatie products anywhere in the world be
successfully challenged or be significantly cuedjlit could have a material impact on our finahc@adition and results of operations.

Research and Development

Our product development efforts are focused onldeiugy new products and improving existing produite believe that the time
development of new applications and enhancemeetssisntial to maintaining our competitive positiothe marketplace. Our development
efforts for 2003 were focused primarily on:

» various R&D projects for the GSS Division, includithe Kenan FX business framework, which was intoed during late 200:
which includes enhancements to the existing vessiadrthe Kenan Business product suite, as weleasmodules; an

« enhancements to CCS and related Broadband Divssifiware products to increase the functionalitied features of the products,
consisting principally of the architectural change€CS discussed aboy

Our total R&D expense was $62.9 million, $73.7 mill and $52.2 million for the years ended Decen®ier2003, 2002, and 2001, or
14.3%, 12.1%, and 10.9% of total revenues, respegtiThe decrease in R&D expenditures between 20@32002 is due primarily to: (i) the
discontinuation of the development of our CSG Next@roduct during the third quarter of 2002 assalteof the Kenan Business acquisition;
(i) a reduction of R&D costs in other areas sittoe second quarter of 2002, to include a reduafdR&D personnel

8



Table of Contents

as a result of several cost reduction initiativvee(MD&A and Note 8 to our Consolidated Financtak&@nents for additional discussion of our
cost reduction initiatives); and (iii) the comptetiof the development cycle for certain projectac& 1995, we have invested an average of 10-
12% of our total revenues into R&D. We expect tergpa similar percentage of our total revenues &b R the future.

Employees

As of December 31, 2003, we had a total of 2,47fleyees, a decrease of 281 from December 31, Z0G2decrease between these
points in time relates primarily to the restruatigriand cost reduction initiatives further discusiseblD&A. Our success is dependent upon our
ability to attract and retain qualified employelsne of our U.S.-based employees are subject tdlective bargaining agreement. Certain
non-U.S.-based employees are covered under natiorcaimpany-specific collective bargaining agreetsieWe believe that our relations with
our employees are good.

Available Information

Our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports-orm 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and aiments to those reports filed or
furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) ofSkeurities Exchange Act are available free of gham our website at www.csgsystems.com.
Additionally, these reports are available at th&€3HPublic Reference Room at 450 Fifth Street, NWashington, D.C. 20549 or on the
SEC’s website at www.sec.gov. Information on theragion of the Public Reference Room can be ohddayecalling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-
0330.

Item 2. Properties

As of December 31, 2003, we were operating front@pmately 40 leased sites around the world, repriisg approximately 771,000
square feet under lease. This amount excludes xppately 219,000 square feet of leased space #wmbben abandoned by us.

North American Region (“NAR”).

We lease office facilities, totaling approximaté&@0,000 square feet in the following metropolitagas within the U.S.: Cambridge,
Massachusetts; Columbus, Ohio; Dallas, Texas; De@aorado; Miami, Florida; New Providence, Newsdy; Omaha, Nebraska; and
Washington, DC. We utilize these office facilitipgmarily for: (i) corporate headquarters; (ii)egtit services, training and product support; (iii)
sales and marketing activities; (iv) systems amgyamming activities; (v) R&D activities; (vi) pre$sional services staff; and (vii) general and
administrative functions. The leases for theseceffacilities expire in the years 2004 through 201tk office facilities in Denver and Omaha
are used by both the Broadband Division and the BiSiSion, as well as for corporate functions, witie remaining office facilities used
primarily by the GSS Division.

We lease statement production and mailing faddljtietaling approximately 176,000 square feet ine@a Nebraska and Wakulla
County, Florida. The leases for these facilitiegiexin the years 2011 through 2013. These fazdlitire used by the Broadband Division.

We lease office space totaling approximately 9, 8@@are feet in Toronto, Canada for our Canadian BigiSion operations. The lease
for this facility expires in 2006.

Central and Latin America Region (“CALA").

We lease office facilities, totaling approximatélp00 square feet in Buenos Aires, Argentina; Ridaneiro and Campinas, Brazil; and
Mexico City, Mexico. We utilize these office fatiés primarily for: (i) client services, trainingné product support; (ii) sales and marketing
activities; (iii) professional services staff; afid) general and administrative functions. Thesd @/ffice facilities support the GSS Division.
The leases for these office facilities expire ia yfears 2004 through 2006.
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Europe, Middle East and Africa Region (“EMEA”).

We lease office facilities, totaling approximatély,000 square feet in Brussels, Belgium; Parisay¢é&aMunich, Germany; Rome, Ita
Madrid, Spain; London and Slough, United Kingdone Wilize these office facilities primarily for:)(client services, training and product
support; (i) sales and marketing activities; (ifpfessional services staff; (iv) R&D activities)d (v) general and administrative functions.
These EMEA office facilities support the GSS Diwisi The leases for these office facilities expir¢hie years 2004 through 2015.

Asia/Pacific Region (“APAC").

We lease office facilities, totaling approximat@y,000 square feet in Sydney, Australia; Beijinbin@; New Delhi, India; Tokyo, Japa
Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia; and Singapore. We utilizese office facilities primarily for: (i) client sdces, training and product support; (ii) si
and marketing activities; (iii) professional seescstaff; and (iv) general and administrative fiord. These APAC office facilities support the
GSS Division. The leases for these office fac#itixpire in the years 2004 through 2006.

We believe that our facilities are adequate foramurent needs and that additional suitable spalt®evavailable as required. We also
believe that we will be able to extend the leasethay terminate at comparable rates. See Note @drtConsolidated Financial Statements for
information regarding our obligations under ourilfgcleases.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

In October 2003, we received a final ruling in adbitration with our largest client, Comcast. Dissions of this matter can be found in
“MD&A-Comcast and AT&T Broadband Business Relatioips included in this document and is incorporaltedein by reference.

From time-to-time, we are involved in litigatiorlagng to claims arising out of our operationshie normal course of business. In the
opinion of our management, we are not presentlgrgyio any material pending or threatened legat@edings.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders
None.

Executive Officers of the Registrant

As of December 31, 2003, our executive officersendeal C. Hansen (Chairman of the Board and Chietttive Officer), John F
Pogge (President and Chief Operating Officer), Fetd&alan (Executive Vice President and Chief Ririal Officer), Edward C. Nafus
(President of our Broadband Services Division), @filliam E. Fisher (President of our Global Softe&ervices Division). We have
employment agreements with each of the executifieen$. Information concerning such executive @ficappears in the following paragraj

Mr. Hansen, 63, is a co-founder of our company and has beeiChairman of the Board and Chief Executive Offaned a director of
our company since our inception in 1994. From 1@8tll co-founding our company, Mr. Hansen served asnsultant to several software
companies, including FDC. From 1989 to 1991, Mmstmn was a General Partner in Hansen, Haddix asdchdes, a partnership that
provided advisory management services to supphiessftware products and services. From 1983 t®1B8. Hansen was Chairman and C
Executive Officer of US WEST Applied Communicatiohsc. (“ACI”) and President of US WEST Data Syste@roup. Mr. Hansen earned a
BS in electrical engineering from the Universityldbraska.
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Mr. Pogge, 50, joined us in 1995 and has served as Presi@éigf Operating Officer and a director of our ggany since September
1997. Prior to that time, Mr. Pogge was our Exe®u¥ice President and General Manager, Businests Ufiom 1992 to 1995, Mr. Pogge was
Vice President, Corporate Development for US WHSE, From 1987 to 1991, Mr. Pogge served as ViesiBent and General Counsel of
ACI. Mr. Pogge holds a J.D. degree from CreightaiMarsity School of Law and a BBA in Finance frone tUniversity of Houston.

Mr. Kalan, 44, joined us in January 1997 and was named Eimeicial Officer in October 2000. Prior to joigithe company, he was
Chief Financial Officer at Bank One, Chicago, aedaltso held various other financial managementtiposi with Bank One in Texas and
lllinois from 1985 through 1996. Mr. Kalan hold84 degree in Business Administration from the Umsiy of Texas at Arlington.

Mr. Nafus, 63, joined us in August 1998 as Executive VicesRfent and was named the President of our BroadBarvices Division in
January 2002. From 1992 to 1998, Mr. Nafus sergdfix@cutive Vice President of FDC and Presidemtiight Data International. Mr. Nafus
was President of First Data Resources from 198982 and Executive Vice President of First DataoReses from 1984 to 1989. During his
14-year tenure at First Data, Mr. Nafus held vasiother management positions. Mr. Nafus holds @&gee in Mathematics from Jamestown
College.

Mr. Fisher, 57, joined us in September 2001 as Executive Piesident and was named the President of our GBufware Services
Division in January 2002. Prior to joining our coamy, Mr. Fisher was Chairman of plaNet Consultenge-business solutions and services
group that we acquired in 2001. Prior to his asgam with plaNet, Mr. Fisher served as Chairmag @hief Executive Officer of Transaction
Systems Architects, Inc. (“TSAI"), and served 14sgein numerous roles including President and Gbkefcutive Officer of ACI, which was
acquired by TSAI. Mr. Fisher also served as PresidéFirst Data Resources’ government servicesidin. Mr. Fisher holds a Bachelor’s
degree in Management from Indiana State Univeesity a MBA from the University of Nebraska.

Board of Directors of the Registrant

Dr. George F. Haddix
Chairman and CEO
PKWARE, Inc.

Dr. George F. Haddix is Chairman and Chief Exeaui®fficer of PKWARE, Inc., a computer software canp. In 1994, Dr. Haddix
became President and co-founder of our compangviiollg the acquisition of Cable Services Group, frmm FDC. He was instrumental in
taking our company public in 1996. Prior to joiniogr company, Dr. Haddix served as President anef &xecutive Officer of U S WEST
Network Systems, Inc. Previously, Dr. Haddix seraedChairman and President of ACI. Prior to thatwMas President and General Manage
HDR Systems, Inc. Dr. Haddix has also served oriabelties of lowa State University, Creighton Uerisity and the University of Nebraska at
Omabha, as Professor of computer science and maticsniar. Haddix also serves on the board of InféBic. Dr. Haddix earned a PhD frc
lowa State University, an MA from Creighton Univigysand a BA from the University of Nebraska at Graaall in mathematics.

Neal C. Hanser
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
CSG Systems International, Inc.

Neal Hanse's biographical discussion is includec Executive Officers of the Registr” shown directly above
Janice Obuchowski

President
Freedom Technologies, Inc.

Janice Obuchowski is President of Freedom Techiesdoénc., a public policy and corporate strateggsulting firm specializing in
telecommunications. In 2003, Ms. Obuchowski wasoagpd by President
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George W. Bush to serve as Ambassador and He&a &f.S. Delegation to the World Radio Conferente I$as also served as Assistant
Secretary for Communications and Information atDiepartment of Commerce, leading the National Tet@aunications and Information
Administration (“NTIA”). Prior to joining NTIA, Ms.Obuchowski had responsibilities for all internatibaffairs for NYNEX (now Verizon).
Ms. Obuchowski also held several positions at theelFal Communications Commission (FCC), includiegiS8r Advisor to the Chairman.
Ms. Obuchowski also serves on the boards of OrBicégnces Corp. and Stratos Global. Ms. Obuchoesatied a JD from the Georgetown
University Law Center and a BA from Wellesley Cgke

John P. “Jack” Pogge
President and Chief Operating Office
CSG Systems International, Inc.

Jack Pogg's biographical discussion is includec”Executive Officers of the Registr” shown directly above

Bernard W. Reznicel
President and CEC
Premier Enterprises, Inc

Bernard W. Reznicek currently provides consultiagrees with The Premier Group. Mr. Reznicek preslyg was National Director of
Special Markets for Central States Indemnity, ekBleire Hathaway Company. He has forty years of egpee in the electric utility industry
having served as Chairman, President, and Chieflixe Officer of Boston Edison Company, and Presicand Chief Executive Officer of
Omabha Public Power in Omaha, Nebraska. Mr. Rezratskserves on the boards of Pulte Homes, Ind.T€€hnologies, Inc., and Central
States Indemnity. State Street Corporation, MidAoaer Energy, and Guarantee Life Insurance Comparg former board assignments. Mr.
Reznicek earned an MBA from the University of Nediaaat Lincoln and a BS degree in business admatizsh with a major in accounting
from Creighton University in Omaha, Nebraska.

Frank V. Sica
Senior Advisot
Soros Funds Managemer

Frank V. Sica is Senior Advisor to Soros Funds Mgmaent. Prior to this, Mr. Sica was Managing PartoeSoros Private Func
Management and helped to oversee the Quantum Reeltyers operations. Before joining Soros, MraSias Managing Director and Cohead
of Merchant Banking at Morgan Stanley Dean Witte€& He also served as an Officer in the U.S. AircE. Mr. Sica is also a director of
Emmis Broadcasting, Jet Blue Airways, Kohl’'s Comgd@n, and Onvoy, Inc. Mr. Sica is also a truste@/esleyan University and the Village
of Bronxville, New York. Altrio, Inc. was a formdyoard assignment. Mr. Sica earned an MBA from the#A Tuck School of Business at
Dartmouth College and a BA in biology from Wesleydmiversity in Middletown, Connecticut.

Donald V. Smith
Senior Managing Directot
Houlihan Lokey Howard & Zukin

Donald V. Smith is Senior Managing Director in aof the New York office of Houlihan Lokey Howag&dZukin, an internationa
investment bank, and serves on its board of direcRrior to this, Mr. Smith headed valuation aedrganization services for Morgan Stanley
& Co, where he was responsible for fairness, vaunatitigation, restructuring, and acquisition iggsnents. Mr. Smith has been involved in
investment banking, business valuation and findme&tructuring for the past thirty years. He adsoved over five years as a Naval Officer.
Smith earned an MBA from the University of Penngylia’s Wharton School and a BS from the U.S. Néeademy.
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PART Il

Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity and Relatedo8kholder Matters

Our Common Stock is listed on the Nasdaq Nationalkdt (“NASDAQ/NMS”) under the symbol “CSGS”. Thellbwing table sets
forth, for the fiscal quarters indicated, the hagtd low sale prices of our Common Stock as repdiyeASDAQ/NMS.

High Low
2003
First quarte! $15.3¢  $ 8.67
Second quarte 14.2¢ 8.4(
Third quartel 16.8¢ 12.9¢
Fourth quarte 15.6: 8.9t
High Low
2002
First quarte $41.6€  $27.4(
Second quarte 30.11 17.71
Third quartel 19.57 9.0¢
Fourth quarte 17.4¢ 8.71

On March 10, 2004, the last sale price of our Comi&tock as reported by NASDAQ/NMS was $14.18 pareshOn January 31, 2004,
the number of holders of record of Common Stock 286
Dividends

We have not declared or paid cash dividends orConnmon Stock since our incorporation. We did, haavegomplete a tw-for-one
stock split, effected in the form of a stock divide in March 1999. We intend to retain any earniognance the growth and development of
our business, and at this time, we do not plaratogash dividends in the foreseeable future. Cegitagreement contains certain restrictions
on the payment of dividends. See Note 7 to our Glateted Financial Statements for additional distws of our credit agreement.

Equity Compensation Plan Information
The following table summarizes certain informataout our equity compensation plans as of Dece®be?2003:

Weighted-
average
Number of exercise Number of
securities to be price of securities
issued upon exercis outstanding remaining
. ) available for
of outstanding options, future issuance
options, warrants, warrants,
Plan Category and rights and rights
Equity compensation plans approved by securitydrgl 1,778,07: $ 18.6¢ 5,496,90
Equity compensation plan not approved by secudtgddrs 1,251,05 15.5¢ 385,59¢
Total 3,029,12 $ 17.3: 5,882,501
I I L]

Of the total number of securities remaining avaédbr future issuance, 5,806,571 shares can ket fosestock option grants, as well as
the other types of stock-based awards as spedaifiget individual plans, with the remaining 75,93%res to be used for our employee stock
purchase plan. See Note 13 to our ConsolidatechEiabStatements for additional discussion of ayrisy compensation plans.
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Iltem 6. Selected Financial Data

The following selected financial data have beerveerfrom our audited financial statements. Thesteld financial data presented bel
should be read in conjunction with, and is quatifiey reference to MD&A and our Consolidated Finah&tatements. The information belo

not necessarily indicative of the results of futaperations.

Statements of Operations Data
Revenues
Processing and related services
Software
Maintenance(3
Professional service

Charge for arbitration ruling attributable to pesgorior to July 1, 2003
3
Total revenues, ni
Expenses(7)
Cost of processing and related servi
Cost of software and maintenar
Cost of professional servic
Total cost of revenue
Gross margin (exclusive of depreciatic
Operating expense
Research and developmt
Selling, general and administrative
Depreciatior
Restructuring charges(
Kenan Business acquisiti-related expenses(
Total operating expens
Operating income (lost
Other income (expense
Interest expens
Interest and investment income,
Other
Total other

Income (loss) before income tax
Income tax (provision) benefit(:

Net income (loss

Diluted net income (loss) per common share
Net income (loss) available to common stockholi

Weighted average diluted common she

Other Data (at Period End):
Number of Broadband Division cliel customers processed|

Company (1)(2)

Year ended December 31,

2003 (5) 2002 (5) 2001 2000 1999
(in thousands, except per share amount:
$342,38" $373,037 $339,25¢ $294,80¢ $255,16°
41,43 68,37¢ 72,35( 70,37¢ 52,43:
93,56¢ 89,07t 15,80¢ 13,97 6,731
67,95¢ 80,44¢ 49,49; 19,731 7,82¢
545,33¢ 610,93: 476,90¢ 398,89¢ 322,16:
(105,679 — — — —
439,66( 610,93: 476,90¢ 398,89! 322,16:
141,24 141,06¢ 121,98! 107,02: 95,70¢
72,70: 57,58( 32,674 36,40¢ 31,241
63,91( 64,34: 21,35¢ 8,107 5,174
277,85! 262,99: 176,01t 151,53 132,12:
161,80! 347,94( 300,89 247 ,35¢ 190,04:
62,92« 73,67¢ 52,22: 42,33¢ 34,38¢
109,21 111,59: 52,14¢ 47,66 45,311
17,37¢ 18,83¢ 14,54¢ 12,071 10,19(
11,85( 12,72 — — —
— 29,957 — — —
201,36¢ 246,78 118,91¢ 102,07¢ 89,88¢
(39,56 101,15 181,97 145,28: 100,15:
(14,71) (14,037 (3,03¢) (5,80¢) (7,212
1,433 1,90¢ 4,46¢ 5,761 2,981
4,381 (1,486 39 (32) 10
(8,899 (13,619 1,467 (79) (4,229
(48,460 87,54« 183,44. 145,20: 95,92¢
22,18: (42,926  (69,52)  (54,73) (36,05
$ (26,277) $ 44,61¢ $113,92: $ 90,46¢ $ 59,87
$ (051)) $ 08 $ 208 $ 16C $ 1.1
51,43: 52,52¢ 54,63¢ 56,68( 54,66(
44,14¢ 45,81¢ 43,28: 35,80¢ 33,75:¢



Balance Sheet Data (at Period End;

Cash, cash equivalents and s-term investment
Working capital

Total asset

Total debi

Stockholder’ equity

14

$ 105,39
69,64:
724,77
228,92
290,78t

$ 95,43:
119,78:
731,31
270,00(
282,10¢

$ 83,59¢
80,78¢
374,04¢
31,50(
250,04

$ 43,73
81,31:
332,08¢
58,25¢
191,16¢

$ 48,67¢
32,09:
274,96¢
81,00(
116,86:
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1)

(@)

3)

(4)

()

(6)

(7)

(8)

We were formed in October 1994 and acquired ahefoutstanding stock of CSG Systems, Inc. (foyn€dble Services Group, Inc

from FDC in November 1994. CSG Systems, Inc. hahlzesubsidiary or division of FDC from 1982 uittié CSG Acquisition. We
recorded certain acquisition-related assets asudtref the CSG Acquisition. For 1999, the cospadcessing and related services included
$2.8 million of amortization for client contract®i the CSG Acquisition. Amortization related te thoncompete agreement from the
CSG Acquisition was $0.4 million per month, and ity amortized as of November 30, 19¢

During 1997, we purchased certain software tectgyossets from TCI and simultaneously enteredtimdMaster Subscriber Agreement
with TCI to consolidate all TCI customers onto customer care and billing system. In 1999 and 28spectively, AT&T completed its
mergers with TCIl and MediaOne, and consolidatedrteged operations into AT&T Broadband. On Novenit#r2002, Comcast
completed its merger with AT&T, and now under Costtsaownership, we continue to service the form&&A operations under the
terms of the Master Subscriber Agreement, as meatilfiy the Comcast arbitration ruling in October20rhe total amount paid to TClI in
1997 was approximately $159 million, with approxteig $105 million assigned to purchased in-progessarch and development assets
that were charged to expense at the date of atiquisivith the remaining amount allocated primatdythe Master Subscriber Agreement,
which is being amortized ratably over the 15-yéardf the contract. We financed this transactiathva $150 million term credit facility,

of which $27.5 million was used to retire our poadly outstanding debt. See MD&A for additionalatdission of the Master Subscriber
Agreement and related business relationship witim€ast.

During 2003, we recorded a $119.6 million chargeeicenue related to the Comcast arbitration rudiwgrd. The award was segregated
such that $105.7 million was attributable to pesipdior to July 1, 2003, and $13.9 million wasihtttable to the third quarter of 2003. Of
the $13.9 million attributable to the third quartee attributed $13.5 million to processing revesud the remaining $0.4 million to
software maintenance fees. As a result of the Cetraghitration award, we were in a net operatirgs lposition for the year, and recorded
an income tax benefit of $22.2 million. During tfloairth quarter of 2003, we paid Comcast $94.4 millof the arbitration award and in
January 2004, we paid the remaining $25.2 milliddditionally, as a result of the arbitration rulif@omcast customer accounts began
being measured differently in October 2003, whigsutted in a reduction in the total number of ¢’s customers processe

On March 5, 1999, we completed a -for-one stock split for stockholders of record on Faby8, 1999. The split was effected as a s
dividend. Share and per share data for 1999 hase ddjusted to give effect to the split. Diluted ineome (loss) per common share and
the shares used in the per share computation learedomputed on the basis described in Note 2rt@€onsolidated Financial Statemer
On February 28, 2002, we acquired the Kenan Busifiem Lucent for approximately $256 million in ba§he Kenan Busine:
acquisition had a significant impact on our resafteperations for 2003 and 2002, as well as orfioancial position as of December 31,
2003 and 2002. See Note 3 to our Consolidated Eiab8tatements and MD&A for a discussion of thguasition and its impact on our
Consolidated Financial Statements as of and foyélaes ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, includfognation regarding the
intangible assets recorded from the acquisitionthet related periodic amortization, and the KeBasiness acquisition-related expenses.
We financed the acquisition with a $300 millionntecredit facility, of which $31.5 million was ussalretire our previously outstanding
debt. See Note 7 to our Consolidated Financiak8tants for additional discussion of our creditlfgci

Beginning in the third quarter of 2002 and contirguthroughout 2003, we implemented several costatémh initiatives and recorded
restructuring charges of $11.9 million and $12.Wiam, respectively, for the years ended Decemlder2B03 and 2002. See Note 8 to our
Consolidated Financial Statements and MD&A for &iddal discussion of the restructuring chare

During the third quarter of 2002, we entered irddt@n equity compensation arrangements with sékeypamembers of our management
team. In December 2003, we accepted for exchangieancelled outstanding options to purchase 3.Bomishares of our common stock.
In exchange for such cancelled options, we grahi2anillion shares of restricted stock. Compensatinpense related to these
arrangements is being recognized ratably over ¢iséing periods of the arrangements. Additionalffective January 1, 2003, we adopted
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No, 128counting for Stock-Based Compensation”, udiing prospective method of
transition. Total stock-based compensation expegmegnized during 2003 and 2002 was $5.6 milliosh 8.4 million, respectively. See
Notes 2 and 13 to our Consolidated Financial Statgsnfor additional discussion of these mati

Following the provisions of Statement of Finanéatounting Standards Board No. 1.“Goodwill and Other Intangible Ass¢” we
ceased amortizing goodwill as of December 31, 2864, never amortized goodwill that was acquirelusiness combinations for which
the acquisition date was after June 30, 2001. adstgoodwill is reviewed annually for impairmenheTadoption of this pronouncement
not result in a material difference in amortizatlmtween periods, as amortization related to golbdwais $0.6 million per year from 1999
through 2001
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ltem 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financiab@dition and Results of Operations
Forward-Looking Statements

This report contains a number of forward-lookingtements relative to our future plans and our eigtiens concerning the global
customer care and billing industry, as well asabeverging telecommunications industry it serves, similar matters. These forward-looking
statements are based on assumptions about a nofribgyortant factors, and involve risks and undeties that could cause actual results to
differ materially from estimates contained in tbesardiooking statements. Some of the risks that aresk®a by management are containe
Exhibit 99.01 “Safe Harbor for Forward-Looking Statents Under the Private Securities Litigation Reféct of 1995—Certain Cautionary
Statements and Risk Factors” of this report. ExXHBi01 constitutes an integral part of this repantd readers are strongly encouraged to
review this exhibit closely in conjunction with Magement’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Giodand Results of Operations
(“MD&A").

Management Overview

The Company. We are a global leader in next-generationrgjliind customer care solutions for the cable tglav; direct broadcast
satellite, advanced IP services, next-generatiobilecand fixed wireline markets. Our combinatidrpooven and future-ready solutions,
delivered in both outsourced and licensed formetaples our clients to deliver high quality custos®rvice, improve operational efficiencies
and rapidly bring new revenue-generating produxtaarket. We are a S&P Midcap 400 company. We sauvelients through two operating
segments: the Broadband Services Division (the &Bband Division”) and the Global Software Servibégsion (the “GSS Division”). See
the “Business” section of this document for a fldkcription of our operating segments and the niatkey serve. Total revenues for our
company decreased from $610.9 million in 2002 t8%4 million in 2003.

General Market Conditions. The economic state of the global telecommuitioatindustry continues to be depressed. Many
telecommunications companies have reduced themtipg costs and capital expenditures to cope thighdepressed economic state of the
industry. Since our clients operate within thisuatty sector, the economic state of this induséy directly impacted our business, limiting the
amount of products and services clients purchase frs, as well as increasing the likelihood of dlectible accounts receivable and
lengthening the cash collection cycle.

Broadband Division. The Broadband Division generates its revenygzrdviding customer care and billing services aeevice burez
basis with its core product, CSG CCS/BP (“CCS”")Ntrth American (primarily the U.S.) broadband segvproviders, primarily for cable
television, Internet, and satellite television protofferings. The market for the Broadband Diuwissoproducts and services is highly
competitive, resulting in significant pricing presss for contract renewals.

The North American broadband industry has expeeérsignificant consolidation over the last few weaesulting in a large percentage
of the market being served by a limited numberepfises providers. Consistent with this market @mtiation, a large percentage of our
Broadband Division’s revenues is generated frormédd number of clients. The Broadband Divisioatsl our company’s three largest clients
(in order of size) are Comcast Corporation (“CortigaEchostar Communications (“Echostar”), and Tifvarner Inc. (“Time Warner”).

A summary of the key business matters for the Boaad Division in 2003 were as follows. These iteresdiscussed in more detail
throughout our MD&A.

» Revenues for the Broadband Division decreased $419.2 million in 2002 to $258.7 million in 2003o@cast is the Broadband
Division’s, and our company’s, largest client. Wav& been in various legal proceedings with Comsiaste 2002, consisting
principally of arbitration proceedings related tor
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15-year exclusive contract for processing services"Master Subscriber Agreem”). In October 2003, the arbitrator issued

final ruling on this matter. The arbitration rulimgluded an award of $119.6 million to be paidusyto Comcast. The award was
based on the arbitrator’s determination that we\haldted the Most Favored Nations (“MFN”) claudeltte Master Subscriber
Agreement. We recorded a charge to revenue foathsunt in the third quarter of 2003. In additithe arbitrator ruled that Comc:
was entitled to be invoiced for lower fees underMFN clause of the Master Subscriber Agreemeninipéry October 2003. As a
result, revenues from Comcast (when compared taatagrior to the arbitration ruling) are expectediecrease by approximately
$52-56 million annually.

On a positive note, the arbitrator did rule thathae not breached the Master Subscriber Agreerardtthat certain key provisions
of the agreement remain in force, including ouresize right to process the 13 million video andhispeed data accounts that
Comcast acquired from AT&T Broadband in 2002, drel 15-year term of the agreement. However, thdratbr also ruled that if
Comcast unilaterally terminates the Master Subscigreement, it shall be liable to us under a@tial provision relating to
consequential damages, for contract damages iantioeint of $44 million. In the event of such terntioa, we would be required to
provide Comcast with termination assistance foesanonths

During 2003, we were able to consolidate multimlatcacts with various operating units of Time Wariméo one consolidated
agreement that runs through 2013. This solidifiedlusiness relationship with Time Warn

The Broadband Division is currently involved inigrsficant architectural upgrade to CCS. This erdsment to CCS will allow us 1
further support convergent broadband services dlegucross-service bundling, convergent order eairy advanced service
provisioning capabilities. See t“Busines” section of this document for additional discussbthis matter

Our contract with our second largest client, Ecagstas scheduled to expire December 31, 2004dfiitst quarter of 2004, th
contract was extended through March 1, 2(

GSS Division. The GSS Division was established as a reswtinficquisition of the Kenan Business from Luckgthnologies
(“Lucent”) in February 2002. The GSS Division iglabal provider of convergent billing and custornare software and services that enables
telecommunications service providers to bill theistomers for existing and negéneration services, including mobile, Internetglime, cable
television, and satellite.

The GSS Division’s revenues consist of softwarerige and maintenance fees, and various professindalonsulting services related to
its software products (principally, implementatgervices). The market for the GSS Division’s pradwand services is highly competitive,
resulting in significant pricing pressures for bagw and existing client purchases. For 2003, agpprately 78% of the GSS Division’s
revenues were generated outside the U.S., as cethfla7 9% for 2002.

A summary of the key business matters for the GE&ibn for 2003 were as follows. These items dsewkssed in more detail
throughout our MD&A.

Revenues for the GSS Division decreased from $1®illibn in 2002 to $181.0 million in 2003, primgridue to the poor econom
market conditions and the project difficulties atedays we experienced within our professional sesvibrganization. Although we
began to see some signs of improvement in the rhadkelitions in the latter part of 2003 through cegent contract wins, a
sustained economic recovery of the global teleconmications industry could take several ye.

Key drivers of the value of the acquired Kenan Bass, and other recent acquisitions, are the gteldlommunications industry
customer base and the software assets acquirednirection with these acquisitions, the GSS Divigias approximately $219
million of goodwill, and as of December &
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2003, has other lor-lived intangible assets (client contracts and safe)with a net carrying value of approximately $3flion. In
light of the current market conditions, during #ezond quarter of 2003 we evaluated the carryihgevaef the GSS Division’s
goodwill and related lontjved intangible assets and concluded that theymayivalue of these assets had not been impairesz N®te
6 to our Consolidated Financial Statements fortaafthl discussion of our impairment analysis ofsthasset:

As part of the Kenan Business acquisition from loiée 2002, we assumed the obligation to compldsege systems
implementation project in Europe. We experiencegdificant difficulties and delays in completinggtproject, and in the first quarter
of 2003, we announced that we expected an ovessldf approximately $3 million on the project. Darthe fourth quarter of 2003,
the client went “live” on the system. Although tlplsase of the project was successfully completed2003 results of operations (in
particular, our professional services revenuesrataded gross margin) were negatively impactechieyptroject

Towards the end of 2002, and carrying into the fiedf of 2003, we experienced difficulties in @adting accounts receivable frc
certain clients within the GSS Division, in parfi&y two clients in India. The collection problemsre the result of various
administrative and client-specific business matt@ssa result, our accounts receivable balancedagd billing outstanding (“DBO”)
were negatively impacted during this time frameriBgi the last two quarters of 2003, we resolved yrafrthe administrative and
client matters, and saw a significant improvemardur accounts receivable balance and D

We combined the best of the traditional CSG soféwsniutions with the best of the Kenan Businessvswé solutions and introduc
Kenan FX in late 2003. Kenan FX is the result ofl&8month R&D project that resulted in a busineasework consisting of pre-
integrated products and modules that make seraicaitable via a common middle layer. See the “Besii section of this document
for additional discussion of this matt

Other Key Events. Other key business matters for 2003 were d@wWsl These items are discussed in more detailifirout our

MD&A.

During 2003 and 2002, we implemented several aaigtion initiatives in response to the lingerimppeconomic conditions with
the global telecommunications industry, and assalt®f the expected reduction in revenues reguftiom the Comcast arbitration
ruling. These cost reduction programs consistangmily of involuntary employee terminations, redons in various employee
compensation matters, and facilities abandonm@hisse cost reduction initiatives resulted in regtrting charges in both 2003 and
2002. See Note 8 to our Consolidated Financiak8tants for additional discussion of our restrucmidctivities in 2003 and 200

The $119.6 million Comcast arbitration award paymegatively impacted our liquidity in the fourtbiarter of 2003, and would
have resulted in a default of our bank credit agiex@ as of December 31, 2003 if not modified by ttee. In the fourth quarter of
2003, we favorably amended our bank credit agreeamhwe were in compliance with both the finaneiadl non-financial
covenants of the agreement as of December 31, 208%xpect to remain in compliance going forward.part of the amendment,
we agreed to an increase in the interest rate dp¥&a also agreed to a number of other modificattorthe credit agreement,
including a mandatory payment of $30 million inyJ@D04, a reduction in our revolving credit fagiltbo $40 million and additional
limitations on certain investments, acquisitiond aapital expenditures. See Note 7 to our ConsleiRinancial Statements for
additional discussion of our credit agreement duedrélated amendment to this agreen

During the fourth quarter of 2003, we adopted #iefalue method of accounting for st-based awards in accordance with SF
No. 123, using the prospective method of transiéisroutlined in SFAS No. 148. The adoption of #dsounting standard w:
effective as of January 1, 2003. Total sthelsed compensation for 2003 was $5.6 million, ®ittl million attributed to the adopti
of this accounting standard. See Note 14 to oursGlaated Financial Statements for additional disgan of the 2003 quarterly
impact of adopting SFAS No. 12
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» The majority of our employe’ previously issued stock options had exercise psagsficantly above the current market price of
stock, providing little, if any, retention valuen érder to provide a financial incentive for ourg@ayees to help us execute on our
business plan and continue to provide high qualibducts and services to the telecommunicationssing, we offered employees
the ability to voluntarily exchange certain stogiions for restricted stock. On December 18, 20838successfully completed this
exchange program. We accepted for exchange aneltzthoutstanding options to purchase 3.6 millibares of our common stock.
In exchange for such cancelled options, we graht2anillion shares of restricted stock, which widlst ratably over a three-year
period. See Note 13 to our Consolidated Finandetegents for additional discussion of this exclegoigpgram

Comcast and AT&T Broadband Business Relationship

Background. In 1997, we entered into the Master Subscimreement with Tele-Communications, Inc. (“TCI")¢onsolidate all TCI
customers onto our customer care and billing syskerh999 and 2000, respectively, AT&T completednitergers with TCl and MediaOne
Group, Inc. (“MediaOne”), and consolidated the neergperations into AT&T Broadband (“AT&T"), and weentinued to service the merged
operations under the terms of the Master SubscAbgezement. On November 18, 2002, Comcast completederger with AT&T, and now
under Comcast's ownership, we continue to servieddrmer AT&T operations under the terms of thesMa Subscriber Agreement, as
modified by the arbitration ruling described beldwless specifically identified differently, referes to Comcast hereafter in this document
include AT&T and its predecessor companies referdrabove.

Arbitration Ruling. We have been involved in various legal procegsliwith Comcast since 2002, consisting principaflgrbitration
proceedings related to the Master Subscriber Ageaenin October 2003, we received the final rulimghe arbitration proceedings. A
summary of the arbitration ruling is as follows:

» Comcast does not have the right to terminate thetd&ubscriber Agreement between the two compamigsr the terminatio
provisions of the contrac

* We maintain the exclusive rights to process the AMdeo and hig-speed data customers acquired by Com
* We did not obtain the right to process the add@id@@omcast customers;
» Comcast is not entitled, pursuant to an amendneethiet Master Subscriber Agreement, to deconvetbmess from our systen

» Comcast is entitled to relief under the MFN claakthe Master Subscriber Agreement and, going falw@omcast is entitled to
receive charges and fees based on our agreemehtsthér clients

e Comcast also was awarded MFN damages for the pettimdugh September 30, 2003 of $119.6 mill

« If Comcast unilaterally terminates the Master Subsc Agreement, it shall be liable to us undepatactual provision relating to
consequential damages, for contract damages iantioeint of $44 million. In the event of such terntiom, we would be required to
provide Comcast with termination assistance foesanonths

Arbitration Award. As stated above, the arbitration ruling incld@a award of $119.6 million to be paid by us tox€ast. The award
was based on the arbitrator’s determination thahackviolated the MFN clause of the Master Subscrkgreement. We recorded the impact
from the arbitration ruling in the quarter endegt®enber 30, 2003 as a charge to the Broadbandi@ingsrevenue. As specified in the
arbitration ruling, the $119.6 million was segregghsuch that $105.7 million was attributable tagus prior to July 1, 2003, and $13.9 million
was attributable to the third quarter of 2003. Aligh the arbitration ruling did not segregate the
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award by revenue type, we estimated that $13.5amitf the $13.9 million attributable to the thidarter of 2003 could be further attributer
processing revenues, and the remaining $0.4 midlarid be attributed to software maintenance féhese amounts have been netted against
the respective third quarter 2003 gross revenues (évenues prior to the arbitration award) in@ansolidated Statements of Operations and
our segment results in Note 5 to our Consolidaiedri€ial Statements.

Upon receipt of the arbitration ruling on Octobef@03, we sought a modification to the award,dwitig the arbitrator had miscalcula
the total amount of MFN damages. On October 21320@ paid approximately $65 million of the arhiitpa award to Comcast, using
available corporate funds. The $65 million paynrepresented the portion of the arbitration awaed te did not contest. On October 27,
2003, the arbitrator ruled that he did not misclalithe MFN damages and that we must pay the réngaarbitration award of approximately
$55 million to Comcast. On November 12, 2003, thdips amended the Master Subscriber Agreementhwhcluded payment terms for this
amount. As a result of this amendment, we paid@pprately $30 million in November 2003, and the a#ning $25 million was paid in
January 2004. The amount of the award accruecesttet eight (8) percent per annum from Octob@0®3 until paid, which resulted in
approximately $1 million of interest expense beiagorded in the fourth quarter of 2004.

Our insurance policies did not provide any rel@fiards the arbitration award. We expect to recaivéncome tax benefit of
approximately $44 million (based on an estimatedine tax rate of approximately 37%) for the $1I8ilion arbitration award paid to
Comcast through a reduction of 2003 income taxiesratise payable and through our ability to carrgkoaet operating losses to previous
years.

Impact of MFN Adjustment on Current and Future Bdsi.  As stated above, the arbitrator ruled that Cashis entitled to be invoiced
for lower fees under the MFN clause of the Mastarssriber Agreement beginning October 2003. Assaltefuture quarterly revenues (when
compared to amounts prior to the arbitration rglimgm Comcast are expected to decrease by appabeiyn$13-14 million, or $52-56 million
annually. Gross revenues (i.e., revenues pridneatbitration award) generated from Comcast fetthiird quarter of 2003 were approximately
25% of our total gross revenues, which is a peeggntomparable to those in our more recent quaifietal revenues generated from Comcast
in the third quarter (after considering the impafcthe $13.9 million arbitration award, but ignagithe impact of the $105.7 million arbitration
charge attributed to periods prior July 1, 2003) #re fourth quarter of 2003 were approximately 1006ur total revenues. We expect that the
percentage of our total revenues for 2004 from Gnhwill represent a percentage comparable toothisie third and fourth quarters of 2003
(i.e., approximately 17%). As discussed in gredegail under “Restructuring Charges” below, in m@sg®e to these lower revenues, we
implemented a cost reduction program in the foqctarter of 2003 that will lower our operating expesin 2004 by approximately $30
million, when compared to the third quarter 2008raping expense run rate.

We have various long-lived intangible assets (¢tlemmtracts) related to the Master Subscriber Agesg which have a net carrying value
as of December 31, 2003 of approximately $55 mmllié/e have evaluated the carrying value of thesetasn light of the arbitration ruling,
and have concluded that there has been no impaitmémese assets as of December 31, 2003. Weavitinue to monitor the carrying value
of these assets as we discuss with Comcast possiuldications to the Master Subscriber Agreemara aesult of the arbitration ruling, as
discussed in greater detail below. See Note 6 t@Consolidated Financial Statements for additiahst¢ussion of our intangible assets.

Contract Rights and Obligations. The Master Subscriber Agreement has an origérat of 15 years and expires in 2012, and contains
certain performance criteria and other obligatitmbe met by us. Comcast has the right to termitegdlaster Subscriber Agreement in the
event of certain defaults by us. As stated abdweeatbitrator ruled that Comcast currently doeshawe the right to terminate the Master
Subscriber Agreement under the termination prowisiof the contract. The Master Subscriber Agreerardtall subsequent amendments are
included in our exhibits to our periodic publidarigs with the SEC. These documents are availabtle®@internet and we encourage readers to
review these documents for further details.
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As stated above, the arbitrator ruled that we ra@ied the exclusive rights to process the AT&T wvidad high-speed data customers
acquired by Comcast. Prior to the arbitration mlithe annual minimum financial commitments duenftl@omcast under the Master Subscriber
Agreement were approximately $120 million. The tetor ruled that the minimum payment provisioritia agreement between the parties is
subject to the MFN clause. The effect of this rglis that, while we maintain our exclusive righpt@cess the Comcast customers previously
owned by AT&T, the minimum financial obligation uerdthe agreement is reduced to reflect the chagésees under a contract with another
client. However, as stated above, the arbitratw alled that if Comcast unilaterally terminates khaster Subscriber Agreement, it shall be
liable to us under a contractual provision relatmgonsequential damages, for contract damagieiamount of $44 million. In the event of
such termination, we would be required to provigenCast with termination assistance for seven momthesccordance with the arbitrator’s
ruling, the November 12, 2003 amendment mentioheda specifies the fees and procedures associdtiedhe seven months of termination
assistance we would provide should either partyitgate the contract, and also sets forth the mainnghich Comcast would be entitled to
obtain its customer data in a deconversion format.

We expect to generate a significant percentageiofuture revenues under the Master Subscriberéxgent. There are inherent risks
whenever a large percentage of total revenuescaeeatrated with one client. One such risk is thlabuld Comcast terminate the Master
Subscriber Agreement in whole or in part for anyhaf reasons stated above, or significantly redueeevenues expected to be generated
under the Master Subscriber Agreement, it coulcerematerial adverse effect on our financial coodiand results of operations (including
possible impairment, or significant acceleratiortef amortization of the intangible asset relatethé Master Subscriber Agreement mentic
above).

Current Discussions with Comcast.We are currently discussing possible modifaadito the Master Subscriber Agreement with
Comcast as a result of the arbitration ruling. s time, there can be no assurance that we williimthe Master Subscriber Agreement or
restructure our business relationship with Comuaader a new contract, and even if so, there camlassurance that the modified or new
terms of the contract will provide the same or &mfinancial performance or other important tetmghose contained in the existing Master
Subscriber Agreement.

While the substance of any discussions between @sinand us are not being made public at this tieegers are strongly encouraged to
frequently review our filings with the SEC as wadl all public announcements from us related tortfd@ter. This is of particular importance as
it is impossible to predict accurately at this timleen any further information on this matter wil available.

Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of our financial statements in oamity with accounting principles generally accepie the U.S. requires us to select
appropriate accounting policies, and to make judgmand estimates affecting the application oféhaxscounting policies. In applying our
accounting policies, different business conditionthe use of different assumptions may result aemally different amounts reported in our
Consolidated Financial Statements.

We have identified the most critical accountingigiek that affect our financial condition and reéswf operations. The critical account
policies were determined by considering our acdagrolicies that involve the most complex or sehjee decisions or assessments. The most
critical accounting policies identified relate {§:revenue recognition; (ii) allowance for doubthccounts receivable; (iii) impairment
assessments of long-lived assets; (iv) businessiotgrings; (v) loss contingencies; (vi) incomges; (vii) business combinations and asset
purchases; (viii) stock-based compensation; andcépitalization of internal software developmeaosts. These critical accounting policies, as
well as our other significant accounting policiass disclosed in Notes 2 and 9 to our ConsolidBtedncial Statements.
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Revenue Recognition. In light of the current economic conditionslleatibility of fees is one of the key revenue rgndion criteria for
us for all revenue sources. Revenues are recogoidgdf we determine that the collection of thedancluded in the arrangement is consid
probable (i.e., we expect the client to pay all ante in full when invoiced). In making our detertion of collectibility for revenue
recognition purposes, we consider a number of factepending upon the specific aspects of an aerangt, which may include, but is not
limited to, the following items: (i) an assessmefithe client’s specific credit worthiness, evideddy its current financial condition and/or
recent operating results, credit ratings, andioargkruptcy filing status (as applicable); (ii) ttieent’'s current accounts receivable status and/or
its historical payment patterns with us (as applieg (iii) the economic condition of the industrywhich the client conducts the majority of its
business; and/or (iv) the economic conditions anpléditical stability of the country or region inhich the client is domiciled and/or conducts
the majority of its business. The evaluation okthéactors, and the ultimate determination of ctilidity, requires significant judgments to be
made by us. The risk of an incorrect collectibiitgsessment by us is heightened due to the cadepnéssed state of the global
telecommunications industry, as discussed above judgments made in this area could have a sigmifieffect on revenues recognized in any
period by changing the amount and/or the timinthefrevenue recognized.

The accounting for software revenues, especiallgrngoftware is sold in a multiple-element arrang#re complex and requires
judgment. Key factors considered in accountingsfifitware and related services include: (i) the tifieation of the separate elements of
arrangement; (ii) whether any undelivered elemargsessential to the functionality of the deliveedeiments; (iii) the assessment of whether
our hosted service transactions meet the requirenoéEI TF 00-03 to be treated as a separate eletodine arrangement; (iv) the
determination of vendor-specific objective eviden€éair value for the various elements of the agement; (v) the assessment of whether the
software fees are fixed or determinable; (vi) teeedmination as to whether the fees are considaokektible (as discussed above); and (vii)
assessment of whether services included in thegeraent represent significant production, custotidneor modification of the software. The
evaluation of these factors, and the ultimate raeaecognition decision, requires significant juégns to be made by us. The judgments made
in this area could have a significant effect orerawes recognized in any period by changing the atremd/or the timing of the revenue
recognized. In addition, because software licehgasally have little or no direct, incremental t®selated to the recognition of the revenue,
these judgments could also have a significant efemet income or loss.

We utilize the percentage-of-completion (“POC”) hal of accounting for certain revenue arrangeméirigder the POC method of
accounting, revenues are typically recognized adces are performed. Provisions for any estimétedes on uncompleted projects are made
in the period in which such losses become evid&fettypically use hours performed on the projedhasmeasure to determine the percentage
of the work completed. Our use of the POC methoalcobunting on a project requires estimates ofdtad project revenues, total project costs
and the expected hours necessary to complete ecprfe believe we have adequate processes togaodasonably dependable estimates for
these items in order to justify the use of the R@&hod of accounting. However, changes in estimgdesresult of additional information or
experience on a project as work progresses aregnheharacteristics of the POC method of accogragwe are exposed to various business
risks in completing our projects. The estimatioagass to support the POC method of accounting ig whifficult for projects of greater length
and/or complexity. Factors that increase the coritgl®f an implementation project are discussethire detail in Exhibit 99.01 under
“Implementation Project Complexities and Risks”lirded in this report. The estimates and judgmeradamn this area could: (i) have a
significant effect on revenues recognized in anyogeby changing the amount and/or the timing &f tevenue recognized; and/or (ii) impact
the expected profitability of a project, includimgpether an overall loss on an arrangement has @atUfor the years ended December 31,
and 2002, approximately 21% and 27%, respectivélthe GSS Divisiors total recognized revenues were accounted foguke POC methc
of accounting. To mitigate the inherent risks imgghe POC method of accounting, we track ourqgrernce on projects and reevaluate the
appropriateness of our estimates as part of outhhoaccounting cycle.

The accounting for software maintenance servicegmgdly requires few judgments and estimates asethevenues are recognized rat:
over the service period. However, certain estinmatimay be required when
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maintenance services are sold as part of a muktiglment arrangement, as a portion of the ovezalleirrangement must be allocated to the
undelivered maintenance services. The key judgrheratiers considered in accounting for maintenaeeices in a multiple-element
arrangement include: (i) the determination of versfzecific objective evidence of fair value for tinaintenance services; and (ii) the period of
time maintenance services are expected to be peetbrThe judgments made in this area could haigniisant effect on revenues recogni:z

in any one period by changing the amount and/otithiag of the revenue recognized.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts ReceivableWe maintain an allowance for doubtful accouptsivable based on client-specific
allowances, as well as a general allowance. Spaifiwances are maintained for clients which atednined to have a high degree of
collectibility risk based on such factors, amonigess, as: (i) the aging of the accounts receivbhlence; (ii) the client’s past payment
experience; (iii) the economic condition of theustty in which the client conducts the majorityitsfbusiness; (iv) the economic conditions
and/or political stability of the country or regianwhich the client is domiciled and/or condudts tajority of its business; and (v) a
deterioration in a client’s financial condition,iégnced by weak financial condition and/or contthpeor operating results, reduced credit
ratings, and/or a bankruptcy filing. In additiontke specific allowance, we maintain a generalbadloce for all our accounts receivable which
are not covered by a specific allowance. The gérdavance is established based on such factareng others, as: (i) the total balance of the
outstanding accounts receivable, including consitfems of the aging categories of those accourtsivable; (ii) past history of uncollectible
accounts receivable write-offs; and (iii) the o\leceeditworthiness of the client base, includiranpsiderations of the economic condition of the
global telecommunications industry.

The expansion of our international business asutref the Kenan Business acquisition, combinetth ¢ie downturn in the global
telecommunications industry, has increased the @ity in estimating the adequacy of the allowafaredoubtful accounts receivable. Since
most of our current and future clients operate withis industry sector, the economic state of itdkistry directly impacts our business,
increasing the likelihood of uncollectible amoufrtsm current and future accounts receivable andtleming the cash collection cycle. In
particular, we experienced collection problems weiitain of our international clients in late 2GBbugh the middle of 2003, and have
experienced several client bankruptcy filings aberlast few years (both in the Broadband and GE&ibns), which required us to increase
our allowance for doubtful accounts receivable wtiese matters were identified. A considerable amofijudgment is required in assessing
the realizability of accounts receivable. Shoulg ahthe factors considered in determining the adeg of the overall allowance change
significantly, an adjustment to the provision fauthtful account receivables may be necessary. Beoaiuthe significance of our gross account
receivables balance ($141.8 million) and relatéalalnce for doubtful accounts ($11.1 million) adDefcember 31, 2003, such an adjustment
could be material.

Impairment Assessment of Long-Lived Asset§&oodwill is required to be tested for impaimhen an annual basis. In addition to this
annual requirement, goodwill is required to be aatdd for possible impairment on a periodic basig.( quarterly) if events occur or
circumstances change that could indicate a possitgairment may have occurred. Under the currecoacting standard, goodwill is
considered impaired if the carrying value of thearting unit which includes the goodwill is greatean the estimated fair value of the
reporting unit. If it is determined that an impa@m has occurred, an impairment loss (equal texieess of the carrying value of the goodwill
over its estimated fair value) is recorded. Inreating fair value, we consider the income, mar&atl cost methods, with the greatest reliance
on the income method. Under the income methodpdisted future net cash flows are the primary bafsestimating the fair value. The
determinations of future net cash flows and the@gmate discount rate to be used, are by theirreahighly subjective judgments. The
estimation of fair value under each of the threevalmentioned methods is more difficult in periofi®conomic downturn.

Long-lived assets (e.qg., intangible assets), dtiem goodwill, are required to be evaluated forsgime impairment on a periodic basis
(e.g., quarterly) if events occur or circumstandesnge that could indicate that a possible impaitroéthese assets may have occurred. Under
the current accounting standard, a long-lived asset
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is impaired if future undiscounted cash flows agsted with that asset, without consideration oéiigst, are insufficient to recover the carrying
amount of the long-lived asset. Once deemed imgagreen if by $1, the long-lived asset is writtewa to its fair value which could be
considerably less than the carrying amount or &uturdiscounted cash flows. The determinations toféucash flows and, if required, the
determination of the fair value of a long-lived etssre by their nature, highly subjective judgrsefrt addition, the estimation of the future
cash flows is more difficult in periods of econordi@wnturn.

As of December 31, 2003, we have approximatelyiBon in net intangible assets and approximatt9 million of goodwill that are
attributable to the GSS Division, which includes #ssets from the Kenan, ICMS, Davinci, and pladquisitions. Due to the continued poor
economic conditions of the global telecommunicatiordustry and the impacts this situation had @GI$S Division’s business, to include
declining revenues, segment contribution losses tlaa initiation of various cost reduction and mgsturing programs since the acquisition of
the Kenan Business in early 2002, we performedatefinancial analyses (to include work by an inglegient outside valuation firm) during t
second quarter of 2003 and concluded that bassdanwork, there had been no impairment of the B&8ion’s goodwill or its other long-
lived assets. The estimated fair value of the G8&IDn reporting unit exceeded its carrying vahyeapproximately 13%, and the estimated
undiscounted cash flows for the GSS Division’s kingd assets exceeded their carrying values bycxipately 38%.

We completed (to include work by an independensidetvaluation firm) our annual goodwill impairmeast of the GSS Division
reporting unit in the third quarter of 2003, anchcloded that based on such work, there had beémpairment of the GSS Division’s
goodwill. The estimated fair value of the GSS Dimisreporting unit exceeded its carrying value ppraximately 17%.

We will continue to continue to monitor the carryimalue of the GSS Divisiog’goodwill and other intangible assets during ttenemic
downturn in this industry sector. If the currenbeomic conditions worsen and/or take longer to vecthan anticipated, it is reasonably
possible that a review for impairment of the godtarnd/or related long-lived intangible assetsha future may indicate that these assets are
impaired, and the amount of impairment could bestaritial.

As discussed above, we have evaluated the $5®mikrrying value of the client contract intangibiset related to the Comcast Master
Subscriber Agreement in light of the recent arkitraruling, and have concluded there has beempairment of this asset. The estimation of
the undiscounted future cash flows is more diffi@d a result of the arbitrator’'s decision to alldamcast to unilaterally terminate the Master
Subscriber Agreement, and be liable to us undeng&actual provision relating to consequential dgesafor contract damages in the amount
of $44 million. We will continue to monitor the e¢ging value of this asset as we discuss with Colrpassible modifications to the Master
Subscriber Agreement as a result of the arbitratiling. Further, should Comcast terminate the EaSubscriber Agreement, the amortiza
of this intangible asset would be significantly elecated.

Business Restructuring. We recorded restructuring charges during 2000B2902 related primarily to involuntary employeetination
benefits and facilities abandonments. Our accogrfninvoluntary employee termination benefits geatly does not require significant
judgments as we identify the specific individuatel dheir termination benefits in the early stagethe restructuring program, and the timing
the benefit payments is relatively short. Some jodgt is needed in determining whether any legabsue exists from the involuntary
employee terminations, especially in certain fongigisdictions. The accounting for facilities ablanments requires significant judgments in
determining the restructuring charges, primarilpted to the assumptions regarding the timing aedaimount of any potential sublease
arrangements for the abandoned facilities, andligemunt rates used to determine the present wlthe liabilities. We continually evaluate
these assumptions, and adjust the related fasilti@ndonment reserves based on the revised agsusrgitthat time. Depending upon the
significance in the change of assumptions, the gasuto the facilities abandonment reserves coulddderial.
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Loss Contingencies. In the ordinary course of business, we areexaltp claims (and potential claims) related tdouss items including
but not limited to: (i) legal and regulatory magtefii) client and vendor contracts; (iii) produtd service delivery matters; and (iv) labor
matters. We follow the guidelines of SFAS No. 5ctAunting for Contingencies”, in determining theagpriate accounting and disclosures
for such matters, which requires us to assesskélkhbod of any adverse judgments in or outconoethése matters, as well as the potential
ranges of probable losses. A determination of theumt of reserves for such contingencies, if aoyttiese contingencies is based on an
analysis of the issues, often with the assistaftegal counsel. The evaluation of such issues,amdiltimate accounting and disclosure
decisions, are by their nature, subject to varestsnates and highly subjective judgments. Shonidcd the factors considered in determining
the adequacy of any required reserves change isigmiliy, an adjustment to the reserves may be sacgsBecause of the potential significa
of these issues, such an adjustment could be ralateri

Income Taxes. We are required to estimate our income taxlitglin each jurisdiction in which we operate. Stprocess requires us to
estimate the actual current tax liability togethith assessing temporary differences resulting fdiffiering treatment of items, such as
purchased in-process R&D costs, for tax and acaogipurposes. These temporary differences resuléfarred income tax assets and
liabilities in our Consolidated Financial Statenseew/e must then assess the likelihood that oudefetrred income tax assets will be recovered
primarily from future taxable income, and to theées recovery is not likely, we must establish lugtion allowance. As of December 31,
2003, we had net deferred income tax assets ob$6#lion, relating primarily to our domestic op&oms, which represented approximately
9% of our total assets. Management believes thHfitismt taxable income will be generated in theufe to realize the benefit of our net
deferred income tax assets. The assumption ofdufxable income, is by its nature, subject tootexiestimates and highly subjective
judgments

Business Combinations and Asset Purchase&ccounting for business combinations and gssethases, including the allocation of the
purchase price to acquired assets and assumeti#albiased on their estimated fair values, reggiirs in certain circumstances to estimate fair
values for items that have no ready market or foictvno independent market exists. Under such kistances, we use our best judgment to
determine a fair value based upon inference torathesactions and other data. As a result, theuatsaletermined by us for such items as
accounts receivable, identifiable intangible asggiedwill, and deferred revenue are not indiviutiie result of an arm’s length transaction,
but are the result of management estimates ofdih@dlue and the allocation of the purchase pAaeordingly, revenue recognized by us
related to fulfilment of assumed contractual oatigns is based on fair value estimates made by us.

For larger and/or more complex acquisitions, thegesnent of value to individual intangible assetagrally requires the use of a
specialist, such as an appraiser or valuation éxpke assumptions used in the appraisal or vaingtiocess are forward-looking, and thus
subject to significant judgments and interpretagibg us. Because individual intangible assetsnéy be expensed immediately upon
acquisition (e.g., purchased mecess R&D assets); (ii) amortized over theimeated useful life (e.g., acquired software); dj (ibt amortizec
at all (e.g., goodwill), the assigned values cddele a material impact on results of operatioriment and future periods.

Stock-based compensation.During the fourth quarter of 2003, we adoptesl fair value method of accounting for stock-basedrds
(currently consisting of stock options and restricstock) in accordance with SFAS No. 123, usiregpitospective method of transition as
outlined in SFAS No. 148. Under SFAS No. 123, we tie Black-Scholes pricing model to estimate #ievialue of the stock-based awards as
of the grant date. The Blackeholes model, by its design, is highly complex] dapendent upon key data inputs estimated by neamagt. Th
primary data inputs with the greatest degree ofestilve judgment are the estimated lives of thelstzased awards and the estimated volatility
of our stock price. The Black-Scholes model is higiensitive to changes in these two data inputs.

Capitalization of Internal Software Development 8os We expend substantial amounts on researcherelapment (“R&D”) for both
new and existing (i.e., enhancements) softwareymtsdand related services.
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Such costs are subject to capitalization undeairedircumstances. The determination of whetherial software R&D costs are subject to
capitalization is by its nature, highly subjectaed involves significant judgments. This decisionld significantly affect earnings during the
development period by either: (i) capitalizing depenent costs; or (i) expensing pre-technologfeakibility and pre-application development
stage research costs. Further, once capitalizeddftware costs are generally amortized on agitdine basis over the estimated economic
life of the product. The determination of the expéauseful life of a product is highly judgmentainally, capitalized software R&D costs are
subject to the same judgments when evaluatingdssiple impairment as discussed above for other-limed assets.

We did not capitalize any internal software R&D tspgs discussed above, during the years endedvibece31, 2003, 2002, or 2001. In
addition, we do not have any capitalized interoétveare R&D costs included in our December 31, 2808 2002 Consolidated Balance
Sheets. We believe that during these periods nemahbinternal software R&D costs were requiredbéocapitalized. Our conclusion is
primarily based upon the fact that the feature;mrk-integrated, and highly-scalable nature ofgyoducts requires that our development
efforts include complex design, coding and testiteghodologies, which include next generation saféwanguages and development tools.
Development projects of this nature carry a higbrde of development risk. Substantially all of ouernal software R&D efforts are of this
nature, and therefore, the Company believes this sabject to capitalization during these periogseanot material.
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Results of Operations

The following table sets forth certain financiataland the percentage of total revenues for thegeeimdicated (in thousand:

Revenues

Processing and related services (inclusive in 2003
$13,742 charge for arbitration ruling attributatue

the third quarter of 200!
Software

Maintenance (inclusive in 2003 of $450 charge
arbitration ruling attributable to the third quartd

2003)
Professional service

Charge for arbitration ruling attributable to peiso

prior to July 1, 200:
Total revenues, nt

Cost of Revenue:
Cost of processing and related servi
Cost of software and maintenar
Cost of professional servic

Total cost of revenue
Gross margin (exclusive of depreciatic
Operating expense
Research and developm
Selling, general and administrati
Depreciatior
Restructuring charge
Kenan Business acquisti-related charge
Total operating expens:
Operating income (los:
Other income (expense
Interest expens
Interest and investment income,
Other
Total other

Income (loss) before income tax
Income tax (provision) benef

Net income (loss

Year ended December 31

2003

% of
Revenue

Amount

$ 342,38! 77.£%

41,431 9.4
93,56« 21.c
67,95¢ 15.4

545,33¢ 124.(

(105,679  (24.0

439,66( 100.(

141,24: 32.1
72,70: 16.5
63,91( 14.€

277,85! 63.2

161,80¢ 36.€

62,92¢ 14.:
109,21 24.¢
17,37¢ 4.C
11,85( 2.7

201,36¢ 45.¢

(39,567  (9.0)

14,71) (3.9
1,437 0.3
4,381 1.

(8,899 (2.0

(48,460  (11.0)
22,18: 5.

$ (26,27)  (6.0%
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2002

% of
Revenue

Amount

$373,03¢ 61.(%

68,37¢ 11.2
89,07¢ 14.¢
80,44¢ 13.2

610,93: 100.(

610,93: 10C

141,06¢ 23.1
57,58( 9.4
64,34: 10.t

262,99. 43.C

347,94( 57.C

73,67¢ 12.1
111,59: 18.2
18,83¢ 3.1
12,72] 2.1
29,951 4.9

246,78 40.4

101,157 16.€

(14,03) (2.9
1,90¢ 0.3
(1,480 (0.9

(13,619 (2.9

87,54:  14.%
42,920 (7.0

$ 44,61¢ 7.3%

2001

% of
Revenue

Amount

$339,25¢ 71.1%
72,35( 15.2

15,80¢ 3.2
49,49; 10.4

476,90¢ 100.(

476,90¢ 10C

121,98¢ 25.¢
32,67« 6.8
21,35¢ 4.t

176,01! 36.€

300,89¢ 63.1

52,22 11.C
52,14¢ 10.¢
14,54¢ 3.1

118,91¢ 25.C

181,97¢ 38.1

(3,039 (0.6

4,46¢ 0.6
39 —
1,467 0.2

183,44;  38.
(69,52)  (14.6)

$113,92: 23.8%
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Year Ended December 31, 2003 Compared to Year Endé&kcember 31, 2002
Results of Operation—Consolidated Basis

Impact of Acquisitions. We completed our acquisition of the Kenan Bes@&from Lucent on February 28, 2002. When comgarin
operating results between years, 2002 results @éfadipns include ten months of results from thiguésition, while 2003 reflects a full 12
months of results. We also completed our acquisitibDavinci Technologies Inc. in December 2002] aar acquisition of the ICMS business
from IBM in August 2002. The ICMS and Davinci acsjtibns did not individually have a material impact the results of operations for the
years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, and hanecbaesidered in the yeover-year results of operations discussed bel@s.ote 3 to
our Consolidated Financial Statements for additiorfarmation on our acquisitions.

Total Revenues. Total revenues decreased $171.2 million, 080%8t0 $439.7 million in 2003, from $610.9 milliom 2002. Of the
$171.2 million decrease, $105.7 million is relatedhe Comcast charge for arbitration ruling atttéble to periods prior to July 1, 2003, as
discussed above. The remaining decrease betwemdpés due primarily to decreases in processintratated services revenues, software
revenues, and professional services revenues.

See the “Results of Operations—Operating Segmeseistion below for a detailed discussion of reverargsrelated changes between
periods on a segment basis.

Cost of Processing and Related Service§he cost of processing and related servicesnges consists principally of: (i) data proces:
and communications costs; (ii) statement produatimsts (e.g., labor, paper, envelopes, equipmeheguipment maintenance, etc.); (iii) cli
support organizations (e.g., client call centecspant management, etc.); (iv) various product supgrganizations (e.g., product management
and delivery, product maintenance, etc.); anddgjlities and infrastructure costs related to tfagéesnent production and support organizations.

The cost of processing and related services fo8 28Mained relatively unchanged between yearsvaasit$141.2 million for 2003 as
compared to $141.1 million for 2002. This is refiee of our continued focus on cost controls irsthfea. Processing costs as a percentage of
related processing revenues were 41.3% (margi®.abb) for 2003 compared to 37.8% (margin of 62.2862002. The decrease in proces:
gross margin and gross margin percentage was duany to the lower Comcast revenues during thedthnd fourth quarters of 2003 as a
result of the arbitration ruling.

Our gross margin percentage for processing serfacele fourth quarter of 2003 was approximatel§®b We expect our 2004 overall
gross margin percentage for processing servicbs to a range comparable to this percentage.

Cost of Software and Maintenance.The cost of software and maintenance revenoiesists principally of: (i) amortization of acquire
software and certain acquired client contractyc(ient support organizations (e.g., client calhters, account management, etc.); (iii) various
product support organizations (e.g., product mamege and delivery, product maintenance, etc.);fég)lities and infrastructure costs related
to these organizations; and (v) third-party sofeveosts and/or royalties related to certain softwoducts. We do not differentiate between
cost of software revenues and cost of maintenasenues, and therefore, such costs are reportaccombined basis. The costs related to
product development (including enhancements tdiagigproducts) are included in research and devetay expenses.

The combined cost of software and maintenance@0B2ncreased 26.3% to $72.7 million, from $57.8ian for 2002. The increase
related primarily to: (i) 2003 having twelve montifsKenan Business operations, as compared totenlynonths of Kenan Business operat
in 2002; and (ii) 2003 having twelve months of ICNf&intenance costs and amortization expense asacethfn only four months in 2002.
The cost of
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software and maintenance as a percentage of relatedues was 53.9% (margin of 46.1%) for 2003oaspared to 36.6% (margin of 63.4%)
for 2002, with the change due primarily to the éase in software sales within the Broadband Dimisks discussed below, fluctuations in the
gross margin for software and maintenance reveargeean inherent characteristic of software comzaamel are expected in future periods.

Cost of Professional Services.The cost of professional services consistscipally of: (i) our professional services organiaas; (ii)
subcontracted professional consultants; and éd)lities and infrastructure costs related to awfgssional services organizations.

The cost of professional services for 2003 decrkséb to $63.9 million, from $64.3 million, for @R. The decrease related primarily
a reduction in personnel costs as a result of éisereduction initiatives discussed below, offsePB03 having twelve months of Kenan
Business operations, as compared to only ten mam2802. The cost of professional services asregmeage of related revenues was 94.0%
(margin of 6.0%) for 2003, as compared to 80.0%r¢imaof 20.0%) for 2002. The decrease in the graggin percentages between periods
relates primarily to: (i) the difficulties we expenced on the large implementation project disadigsehe immediately following paragraph;
and (ii) a decrease in GSS Division’s professi@ealices revenues between years, which is discusggdater detail under the “Results of
Operations—Operating Segments” below.

As part of the Kenan Business acquisition from loiée 2002, we assumed the obligation to compldsege systems implementation
project for Proximus, a Belgium telecommunicatisesvice provider. The total estimated revenues aegegrom this arrangement are $24.4
million. For the years ended December 31, 20032002, respectively, we recognized revenue undsrattiangement of $6.9 million, and
$15.5 million (approximately 92% completed). Thisjpct is significantly longer and more complexrttaur typical implementation projects.
We experienced significant difficulties and delaysompleting this project, and in the first quad& 2003, we announced that we expected an
overall loss of approximately $3 million on the jeat. During the second quarter of 2003, we ametidedontract with this client which
modified our obligations and eliminated certainfpenance penalties. During the fourth quarter d2@Proximus went “live’bn the system,
which time, substantially all of our implementatitype obligations were completed. Although we u#itely were successful in completing the
implementation phase of this project, we expendsigrificant amount of our professional servicesotgces on this project in 2003 at a loss.
As a result, this project had a significant negatmpact on our 2003 results of operations, inigaler, our professional services revenues and
related gross margin, and the GSS Division’s oVeesllts of operations. With the substantial ccetiph of this project as of the end 2003, we
do not expect a similar impact to our 2004 resofitsperations from this project.

As a result the various project difficulties we expnced during 2003 on this and other projectstemeganized the delivery function
during 2003 to better address these matters. Wevieethis reorganization has significantly improwked quality of services we deliver to our
clients, and will result in improved gross marggusng forward.

Gross Margin.  As a result of the Kenan Business acquisitiam,revenues from software licenses, maintenagicéces and
professional services have increased and becoarger [percentage of total revenues. Variabilityuarterly revenues and operating results are
inherent characteristics of companies that setivso® licenses, maintenance services, and perfaofegsional services. Our quarterly rever
for software licenses, maintenance services anig@gsimnal services revenues may fluctuate, depgratirvarious factors, including the timing
of executed contracts and the delivery of contdhstrvices or products. See Exhibit 99.01, “Vatigbdf Quarterly Results”, for additional
discussion of factors that may cause fluctuatiorguarterly revenues and operating results. Howekercosts associated with software and
maintenance revenues, and professional servicesueg are not subject to the same degree of v#sigbe., these costs are generally fixed in
nature within a relatively short period of timepdathus, fluctuations in our software and mainteeaprofessional services, and overall gross
margins, will likely occur between periods.
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The overall gross margin for 2003, decreased 53b$4.61.8 million, from $347.9 million for 2002. &loverall gross margin percentage
decreased to 36.8% for 2003, compared to 57.09002. The changes in the gross margin and grosgimaercentage were due to the fac
discussed above, principally, a result of the impéthe Comcast arbitration ruling and the redutiin the Broadband Division’s software
revenues.

Our overall gross margin percentage for the fogrthrter of 2003 was approximately 48%. We expec604 overall gross margin
percentage to be in a range comparable to thieptrge.

Research and Development ExpensdR&D expense for 2003, decreased 14.6% to $&dI®n, from $73.7 million for 2002. As a
percentage of total revenues, R&D expense increasgd.3% for 2003, from 12.1% for 2002. The reafawrthe overall increase in R&D
expense as a percentage of total revenues, idbe tower revenues resulting form the Comcastratton ruling, discussed above. We did
not capitalize any internal software developmestsduring 2003 and 2002.

The decrease in the amount of R&D expense betweeods was due to: (i) the discontinuation of teeelopment of our CSG NextGen
product during the third quarter of 2002; (ii) auwetion of R&D costs in other areas since the seéaprarter of 2002, to include a reduction of
R&D personnel as a result of the cost reductiotigitives discussed below; and (iii) the completidnthe development cycle for certain
projects. Prior to the Kenan acquisition, the priygrfacus of the GSS Division was on the developnoémur NextGen software product.
Following the Kenan Business acquisition, we disicared the development of CSG NextGen as a stamtkalustomer care and billing
system.

During 2003, we focused our development and entmeceefforts on:

» various R&D projects for the GSS Division, includithe Kenan FX business framework (se€“Busines” section of this docume
for additional discussion), which was introducediaite 2003, which includes enhancements to theiegisersions of the Kenan
Business product suite, as well as new modules

» enhancements to CCS and related Broadband Divisifiware products to increase the functionalities features of the produc
consisting principally of the architectural upgradeCCS which is discussed in greater detail in“Bigsiness” section of this
document

At this time, we expect our investment in R&D ovieme will approximate our historical investmenteaatf 10-12% of total revenues. We
expect this investment will be focused on the C8&tae Kenan Business product suite, as well agiadal stand-alone products as they are
identified.

Selling, General and Administrative ExpenseSG&A expense for 2003, decreased 2.1% to ®1@8lion, from $111.6 million for
2002. The decrease in SG&A expense is due primiaridydecrease in bad debt expense between yeappaiximately $15 million. One of
our larger Broadband Division clients, Adelphia Gounications (“Adelphia”), filed for bankruptcy peattion in June 2002, at which time we
established a reserve for the pre-bankruptcy ireoitn addition, we experienced difficulties inleoting certain international accounts
receivable during 2002, which required us to insecaur allowance for doubtful accounts receivablénd this time period. The improvement
in our overall accounts receivable position inldtéer part of 2003, and the fact we had no sinildividual client matters in 2003 with the
same degree of significance as Adelphia in 200@wald us to significantly reduce our 2003 bad detptense, when compared to 2002. In
addition, we were successful in collecting cerfaiinchased Kenan Business accounts receivable @0 had previously been written off or
fully reserved against. These collections were na@o as a reduction of bad debt expense in 208@3egoccurred after we had finalized our
Kenan Business purchase accounting. See the “lityligkction below for additional discussion of agcounts receivable activities for 2003
and 2002. This decrease was partially offset binerease in: (i) legal fees related to the Comaatsitration; and (ii) stockased compensatic
expense. We incurred $11.7 million of legal fedateal to the Comcast arbitration and $5.2 millibistock-based compensation attributable to
SG&A in 2003, as compared to $6.4 million and $tilion, respectively, in 2002.
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Stock-based compensation for 2004 is expected &ppmximately $15 million, with the increase dtried primarily to the completion
of our restricted stock for stock option exchangegpam in December 2003, and the adoption of SFAS183 as discussed above. The
majority of this expense will be included in the &Sexpense line item.

Depreciation Expense Depreciation expense for 2003 decreased 708%41.4 million, from $18.8 million for 2002. Thectease in
depreciation expense related to the decrease itatappenditures made during 2003 in accordandke aur focus on cost controls. Capital
expenditures during 2003 were approximately $9iomlhnd consisted principally of: (i) computer haede and related equipment; (ii)
statement production equipment; and (iii) faciitend internal infrastructure improvements. Defatéan expense for all property and
equipment is reflected separately in the aggregadeis not included in the cost of revenues oiother components of operating expenses.

Kenan Business Acquisition-Related Expensels conjunction with the Kenan Business acdigisitwe incurred certain direct and
incremental acquisitionelated expenses during 2002. We completed thgriaien of the Kenan Business in 2002, and theecfinere were n
similar expenses in 2003. The acquisition-relatgueases included in total operating expenses, laidripact (net of related income tax
expense) these acquisition-related expenses hadtancome and diluted earnings per share for #a& gnded December 31, 2002 are
presented below (in thousands, except diluted egsrper share).

In-process research and developm*“IPRD") $19,30(
Impairment of an existing intangible asset dispiblog software products acquir 1,90¢
Employesrelated costs (primarily existing CSG employee retiuncy costs 3,931
Integration costs (e.g., legal, accounting, ¢ 4,367
All other 452

Total Kenan Business acquisit-related charge $29,957

Impact of Kenan Business acquisil-related expenses on results of operations (i.ee heduced operatir

results):
Net income $23,93:
Diluted earnings per sha $ 0.4t

IPRD represents research and development of vasimitiware products which had not reached techncébdeasibility as of the
acquisition date, and had no other alternativeréutise. IPRD was charged to operations in thedinatter of 2002. As of December 31, 2003,
substantially all of the IPRD projects have beemgleted, with one remaining project scheduled toedrapleted in the first quarter of 2004.
The remaining costs to complete this project atemeterial.

Restructuring Charges. Our restructuring charges relate to various meguctions initiatives implemented primarily aseault of marke
conditions, and the Comcast arbitration ruling. Bete 8 to the our Consolidated Financial Stateséata more detailed discussion of our
cost reduction initiatives and related restructyiicharges, including the current activity in theraed liabilities related to the restructuring
charges. We believe that the operational impact fileese initiatives will not negatively impact @bility to service our current or future
clients.

Cost Reduction Initiatives Related to Market Caondi

In response to poor economic conditions withinglabal telecommunications industry, during 2003 2662, we implemented several
cost reduction initiatives, consisting primarilyiof’oluntary employee terminations and facilitid®adonments, with the greatest percentage of
the involuntary terminations occurring within th&S Division. These cost reduction initiatives resiliin restructuring charges in both 2003
and 2002.
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In the aggregate, these various initiatives wergetad at reducing operating expenses by approzlgn&60 million annually, based on various
measurement points. These programs were subshactiahpleted by the end of the second quarter 6820

Cost Reduction Initiatives Related to the Comcalsitration Ruling.

In response to the expected reduction in revergagsdting from the Comcast arbitration ruling, darthe fourth quarter of 2003, v
implemented a cost reduction initiative, consistimgnarily of involuntary employee terminations amdeduction of costs related to certain of
our employee compensation and fringe benefit progrdo include a freeze in wages for 2004, withgteatest percentage of the involuntary
employee terminations occurring within the Broadb#ivision. This cost reduction initiative resultedrestructuring charges in fourth quarter
of 2003.

The cost savings from this initiative were approaiety $2 million in the fourth quarter of 2003. TR@04 cost savings from this initiati
are targeted to be approximately $30 million, whempared to the third quarter 2003 annualized diperaxpense run rate, with the savings
expected to be realized somewhat ratably acros4.20@onnection with the completion of this caduction initiative, we expect to record a
restructuring charge during the first quarter dd20related primarily to involuntary terminationnits. At this time, we are not able to
estimate the amount of the restructuring chargeitliginot expected to be material.

Summary of Restructuring Charges.
The components of the restructuring charges indudéotal operating expenses, and the impactdheglated estimated income t
expense) these restructuring charges had on rehm¢loss) and diluted earnings per share, foy#ae ended December 31, 2003 and 200
as follows (in thousands, except diluted earnirgrsshare):

Year Ended
December 31,

2003 2002
Involuntary employee terminatiol $ 7,63C $ 5,81(
Facilities abandonmen 4,19¢ 6,891
All other 25 14
Total restructuring charge $11,85(  $12,72:
Impact of restructuring charges on results of ojp@ma (i.e., have reduced operating resu
Net income $ 6,42¢ $ 7,76(
Diluted earnings per sha $ 01z $ 0.1f

As shown above, we recorded restructuring charglased to involuntary employee terminations andotes facilities abandonments in
2003 and 2002. The accounting for facilities abamdents requires significant judgments in deterngrire restructuring charges, primarily
related to the assumptions regarding the timingtheacgmount of any potential sublease arrangenfientse abandoned facilities, and the
discount rates used to determine the present wdlthes liabilities. We continually evaluate thessamptions, and adjust the related facilities
abandonment reserves based on the revised assomatithat time. In addition, we continually evaduaays to cut our operating expenses
through restructuring opportunities, to include tiiization of our workforce and current operatifiagilities. As a result, there is a reasonable
possibility that we may incur additional materiastructuring charges in the future.
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Operating Income(Loss). Operating loss for 2003 was $(39.6) million(®10)% of total revenues, compared to operaticgrime of
$101.2 million or 16.6% of total revenues for 200Re decrease in these measures between yealstésir® the factors discussed above,
principally, a result of the impact of the Comcadtitration ruling.

Our operating income margin for the fourth quace2003 was approximately 13%. We expect our 2Q@rating income margin to be
in the range of 15% to 16%.

Interest Expense Interest expense for 2003 increased 4.9% 4o7$illion, from $14.0 million for 2002. The in@se in interest
expense is due primarily to approximately $1 millaf interest related to the Comcast arbitratiomm@lyas discussed above. In addition, the
weighted-average balance of our long-term deb28@3 was $249.0 million, compared to $226.7 milion2002. The weighted-average
interest rate on our debt borrowings for 2003,uidaig the amortization of deferred financing castd commitment fees on our revolving
credit facility, was 5.3%, compared to 5.9% for 200

Our estimated interest expense for 2004 is apprataty $13 million.

Other income/expense. Other income for 2003, was $4.4 million, congghto other expense of $1.5 million for 2002. Tineréase was
primarily due to foreign currency transaction gainsing 2003.

Income Tax Provision/Benefit. For the year ended December 31, 2003, we redaad income tax benefit of $22.2 million, or an
effective income tax rate of approximately 46%, paned to an income tax provision of $42.9 millionan effective income tax rate of 49%
for the year ended December 31, 2002.

The effective income tax rate for 2002 was negétiirepacted by certain items recorded in conjuntiith the Kenan Business
acquisition. As a result of the Comcast arbitrattbarge, we were in a domestic net operating Id$dI(") position for 2003, and
consequently, we recorded a tax benefit. The 46%ne tax rate is impacted by the NOL position f@@2, resulting from the $119.6 million
Comcast arbitration charge discussed above, aneg#odution during 2003 of certain federal tax pfoss and tax refunds from certain
jurisdictions. See Note 9 to our Consolidated Fai@rStatements for a reconciliation of the diffeze between the income tax provis
(benefit) computed at the statutory federal incaaxerate of 35% and the financial statement provigbenefit) for income taxes included in
our Consolidated Statements of Operations.

As a result of our NOL position for the year endEtember 31, 2003, we recorded an income tax ralkeivof $35.1 million as of
December 31, 2003, which results from our abilitgtaim a refund for 2003 income taxes already ,paid from our ability to carry back our
NOL to prior years. As of March 10, 2004, we hackieed approximately $34 million of this income t&ceivable, and expect to receive
remaining amount by the end of the second quaft2o@4.

As of December 31, 2003, our net deferred incomeasaets of $62.5 million were related primarilyotor domestic operations, and
represented approximately 9% of total assets. Wiérage to believe that sufficient taxable incomdl i generated to realize the benefit of
these deferred income tax assets. Our assumptidagice profitable domestic operations are supgubiiy our strong operating performances
by the Broadband Division over the last severatgeand our future expectations of profitabilityimclude considerations for the expected
impacts from the Comcast arbitration ruling, and @lanned cost reduction initiative implementedha fourth quarter of 2003.

At this time, we expect an effective income taxeriat 2004 of approximately 38%. The estimate of 382004 is based on various
assumptions, with the two primary assumptions eel& our estimate of total pretax income, andatheunts and sources of foreign pretax
income. The actual effective income tax rate fdd£20ould deviate from the 38% estimate based oractual experiences with these items, as
well as others.
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Results of Operations—Operating Segments

Operating segment information and corporate ovetleeats for the years ended December 31, 2003@02| 2re presented in Note 5
our Consolidated Financial Statements.

Broadband Division

Total Revenue! Total Broadband Division revenues for 2003 dased 38.3% to $258.7 million, from $419.2 millfon 2002. The
decrease in total revenues was due primarily Yahé $119.6 million Comcast arbitration chargeoreed in the third quarter of 2003; (i) low
revenues from Comcast in the fourth quarter of 2893 result of the arbitration ruling; and (iiijeluction in software revenues between y

Processing Revenue. Processing revenue for 2003 decreased by ®(838.9 million, from $372.4 million for 2002. Tlklecrease in
processing revenue was due primarily to: (i) th8.85Inillion charge for the Comcast arbitration asvattributed to processing revenue in the
third quarter of 2003; and (ii) lower revenues (wltempared to periods prior to the arbitrationngjifrom Comcast in the fourth quarter of
2003 of approximately $13 million as a result af #rbitration ruling.

The arbitration ruling also required us to meastwencast customer accounts differently for invoigngposes beginning in October
2003. The change is primarily the result of comignihe video and Internet accounts for the samimes (i.e. subscriber) into a single
customer account, as opposed to two separate ceistmoounts as was the case prior to the arbitratiing, and to a lesser degree, not
charging for certain inactive customers. As a itesuwir historical breakout of video, Internet, dalphony accounts is not comparable.

Total domestic customer accounts processed onystera are shown in the table below (in thousanidsy. December 31, 2003 number
reflects the new basis of measurement effectivel@rt2003. For comparability purposes, the imp&th® arbitration ruling on the December
31, 2002 customer accounts is illustrated in tieviong table.

December 31, 2002

Prior to After
Impact of Impact of Impact of

Arbitration Arbitration Arbitration December 31 (:jr:;:rreee;ssee

Ruling Ruling Ruling 2003
Video 40,71« (811 39,90: 42,52: 2,61¢
Internet 5,00¢ (1,539 3,47( 1,572 (1,899
Telephony 98 — 98 54 (44)
Total 45,81¢ (2,34%) 43,47 44,14¢ 677

The increase in the number of video customersr(aftesidering the impact of the arbitration rulirsgyviced was due to the conversio
additional customers onto our systems, and intennstomer growth experienced by existing cliente @iecrease in Internet customers (after
considering the impact of the arbitration ruling)due primarily to approximately one million whaés Internet customer accounts that were
converted to the respective client’s internal cosocare and billing application during the secquodrter of 2003. As of December 31, 2003,
our conversion backlog was not significant.

The combined annualized revenue per unit (“ARPU&sW87.58 for 2003 and $8.43 for 2002, with the ei@se primarily related to the
reduction in Comcast processing revenues in tid #rid fourth quarters of 2003. Our ARPU for thertb quarter of 2004 was $7.33, which
included approximately $0.10 related to a one-tispecial project for a client. For 2004, we exprat ARPU to range from $7.10 to $7.25,
with the decrease reflective of competitive pricprgssures and continued tight cost controls opé#neof our clients.

34



Table of Contents

Software Revenue. Software revenue for 2003 decreased by 78.8%6 tb million, from $24.2 million for 2002. The dease in
software revenue was due primarily to several lagfevare sales during 2002, with no similar tratisss in 2003. We expect the Broadband
Division’s software sales in 2004 to be more corapbe to 2003 rather than 2002.

Maintenance Revenue. Maintenance revenue for 2003 decreased by 3p48.8 million, from $20.3 million for 2002. Thikecrease in
maintenance revenue was due primarily to lower teaence revenues from Comcast in the third andHayrarters of 2003 as a result of the
arbitration ruling. A small portion of the Comcasbitration award, and the corresponding redudtidiees going forward, are attributed to
maintenance fees. We expect the Broadband Divisim@intenance revenues in 2004 to be flat to $figlawn from 2003.

Segment Operating Expenses and Contribution MargiBroadband Division operating expenses werdivels unchanged between
years with 2003 at $211.1 million, compared to $218illion for 2002. This is reflective of our cémtied focus on cost controls for tl
division. The cost savings in 2003 related to thath quarter 2003 cost reduction initiative disadabove were not significant.

Broadband Division contribution margin decreasedBy% to $47.6 million (contribution margin pertage of 18.4%) for 2003, from
$207.1 million (contribution margin percentage 8f4%o) for 2002. The Broadband Division’s contrilbatimargin and contribution margin
percentage decreased between periods primarilyodine impact of the Comcast arbitration ruling2®93 processing revenues, and to a much
lesser degree, a decrease in software revenues.

GSS Division

Total Revenues. Total GSS Division revenues for 2003 decre&s6&% to $181.0 million, as compared to $191.7 wrillior 2002. The
decrease in total revenue was due primarily tocaedese in software revenues and professional ssrvevenues discussed in more detail
below.

Software Revenue. Software revenue for 2003 decreased by 17.888@c3 million, from $44.1 million for 2002. Theatease in
software revenue was due primarily to the curreatkat conditions of the telecommunications industiglecommunication service providers
continued to control their capital expendituresimiyithis market downturn in 2003, reducing the dedhfor the GSS Division’s software
products. We expect 2004 software revenues toabedfislightly up, depending upon the pace at wttiehmarket begins to recover.

Maintenance Revenue. Maintenance revenue for 2003 increased by 807$74.8 million, from $68.8 million for 2002. Thecrease in
maintenance revenue was due primarily to a fult yé&enan Business maintenance revenue in 200&rapared to ten months of activity in
2002. During the first quarter of 2003, we expecgghsome difficulties in renewing certain softwaraintenance agreements, and certain
software maintenance agreements were renewed at than previous rates. As a result, our first trra2003 GSS Division maintenance
revenue decreased sequentially over the fourthtejualr 2002 by approximately $5 million. We believe have stabilized this portion of our
business and do not expect to experience simikants\going forward. The GSS Division’s maintenaraenues for the fourth quarter of 2003
were $20.7 million. We expect our 2004 GSS DiviSajuarterly maintenance revenues to be compatalitet of the fourth quarter of 2003.

Professional Services RevenueProfessional services revenue for 2003 decdelagd 5.1% to $66.4 million, from $78.2 million for
2002. The decrease in revenue was due primarggveral large projects in progress during 2002 whiere substantially completed in 2002
and early 2003 (including the impact of the Proxénmaplementation project discussed above), witheptacement of comparable projects
upon completion. We typically sell professionahéegs in conjunction with software sales. One imipdeeduced demand for software sales is
that we have fewer revenue generating opporturfitiesur professional services organization. Weeexf2004 professional services revenues
to be flat to slightly up, depending upon the pacehich the market begins to recover, and ouresgt selling additional software licenses.
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Segment Operating Expenses and Contribution LogSSS Division operating expenses for 2003 deegéy 6.7% to $190.2 million,
from $203.8 million for 2002. The decrease in GS@dbn operating expenses is due primarily to ¢esuction initiatives that began in the
third quarter of 2002, principally a reduction ierponnel cost as a result of involuntary emplogesinations, and lower bad debt expense
between years. These were partially offset by tisusion of ten months operating expenses for theal Business in 2002, as compared to a
full year in 2003.

GSS Division contribution loss decreased by 23.@%(9.2) million in 2003 (negative contribution rgar of 5.1%), from $(12.1) million
in 2002 (negative contribution margin of 6.3%), guienarily to a reduction in GSS Division operatiegpenses as discussed above.

We expect the GSS Division to have a positive ¢buation margin in 2004.

Corporate

Corporate Operating Expense Corporate overhead expenses for 2003 increz&déo to $66.1 million, from $51.2 million, for 28(C
The increase in segment expenses related printarily) an increase in legal fees related to then€ast arbitration proceedings; and (ii) an
increase in stock-based compensation attributéaet@€orporate segment. See Notes 2 and 13 to awsolidated Financial Statements for
additional discussion of stodkased compensation. We incurred $11.7 million géléees related to the Comcast arbitration an@ 88llion of
stock-based compensation (attributable to the Gatpsegment) in 2003, as compared to $6.4 midliwh $1.4 million, respectively, in 2002.

Year Ended December 31, 2002 Compared to Year Endé&kcember 31, 2001
Results of Operation—Consolidated Basis

Impact of Acquisitions. We completed our acquisition of the Kenan Besinfrom Lucent Technologies on February 28, 200#n
comparing operating results between years, 20Q2tsesf operations include ten months of resulterfithis acquisition, with no comparable
amounts for 2001. The plaNet Consulting (acquiredt@mber 2001), ICMS (acquired August 2002), andriza Technologies Inc. (acquired
December 2002) businesses did not individually feweaterial impact on the results of operationgteryears ended December 31, 2002 and
2001, as applicable, and have been consideree ipetir-over-year results of operations discusskmhb&ee Note 3 to our Consolidated
Financial Statements for additional informationaum acquisitions.

Total Revenues. Total revenues increased $134.0 million, 0d28to $610.9 million in 2002, from $476.9 milliom 2001. The increa:
between periods is due primarily to increases at@ssing and related services, maintenance revesmegeprofessional services revenues. The
increase in maintenance and professional servisesues related primarily to the Kenan Businessiaitipn.

See the “Results of Operations—Operating Segmeeistion below for a detailed discussion of reverargbsrelated changes between
periods on a segment basis.

Cost of Processing and Related Service§ he cost of processing and related service2302 increased 15.6% to $141.1 million, from
$122.0 million for 2001. The increase was due priln#o the increase in the number of customerswfclients which we serviced, as
discussed in more detail in the “Results of Opereti—Operating Segments” section below. Processiats @s a percentage of related
processing revenues were 37.8% (margin of 62.2¢)062 compared to 36.0% (margin of 64.0%) for 2001e increase in processing costs
as a percentage of related revenue was due prynaurdn increase in processing and related costsystomer account between periods, due
primarily to increased functionalities and featuoésur processing and related products
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Cost of Software and Maintenance.The combined cost of software and maintenaoc20d02 increased 76.2% to $57.6 million, from
$32.7 million for 2001. The increase related priitgeo the operations of the Kenan Business diseds$ove, which included amortization
related to the acquired Kenan Business intangideta of approximately $13 million in 2002. Thetaifssoftware and maintenance as a
percentage of related revenues was 36.6% (mardif3.dPso) for 2002 as compared to 37.1% (margin d@%) for 2001. As previously
discussed, fluctuations in the gross margin fotveafe and maintenance revenues are an inherergatbestic of software companies.

Cost of Professional Services.The cost of professional services for 2002aased 201.3% to $64.3 million, from $21.4 milliam f
2001. The increase related to the operations oKéran Business discussed above. The cost of giofes services as a percentage of related
revenues was 80.0% (margin of 20.0%) for 2002 paspared to 43.2% (margin of 56.8%) for 2001. Theéase in the cost of professional
services as a percentage of the related revenuedweaprimarily to the decrease in the Broadbamis@in’s professional services revenues
(primarily due to lower purchases by Comcast) dadimclusion of the operations of the Kenan Businéds previously discussed, fluctuations
in the gross margin for professional services raesrare an inherent characteristic of professigeralices companies.

Gross Margin.  The overall gross margin for 2002, increase®% to $347.9 million from $300.9 million for 200Lhe overall gross
margin percentage decreased to 57.0% for 2002, amdpo 63.1% for 2001. The changes in the grosgimand gross margin percentage
were due to the factors discussed above.

Research and Development ExpensdR&D expense for 2002 increased 41.1% to $w8lifon, from $52.2 million for 2001. As a
percentage of total revenues, R&D expense increased.1% for 2002, from 11.0% for 2001. We did capitalize any internal software
development costs during 2002 and 2001.

The increase in the R&D expenditures between peneas due primarily to inclusion of R&D for the iars Kenan Business products
since the closing of the acquisition on FebruaryZ®?2. Our development and enhancement efforingl2002 were focused primarily on:

» various R&D projects for the Kenan Business, whittludes updates and enhancements to the existirsions of the Kenan
Business product suit

» enhancements to CCS and related software produgisrease the functionalities and features ofiteelucts; and

» development of CSG NextGen. Following the KenanilBess acquisition, we discontinued the developm&@SG NextGen as
stand-alone customer care and billing system, astg¢ad, we have focused on integrating certainifeatand capabilities of CSG
NextGen into the Kenan product sui

Selling, General and Administrative ExpenseSG&A expense for 2002, increased 114.0% td $Lmillion, from $52.1 million for
2001. As a percentage of total revenues, SG&A espémcreased to 18.3% for 2002, from 10.9% for 200k increase in SG&A expense
related primarily to operations of the Kenan Bus@eand to a lesser degree, an increase in: (Danidebt expense between years of
approximately $5 million; and (ii) legal fees in@®of $6.4 million related to the Comcast litigatiavith no comparable amounts included in
2001. The higher bad debt expense in 2002 relaiesply to the Adelphia bankruptcy filing in Ju2802, and the difficulties we experienced
in collecting certain international accounts reebie in the latter half of 2002, which requiredaisncrease our allowance account for such
receivables during this time period.

Depreciation Expense Depreciation expense for 2002 increased 29d6$d.8.8 million, from $14.5 million for 2001. Tlecrease in
depreciation expense related to capital expenditor@de during 2002 and 2001 in support our ovgralvth and depreciation expense related
to the acquired fixed assets from the Kenan Busiaeguisition. The capital expenditures during 2@@2e $12.7 million and consisted
principally of: (i) computer hardware and relateglipment; (ii) statement production equipment; éidfacilities and internal
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infrastructure expansions and improvements. Degtieci expense for all property and equipment ilecééd separately in the aggregate and is
not included in the cost of revenues or the otleanmonents of operating expenses.

Kenan Business Acquisition-Related ExpenseSee “Kenan Business Acquisition-Related Expefiseshe 2003 and 2002 results of
operations section above for a detailed discussidthese expenses.

Restructuring Charges. See “Restructuring Charges” in the 2003 anc22@8ults of operations section above for a detallscussion
of these expenses.

Operating Income. Operating income for 2002, was $101.2 milliorl6.6% of total revenues, compared to $182.0 onilbr 38.1% of
total revenues for 2001. The decrease in theseure=abetween years is related to the factors diecuabove, principally, the impact of the
Kenan Business acquisition and restructuring ctgrge

Interest Expense Interest expense for 2002, increased 361.9$4400 million, from $3.0 million for 2001, with ¢hincrease due
primarily to our borrowings to finance the KenansBiess acquisition, as discussed in Notes 3 anddrtConsolidated Financial Statements.
The weighted-average balance of our long-term fiet2002 was $226.7 million, compared to $48.4 ioillfor 2001. The weighted-average
interest rate on our debt borrowings for 2002, udaig the amortization of deferred financing castd commitment fees on our revolving
credit facility, was 5.9%, compared to 6.3% for 200

Interest and Investment Income Interest and investment income for 2002, desed 57.3% to $1.9 million, from $4.5 million fod@L.
The decrease was due primarily to lower funds abéel for investment, and to a lesser degree, thectmn in the returns on invested funds.

Income Tax Provision. We recorded an income tax provision of $42.Bioni, or an effective income tax rate of approxteig 49% for
the year ended December 31, 2002. The impactsgofigitons and our international expansion of cusibess (primarily as a result of the
Kenan Business acquisition) significantly increasadeffective income tax rate in 2002 when comgaoeour effective tax rate of
approximately 38% in 2001.

Results of Operations—Operating Segments
Our operating segment information and corporatetmesd costs for the years ended December 31, 2aD2G01, are presented in Not
to our Consolidated Financial Statements.
Broadband Division
Total Revenues. Total Broadband Division revenues for 2002 dased 11.5% to $419.2 million, from $473.8 millfon2001.
Processing Revenues. Processing revenues for 2002 increased by €088872.4 million, from $339.3 million for 2001. iBhincrease is
primarily the result of an increase in the numbesustomers of our clients which were serviced byprimarily as a result of conversions of

new customers to our systems in the last thregepsasf 2001, and internal customer growth expeegdrby our existing clients in both 2001
and 2002.

Software Revenue. Software revenue for 2002 decreased by 66.582402 million, from $72.4 million for 2001. Theatease in
software revenue was due primarily to lower sofeyanrchases by Comcast during 2002 as compare@Dio 2

Maintenance Revenue. Maintenance revenue for 2002 increased by 28m$20.3 million, from $15.8 million for 2001. Tlecrease il
maintenance revenue was due primarily to an inergathe installed base of the Broadband Divisioitvgare products.
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Professional Services RevenueProfessional services revenue for 2002 decddag®5.1% to $2.3 million, from $46.4 million f@an01.
The decrease in revenue was due primarily to Igeefessional services purchased by Comcast dufifg as compared to 2001.

Segment Operating Expenses and Contribution MargiBroadband Division operating expenses for 200&ased by 3.1% to $212.1
million, from $205.7 million for 2001. This overaficrease in segment operating expenses betwerpevas due primarily to: (i) an increase
in bad debt expense (as discussed above) in 2i00&n (ncrease in several variable processingscesy., paper, envelopes, data processing,
etc.), with these increases related to an incrisaesee volume of customers processed between peradl (iii) an increase in data processing
costs per customer, due primarily to increasedtfanalities and features of our processing andedlaroducts.

Broadband Division contribution margin decrease@®y % to $207.1 million (contribution margin pemntage of 49.4%) for 2002, from
$268.0 million (contribution margin percentage 6f@)%) for 2001. The Broadband Division’s contrilbatimargin and contribution margin
percentage decreased between periods primarilyesult of a decrease in software and professiggraices revenues in 2002. As discussed
above, the costs associated with software and erante revenues, and professional services ggnaralfixed in nature within a relatively
short period of time, and thus, decreases in ttmsmues generally do not result in a correspondémease in operating expenses.

GSS Division

Total Revenues. Total GSS Division revenues for 2002 were $191illion, as compared to $3.1 million for 2001.eTbnly revenues
generated by the GSS Division in 2001 related fwr@pmately four months of professional servicegeraies from plaNet Consulting. The
focus for the GSS Division at that time consistadhprily of product development and marketing ef§an our CSG NextGen software
product. The revenues for this segment in 2002istetsprimarily of software license, maintenance professional services revenues for the
ten months of operations of the Kenan Businesst@admuch lesser degree, the professional serésesiues for plaNet.

Segment Operating Expenses and Contribution Log8SS Division operating expenses for 2002 w&@3$ million, as compared to
$53.3 million for 2001. GSS Division contributioosk decreased by 75.9% to $(12.1) million in 2®@2n $(50.2) million in 2001. The
increase in segment operating expenses betweerdpeslated primarily to the inclusion of ten mandi operating expenses for the Kenan
Business since the closing of the acquisition, taralmuch lesser degree, a full year of operatimgeses for plaNet in 2002, compared to only
four months in 2001.

Corporate

Corporate Operating Expenses.Corporate overhead expenses for 2002, increda&d6 to $51.2 million, from $35.9 million for 200
The increase in operating expenses related priyntaril(i) the additional marketing and administvatcosts to support our overall growth, and
to a lesser degree; (ii) an increase in legal feleded to the Comcast arbitration proceedings.

Liquidity

Cash and Liquidity As of December 31, 2003, our principal soua@guidity included cash, cash equivalents, ahdrt-term
investments of $105.4 million, compared to $95.4iom as of December 31, 2002. We generally ineestexcess cash balances in low-risk,
short-term investments to limit our exposure to kearisks. We also have a $40 million revolvingditéacility, under which there were no
borrowings outstanding as of December 31, 2003.aDility to borrow under the revolver is subjecatimitation of total indebtedness based
upon the results of a leverage ratio calculatiowl, ldased upon the amount of CSG System, Inc.’s¢boar primary subsidiaries) current cash

balance. As of December 31, 2003, approximatelyfifon of the revolver was available to us. Tlealving credit facility expires in
February 2007.
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Our cash balances as of December 31 are locatee fiollowing geographical regions (in thousands):

2003 2002

North America (principally the U.S $ 50,77¢  $43,07:
Europe, Middle East and Africa (principally Eurag 37,27( 39,81
Asia Pacific 4,45¢ 7,90¢
Central and South Americ 12,89t 4,64¢
Total cash, equivalents and sl-term investment $105,39°  $95,437

We generally have ready access to substantiallyf allir cash and short-term investment balancesjdéace limitations on moving cash
out of certain foreign jurisdictions. As of Decemi3d, 2003, the cash and short-term investmentgsuto such limitations were not
significant. In addition, our credit facility plaseertain restrictions on the amount of cash thathe freely transferred between certain
operating subsidiaries. These restrictions areerpécted to cause any liquidity issues at the iddal subsidiary level in the foreseeable fut

Cash Flows From Operating Activities. We calculate our cash flows from operating\ati¢is in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, beginning with net incomesg)) and then adding back the impact of non-cashsit(e.g., depreciation, amortization,
stock-based compensation, etc.), and then factamitfge impact of changes in working capital items.

The primary use of our cash is to fund our ongaipgrating activities. Of the total amount of ouf202002 and 2001 operating
expenses, approximately 59%, 55% and 55% relatiedto costs (both employees and contracted ldbar}i) compensation; (ii) related
fringe benefits; and (iii) reimbursements for trbard entertainment expenses. None of our U.S.ebasgloyees are subject to a collective
bargaining agreement. Certain non-U.S.-based erapkogire covered under national or compspgeific collective bargaining agreements.
other primary cash requirements for our operatigeases consist of: (i) postage; (ii) paper anateel supplies for our statement processing
centers; (iii) data processing and related senacescommunication lines for our Broadband Divistoservice bureau processing business;
(iv) rent and related facility costs. These itemesurchased under a variety of both short-termlamg-term contractual commitments. See
“Investing” and “Financing” activities below for e¢hother primary uses of our cash. A summary ofroatterial contractual obligations is
provided below as well.

Our primary source of cash is from our operatintivées. Our business model consists of a sigaifitcamount of monthly, quarterly, and
annual recurring revenue sources. The primary ssuwé€such recurring revenues are our Broadbanidibivs long-term processing
arrangements (billed monthly) and our software itesiance arrangements (primarily billed quarterlgt annually), principally within the GSS
Division. This recurring revenue base results ialeble, and predictable, source of cash for msddition, software license fees and
professional services revenues provide for matarie@dunts of cash, but the payment streams for ike®s are not as predictable.
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Our net cash flows provided by (used in) operasiativities, which consists of cash from operatiand changes in working capital iter
for the quarters and years ended for the indicaggbds are as follows (in thousands). These ansaanetreflected in our Consolidated
Statements of Cash Flows.

2003 2002 2001

Quarters ende
March 31(1) $22,22: $26,15¢ $ 79,94:
June 3( 37,14 19,96¢ 3,56(
September 30(2 39,44¢ (5,50¢) 47,21t
December 31(3 (38,45¢) 47,511 49,37¢
Years ende: $60,35. $88,12¢  $180,09:

(1) Approximately $37 million of the $79.9 million dfi¢ cash flow from operating activities for the figeiarter of 2001 relates to c
agreement to extend the payment terms on a lafygase transaction across our 2000 yearend, thaterting the cash flows from
operations for this quarte

(2) The negative cash flow used in operating activitie$(5.5) million in the third quarter of 2002 a&s primarily to the difficulties we
experienced in collecting accounts receivable fogmain of our international clients in the lagpart of 2002, as discussed in greater
detail below.

(3) The negative cash flow from operating activitie$¢38.5) million in the fourth quarter of 2003 rela primarily to the $94.4 million paid
to Comcast during the fourth quarter of 2003 assalt of the arbitration ruling. Absent this amqumé generated strong cash flows from
operating activities for 2003, primarily as a résdlour improved cash collections of our interoatil accounts receivable during the last
two quarters of 2003. This improved performancevedid us to pay amounts to Comcast with availablparate funds, without having to
draw on our revolving credit agreeme

We believe this table illustrates our ability tanetstently generate strong quarterly and annudl flaws, and the importance of manag
our working capital items, in particular, timelylieztions of our accounts receivable. Absent anysul fluctuations in working capital items,
we expect our 2004 annual cash flows from operaitiiyities to range from $80 million to $100 nulti, and would expect the quarterly
amounts to be somewhat consistent between quarters.

The key balance sheet items impacting our cashsfloem operating activities are as follows.

Billed Accounts Receivable

Management of our billed accounts receivable isafrtbe primary factors in maintaining strong gedst cash flows from operatir
activities. Our billed trade accounts receivablebee includes billings for several non-revenumgdprimarily postage, sales tax, and deferred
revenue items). As a result, we evaluate our perdace in collecting our accounts receivable thromghcalculation of days billings
outstanding (“DBO”) rather than a typical days saetstanding (“DSO") calculation. DBO is calculhtzased on the billing for the period
(including non-revenue items) divided by the averagnthly net trade accounts receivable balancthéperiod. Our target range for our
DBO is 65-75 days.

Our gross and net billed trade accounts receivatiderelated allowance for doubtful accounts red#eé'Allowance”), as of the end of
the indicated periods, and our DBOs for the quarieen ended, are as follows (in thousands, ex2Bfts):

Quarters Then Ended in 2003 Quarters Then Ended in 2002
DBO DBO
Gross Allowance Net Billed Gross Allowance Net Billed
March 31 $182,57.  $(12,609  $169,96: 68  $11124.  $ (7,244  $103,99¢ 52
June 3( 183,18¢ (14,099 169,09¢ 79 141,34¢ (13,229 128,12: 56
September 3 162,81( (13,729 149,08:. 78 164,74! (12,959 151,78° 65
December 3: 141,83¢ (11,145 130,69: 67 172,49¢ (12,079 160,41 73
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The increase in the accounts receivable balanaktherDBO measures since the first quarter of 28G2es primarily to the Kenan
Business acquisition. As a result of the Kenan Bess acquisition, a greater percentage of our tegeand accounts receivable relate to cli
outside the U.S. Our billed accounts receivablarzd by geographic region (based on the locatidheotlient) as of December 31 is as
follows (in thousands):

2003 2002
North America (principally the U.S $101,15¢  $119,76!
Europe, Middle East and Africa (principally Eurag 20,21¢ 27,05¢
Asia Pacific 14,28 15,95¢
Central and South Americ 6,171 9,71«

Total billed accounts receivak 141,83t 172,49¢
Less allowance for doubtful accoul (11,145 (12,079

Total billed accounts receivable, net of allowa $130,69: $160,41°

As expected, this greater diversity in the geogiapbmposition of our client base has increasedagupbunts receivable balance and
adversely impacted DBO (when compared to our hicbexperience prior to the Kenan Business actijoigias longer billing cycles (i.e.,
billing terms and cash collection cycles) are drenent characteristic of international software prafessional services transactions. For
example, our ability to bill (i.e., send an invoi@nd collect arrangement fees may be dependemnt @pwong other things: (i) the completior
various client administrative matters, local cowyrtilling protocols and processes (including lozaltural differences), and/or non-client
administrative matters; (ii) us meeting certaintcactual invoicing milestones; or (iii) the overphoject status in certain situations in which we
act as a subcontractor to another vendor on agiroje

The increase in net billed accounts receivableRB®s from the third quarter of 2002 through the ehthe second quarter of 2003 is
primarily the result of the increased aging of agrtreceivables within the GSS Division. Duringstlime frame, we experienced collection
problems with certain clients due to various adstmtive and client-specific matters. In particuthere were two large implementation
projects in progress in India where we were exagubin the implementation projects generally as etgok but for which we had the following
gross accounts receivable balances outstandinfithe end of the indicated periods (in thousands):

Unbilled
Quarter Ended Billed Total
December 31, 200 $ 7,78 $4,30¢ $12,08¢
March 31, 200! 21,22¢ 1,59(C 22,81¢
June 30, 200 18,95: — 18,95:
September 30, 20( 8,71¢ 74¢ 9,46¢
December 31, 200 7,32¢ — 7,32¢

We had originally expected to bill and collect ®stantial percentage of the December 31, 2002 araduyrthe end of the first quarter of
2003. However due to various complications in tilng and cash collection cycle, and specific pajrelated matters that needed to be
resolved with these clients, we were not succegsfslich collections as of March 31, 2003 and Bhe003. We have resolved many of the
issues that had been causing the delays in coltetliese amounts, and as a result, we were sugtessignificantly reducing the outstanding
balances of these two clients by the end of 2008 ewpect to collect substantially all of the renragrDecember 31, 2003 accounts receivable
from these clients in the first half of 2004. Indéibn, these clients are located within Indiautéag in approximately 8% of our net billed
accounts receivable being concentrated in thisgareountry as of December 31, 2003. There is harient risk whenever such a large
percentage of total accounts receivable is conatttiwithin one foreign country. One such riskhtt should a foreign country’s political or
economic conditions adversely change, it could beedifficult to receive payments from clients wittthat foreign country. We do not expect
such conditions to occur in India in the foreseedbture, and as a result, we do not believe tine@atration of accounts receivable in India
subjects us to higher than usual collection risks.
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During 2003, in conjunction with working througletissues that caused the collection delays witbethwo Indian clients, we have made
certain improvements in the quality of our delivéupctions and in our cash collection processesb@lieve these improvements contribute
our successes in collecting our accounts receivdliieg the last two quarters of 2003, and willghelaintain our accounts receivable balances
and DBOs at the current targeted levels going fodwa

Unbilled Accounts Receivable and Other Receivables

Revenue earned and recognized prior to the schetdillmg date of an item is reflected as unbileztounts receivable. Unbilled
accounts receivable are an inherent charactedktertain software and professional services #etisns and may fluctuate between quarters,
as these types of transactions typically have sadkeddnvoicing terms over several quarters, as altertain milestone billing events. Our
unbilled accounts receivable and other receivadesf the end of the indicated periods are asva@llfn thousands):

2003 2002
March 31 $25,55¢  $23,39:
June 3( 27,09:¢ 31,36¢
September 3 25,49¢ 33,531
December 3: 18,04 28,85¢

We have consciously managed the unbilled receigadide/n from their high point in 2002, and goingweard, we are targeting a range
comparable to that of the third and fourth quartérd003. The December 31, 2003 unbilled accowstsivable balance consists primarily of
several projects with various milestone and cotdi@dilling dates which have not yet been reaclesubstantial percentage of the December
31, 2003 unbilled accounts receivable are schedoléé billed and collected by the end of the sdapmarter of 2004. However, there can be
no assurances that the fees will be billed ancect@d within the expected time frames.

Income Tax Receivable.

We are in a domestic net operating loss (“NOL")ifpos for 2003, primarily as a result of the Conic$19.6 million arbitration charge
discussed above. Our income tax receivable as oémber 31, 2003 was $35.1 million, which resultsrfrour ability to claim a refund for
2003 income taxes already paid, and from our ghiitcarry back our NOL to prior years. As of Marih, 2004, we had received
approximately $34 million of this income tax recaile, and expect to receive the remaining amourthéend of the second quarter of 2004.

Deferred Revenue

Client payments and billed amounts due from cliémi&sxcess of revenue recognized are recordedfasel@ revenue. Deferred revenue
broken out by source of revenue as of the endeofrttlicated periods was as follows (in thousands):

December 31 March 31, December 31
September 3C June 30,
2003 2003 2003 2003 2002

Processing and related servi $ 6,88¢ $ 6,02¢ $ 6,50¢ $ 3,72¢ $ 3,88i
Software 5,017 6,40¢ 6,471 5,03¢ 2,85¢
Maintenance service 34,59: 32,701 38,98¢ 38,14( 30,99¢
Professional service 9,42 12,42 14,99¢ 15,03¢ 9,76¢
Total $ 55,92¢ $ 57,557 $66,95¢ $61,93¢ $ 47,50
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The changes in deferred revenues related to maintenservices and professional services betweeeniimr 31, 2003 and December
2002 relates to the timing of invoices for suchvges. The majority of our maintenance agreemerasige for invoicing of annual
maintenance fees in the first and fourth fiscalrtpra of the year.

Arbitration Charge Payable

The arbitration charge payable reflected in oursttidated Financial Statements relates to the $lidllion Comcast arbitration award.

During the fourth quarter of 2003, we paid $94.4lian of this amount, and paid the remaining $2%iflion in January 2004.

Investing Activities. Our investing activities typically consist ainghases of property and equipment and investmemigent contracts
and business acquisitions.

Property and Equipment/Client Contracts

Our business is not a capital intensive busineasb@gest capital outlays typically relate to cartgy and statement producti
equipment. Our investment in client contracts tgfticconsists of cash payments to clients as aanitiee to bring business to our company.

Our annual capital expenditures for property angdggent, and investments in client contracts werolows (in thousands):

2003 2002 2001
Property and equipme $9,021  $12,66¢  $20,41"
Client contract: $1,761 3,381 6,62:

As of December 31, 2003, we did not have any meltedmmitments for capital expenditure or for irtwesnts in client contracts. Our
budgeted capital expenditures for 2004 are apprataéiym $15 million, which also represents the maximamount that we can spend for this
purpose in 2004 under our current credit agreement.

Business Acquisitions

Historically, our business model has not includesigaificant amount of business acquisition agfivilowever, in order to expand ¢
international business, in 2002 we acquired sedffairent businesses and related assets for $2iillién. This consisted principally of the
Kenan Business acquisition in February 2002. See Rdo our Consolidated Financial Statements foioge detailed discussion of our most
recent acquisitions. During 2003, our business iadtpan activity was not significant at $2.6 miltidor the year. Our current bank agreement
places certain restrictions upon acquisitions. Assalt, we do not expect any significant acquisii during 2004.

Financing Activities. We have had limited financing activities ovee tast several years, and historically, we hawéren active in th
capital markets.
Long-Term Debt

During 2002, we borrowed $300 million to purchase Kenan Business and to refinance our existinghtetiness at the time. Duri
2002, we repaid approximately $30 million of this@unt, leaving our debt balance at $270 milliomfBecember 31, 2002. We paid $41.1
million on our debt during 2003 (of which $40 nolti was voluntarily prepaid), leaving the balanc§2#8.9 million as of December 31, 2003.
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The Comcast arbitration award payment would haselted in a default of our bank credit agreemerafd3ecember 31, 2003 if not
modified by that date. In the fourth quarter of 20@e favorably amended our bank credit agreemmshirge were in compliance with both the
financial and non-financial covenants of the agreeinas of December 31, 2003. We expect to remainnmpliance going forward. As part of
the amendment, we agreed to a 75 basis point iseliaahe interest rate spread on our bank debtaléeagreed to a number of other
modifications to the credit agreement, includingandatory payment of $30 million no later than 2094, a reduction in our revolving credit
facility to $40 million and additional limitationsn certain investments, acquisitions and capitpkasitures. The $30 million payment in July
is expected to be funded with our $35 million in@tax receivable that is expected to be receiveithglthe first half of 2004. As of March 1
2004, we had received approximately $34 milliomof income tax receivable, and expect to receigeeimaining amount by the end of the
second quarter of 2004. The total scheduled prahgipyments for 2004 (which includes this $30 miillpayment) is $45.1 million, with the
first payment of $1.9 million due in June 2004. @stimated interest expense for 2004 is approxig&ts3 million. See Note 7 to our
Consolidated Financial Statements for additionstassion of our credit agreement, to include audision of the key financial and non-
financial covenants included in the credit agreemen

Common Stock/Stock Warrants

Proceeds from the issuance of common stock reatesr various stock-based employee compensatamspprimarily from the exercise
of stock options. The significant decrease in desim these item in 2003 and 2002 when compare®®d 2s a result of the drop in our stock
price since that time, which left many of the stogkion exercise prices significantly above oucktprice. We do not expect any significant
amount of cash from our stock-based employee cosgtiem plans in 2004.

The $24 million in proceeds from common stock watsan 2001 relates to the exercise of two milkearrants held by Comcast (then
AT&T Broadband). These warrants were issued in 1@9part of our acquisition of certain assets f@omcast, and for entering into our
Master Subscriber Agreement with Comcast. We ctlgrérave no warrants for common stock outstanding.

Repurchase of Common Stock

In 1999, our Board of Directors authorized us,@atdiscretion, to purchase up to a total of terdiamilshares of our common stock from
time-totime as market and business conditions warrantdiaot purchase any of our shares under the seqkchase program during 20!
A summary of the activity to date for this repursbgrogram is as follows (in thousands, exceptspare amounts):

200¢
2002 2001 2000 1999 Total
Shares repurchas: — 1,57: 3,02( 1,09( 65€ 6,33¢
Total amount pai — $18,92( $109,46(  $51,08¢ $20,24:  $199,71(
Weightec-average price per she — $ 120 $ 36.28 $46.87 $30.8 $ 31.57

At December 31, 2003, the total remaining numbeshafres available for repurchase under the progtated 3.7 million shares. Our
amended credit facility restricts the amount of owon stock we can repurchase under our stock repsiecprogram to $50 million, and at this
time, also restricts our ability to purchase anglitohal shares until we achieve a certain leverage. We do not expect to achieve this
leverage ratio in 2004 and as a result, we do xyp¢@ to purchase any shares under this programgi004.

Contractual Obligations and Other Commercial Commitments and Contingencies

We have various contractual obligations that acenged as liabilities in our Consolidated Balanbe&. Other items, such as cert
purchase commitments and other executory contegietaot recognized as liabilities in our ConsobdlBalance Sheet, but are required to be
disclosed.
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The following table summarizes our significant cantual obligations and commercial commitmentsfd3dexember 31, 2003, and the
future periods in which such obligations are expedb be settled in cash. In addition, the talflects the timing of principal payments on our
long-term debt, assuming no voluntary prepaymemsrade (in thousands).

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 + Total
Long-term debt $ 45,13} $26,34¢ $27,66: $ 99,06 $30,71¢ $ — $228,92!
Operating lease 22,72: 19,817 14,58: 11,48¢ 9,83¢ 31,27( 109,72(
Purchase obligatior 39,21¢ 37,90¢ 27,58¢ 25,75: 12,84: — 143,30t
Arbitration ruling paymen 25,18 — — — — — 25,18:
Total $132,25¢ $84,07( $69,83: $136,30: $53,397 $31,27( $507,13:

Our long-term debt obligation is discussed in mabe&il in Note 7 to our Consolidated Financial &tagnts. The operating leases
obligations are discussed in Note 11 to our Codat#id Financial Statements. Our purchase obligationsist primarily of our expected base
fees under the FDC services agreement (discusdédtenll to our Consolidated Financial Statemearsl) data communication services.

Of the total contractual obligations and commerc@hmitments above, approximately $254 milliongfiected on our Consolidated
Balance Sheet and approximately $253 million is not

Capital Resources

Capital Resources We continue to make investments in client caeis, capital equipment, facilities, research aaktbpment, and
our discretion, may continue to make voluntary gipal payments on our long-term debt. The schedptatipal payments on our long-term
debt within the next 12 months are $45.1 millioithwthe first payment due on June 30, 2004 in theunt of $1.9 million. The total 2004
payments include a $30 million mandatory paymeret o later than July 2004. We expect to fund thignpent with the proceeds received
from our $35 million income tax receivable. As oaMh 10, 2004, we had received approximately $3domiof our income tax receivable,
and expect to receive the remaining amount by tideoé the second quarter of 2004. Our estimateztést expense for 2004 is approximately
$13 million. As discussed above, we have no sigaift capital commitments as of December 31, 20@B0Agh it is part of our growth
strategy, we are not likely to enter into any digant business or asset acquisitions during 2604 result of the limitations placed on such
activities by our debt agreement.

As of March 10, 2004, we had approximately $138iamilof cash and short-term investments availabteoperations (which includes the
receipt of approximately $34 million of our incortex receivable). This is after we paid the finab$2million of the $119.6 million arbitration
award to Comcast in January 2004. We believe thiatorrent cash and short-term investments, togettie cash expected to be generated
from future operating activities, will be sufficieto meet our anticipated cash requirements thratdgast 2004. We believe we can obtain
alternative sources of capital resources if necgshawever, the cost for the alternative capiéslources would likely be higher than the cur
costs. Our belief that we can obtain alternatiuerses of capital resources if necessary is badethgly on our future expectations of operal
profitability and future cash flows to be generatiesin operations, to include considerations foraRkpected future impacts from the Comcast
arbitration ruling, and our cost reduction initiegiimplemented in the fourth quarter of 2003.

Market Risk

We are exposed to various market risks, includimgnges in interest rates, foreign currency exchaaigs, and fluctuations and changes
in the market value of our short-term investmektarket risk is the potential loss arising from acbeechanges in market rates and prices. We
have not historically entered into derivatives tirew financial instruments for trading or specwatpurposes.
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Interest Rate Risk. As of December 31, 2003, we had long-term dé$228.9 million, consisting of a Tranche A Termdn (“Tranche
A”) with an outstanding balance of $83.1 millionTeanche B Term Loan (“Tranche B”) with an outstiawgdbalance of $145.8 million, and a
revolving credit facility (the “Revolver”), with aautstanding balance of zero.

In May 2003, we made a $20 million voluntary prempayt on our credit facility, and in August 2003, made an additional voluntary
prepayment of $20 million. As of December 31, 2068, combined scheduled maturities of Tranche ATEmatiche B are as follows (in
thousands):

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 Total
Tranche A $25,12¢  $25,05. $26,37( $659: $ — $ 83,14:
Tranche E 20,00¢ 1,29¢ 1,29t 92,47: 30,71¢ 145,78:
Total payment: $45,137  $26,34f  $27,66 $99,06¢  $30,71¢  $228,92!

The interest rates for the Revolver and the twodinas of term loans are chosen at our option anfased on a base rate or adjusted
LIBOR rate, plus an applicable margin. The base rapresents the higher of the floating prime fatelomestic commercial loans and a
floating rate equal to 50 basis points in excegbefFederal Funds Effective Rate. Effective Decanit) 2003, the date we amended our credit
agreement, the applicable margins are as follows:

Base Adjusted

Rate LIBOR
Tranche A 2.0(% 3.25%
Tranche B 2.25% 3.5(%
Revolver 2.0(% 3.25%

Prior to December 5, 2003, the applicable margingtfe Revolver and Tranche A loans were 1.25%é&we rate loans and 2.50% for
LIBOR loans, and the applicable margins for TranBHeans were 1.50% for base rate loans and 2. @%IBOR loans.

We believe the carrying amount of our long-termtdedproximates its fair value due to the long-telebt’s variable interest rate featur

We have historically selected LIBOR loans (as oppd® base rate loans) as the basis for determminnterest rates for our long-term
debt, and we expect to continue to utilize LIBORrls in the foreseeable future. We have the opficelecting the length of time (ranging
from one to twelve months) that we lock in the LIB@ontract rate. As of December 31, 2003, $224lBomiof our credit facility’s
outstanding balance was in a six-month LIBOR carttad an adjusted LIBOR rate of 1.18% (for a coretinate of 4.43% for Tranche A and
4.68% for Tranche B) that is effective through Ma&4, 2004. The remaining outstanding balance & #4dllion was in a six-month LIBOR
contract at an adjusted LIBOR rate of 1.2125% #&capmbined rate of 4.4625% for Tranche A and 4.4 & Tranche B) that is effective
through June 30, 2004. The weighted-average irteatess (adjusted LIBOR plus applicable margin)loanche A and Tranche B was 4.10%
and 4.96% during 2003 and 2002, respectively. Wieetxto enter into similar length LIBOR contractsidg 2004 as a means to manage our
interest rate risk on the long-term debt. In additiwe continually evaluate whether we should einterderivative financial instruments as an
additional means to manage our interest rate boiskas of the date of this filing, have not entergd such instruments.

Foreign Exchange Rate Risk Our approximate percentage of total reveneeeiated outside the U.S. for the years ended Desedl
2003, 2002 and 2001 was 32%, 25% and 2%, respBctiMee increase between 2002 and 2001 in revegemlsrated outside the U.S. is
attributable to the Kenan Business acquisitiongbrbary 2002. Prior to the Kenan Business acqaiisithur foreign currency transactions
related entirely to the operations conducted thiomgr United Kingdom (“U.K.”) subsidiary, CSG Intettional Limited (“CSGI").
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Our exposure to variability in foreign currency kaage rates prior to the Kenan Business acquisitesnot significant due to the small
amount of our business conducted outside the Wdwas further mitigated by the fact that purchaseksales in the U.K. were typically in
the same currency with similar maturity dates améwants, and certain transactions were denominatedS. dollars.

The increase between 2002 and 2003 in revenuesagedutside the U.S. is primarily attributabléhe reduction in our revenues in the
second half of 2003 as the result of the Comcéstration ruling (see the “Comcast and AT&T Broadtddusiness Relationship” section
above). Factoring out the effect of the Comcastration ruling, the approximate percentage of mtal revenues generated outside the U.S.
would have been 25%. We expect that in the forédedature, the percentage of our total revenudsetgenerated outside the U.S. will be
slightly greater than 25%.

We have become more exposed to the impact of #eges in foreign currency exchange rates as a kfdhle expansion of our
international business. We have not historicalllzetd derivative financial instruments for purpesgf managing our foreign currency exche
rate risk. For 2003, approximately 73% and 16%peesvely, of our revenues were denominated in ddars and the Euro. Since a
significant amount of our revenues are denominatédlS. dollars, a decline in the value of locakfgn currencies against the U.S. dollar will
result in our products and services being more msige to a potential foreign buyer, and in thosg#ances where our goods and services have
already been sold, could result in the accountsivable being more difficult to collect. We do emés enter into revenue contracts that are
denominated in the currency of the individual coyife.g., United Kingdom, Brazil, and Japan) or Hewnomic Union (“EU”) where we have
substantive operations. This practice serves aduaal hedge to finance the expenses incurredosettocations. We are currently evaluating
whether we should enter into derivative finanaistiuments for the purposes of managing our foreigrency exchange rate risk. A
hypothetical adverse change of 10% in the Decei®be?003 exchange rates would not have a matetjzét upon our results of operations.

Market Risk Related To Short-term Investment@ur cash and cash equivalents as of Decembh&08B and 2002 were $105.4 million
and $94.4 million, respectively. Our cash balararestypically “swept'into overnight money market accounts on a dailyshasd at times, a
placed into somewhat longer term cash equivalesttiiments. We have minimal market risk for our casti cash equivalents due to the
relatively short maturities of the instruments.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
CSG Systems International, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeets of CSG Systems International, Inc. (avbeale corporation) and
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2003 and 2002thenklated consolidated statements of operat&ioskholders’ equity, and cash flows for
the years then ended. These consolidated finasteissments are the responsibility of the Compamgaagement. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these consolidated finastiéé&ments based on our audits. The consolidataddial statements of CSG Systems
International, Inc. and subsidiaries for the yeatezl December 31, 2001, were audited by other@sditho have ceased operations. Those
auditors expressed an unqualified opinion on tlwosesolidated financial statements in their repated February 28, 2002.

We conducted our audits in accordance with audiiagdards generally accepted in the United Stdtdserica. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to sbteasonable assurance about whether the finestatements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on aliasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digids in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting principged and significant estimates made by managenentelhas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaenferred to above present fairly, in all mategspects, the financial position of CSG
Systems International, Inc. and subsidiaries d3emfember 31, 2003 and 2002, and the results af dbperations and their cash flows for the
years then ended, in conformity with accountingngiples generally accepted in the United StateSnoérica.

As discussed in Note 2, effective January 1, 2688 Company changed its method of accounting tarksbased compensation.

As discussed above, the 2001 consolidated finastasments of CSG Systems International, Inc.sabdidiaries were audited by other
auditors who have ceased operations. As descnibBdte 4, the Company changed the compositiorsakjportable segments during the year
ended December 31, 2002, and the amounts in the fR@hcial statements relating to reportable segmkave been restated to conform to the
2002 composition of reportable segments. We auditecdjustments that were applied to restateidododures for reportable segments
reflected in the 2001 financial statements. Ina@pinion, such adjustments are appropriate and baga properly applied. However, we were
not engaged to audit, review, or apply any procesltow the 2001 financial statements of CSG Systetamational, Inc. other than with resp
to such adjustments, and accordingly, we do notesgoan opinion or any other form of assurancéer2001 consolidated financial stateme
taken as a whole.

KPMG LLP

Denver, Colorado
March 10, 2004
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
To CSG Systems International, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balgineets of CSG Systems International, Inc. (avizele corporation) and
Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2001 and 2000thencklated consolidated statements of incomekbtidders’ equity and cash flows for each
of the three years in the period ended Decembe2(®11. These financial statements are the respbtysdf the Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on thesarftial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with audgiagdards generally accepted in the United Statesse standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonablerasse about whether the financial statementsraeedf material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence stipgdhe amounts and disclosures in the finarstaiements. An audit also includes asse:
the accounting principles used and significannestes made by management, as well as evaluatimgy#érall financial statement presentation.
We believe that our audits provide a reasonablis iasour opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referre@love present fairly, in all material respedts, financial position of CSG Systems
International, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of Decend3tie2001 and 2000, and the results of their omersiand their cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended December 31, 20@bnformity with accounting principles generadlgcepted in the United States.

A RTHURA NDERSENLLP

Omaha, Nebraska,
February 28, 2002

The report of Arthur Andersen LLP (Andersen) isoayof a report previously issued by Andersen dorirary 28, 2002. We have not
been able to obtain a re-issued report from Anderme Andersen has ceased operations. As a r@adiysen has not consented to the
inclusion of its report in this Annual Report onrifol0-K. The report of Andersen refers to a comsdéd balance sheets as of December 31,
2001 and 2000 and statements of income, stockildquity and cash flows for the years ended Deegr@lh, 2000 and 1999 not included
herein. Because Andersen has not consented tadhusion of its report in this Annual Report on Fot0K, it may be more difficult for you 1
seek remedies against Andersen and your abilisgéd relief against Andersen may be impaired. Trtantial statements have been revised to
reflect the changed composition of the Companyperable segments for the year ended December081, » conform to the 2002
composition of reportable segments.
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CSG SYSTEMS INTERNATIONAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except share and per share amount

ASSETS
Current asset
Cash and cash equivalel
Shor-term investment

Total cash, cash equivalents and s-term investment

Trade accounts receiva—

Billed, net of allowance of $11,145 and $12,(

Unbilled and othe
Purchased Kenan Business accounts recei
Deferred income taxe
Income taxes receivab
Other current asse

Total current asse
Property and equipment, r
Software, ne
Goodwill
Client contracts, ne
Deferred income taxe
Other asset

Total asset

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY

Current liabilities:
Current maturities of lor-term debr
Client depositt
Trade accounts payak
Accrued employee compensati
Deferred revenu
Income taxes payab
Arbitration charge payab
Other current liabilitie:

Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilities:
Long-term debt, net of current maturiti
Deferred revenu
Other noi-current liabilities

Total nor-current liabilities

Commitments and contingenci
Stockholder’ equity:

Preferred stock, par value $.01 per share; 10,000s8ares authorized; zero shares issued and roalitsd
Common stock, par value $.01 per share; 100,00G08fes authorized; 8,911,634 and 11,028,555 sheses/ed for employee stock purchase

plan and stock incentive plans; 53,788,062 andZ&528 shares outstandi
Additional paic-in capital
Deferred employee compensat
Treasury stock, at cost, 5,499,796 and 5,979,78fs
Accumulated other comprehensive income (lc
Unrealized gain (loss) on sh-term investments, net of t
Cumulative translation adjustmet
Accumulated earning

Total stockholder equity

Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthessolidated financial statements.
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2003 2002
$ 105,39 $ 94,42
— 1,01
105,39' 95,43
130,60: 160,41
18,04: 28,85¢
— 602
9,13/ 8,35¢
35,07¢ —
11,691 10,56¢
310,03° 304,23
38,21¢ 46,44;
37,78( 50,47¢
219,19¢ 220,06
57,45¢ 63,80
53,32 37,16t
8,75¢€ 9,12¢
$ 724,77t $ 731,31
$ 45,13 $ 16,37(
17,178 16,35(
21,29 24,81(
32,418 26,707
52,65t 45,41
20,72t 30,46¢
25,18! —
25,81¢ 24,33
240,39t 184,45
183,78 253,63(
3,27 2,09¢
6,53 9,03¢
193,50 264,75t
592 577
281,78 255,45
(4,45€) (3,902)
(171,11) (186,04!)
1 (6)
6,51¢ 1,06(
177,45 214,97:
290,78t 282,10!
$ 724,77 $ 731,31
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CSG SYSTEMS INTERNATIONAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(in thousands, except per share amount:

Revenues
Processing and related services (inclusive in 2(83.3,472 charge for arbitration rulii
attributable to the third quarter of 20(
Software
Maintenance (inclusive in 2003 of $450 charge fbiteation ruling attributable to the thii
quarter of 2003
Professional service

Charge for arbitration ruling attributable to peisarior to July 1, 200
Total revenues, ni
Expenses
Cost of processing and related servi
Cost of software and maintenar
Cost of professional servic
Total cost of revenue
Gross margin (exclusive of depreciati
Operating expense
Research and developmt
Selling, general and administrati
Depreciatior
Restructuring charge
Kenan Business acquisiti-related expense
Total operating expens
Operating income (lost
Other income (expense
Interest expens
Interest and investment income,
Other
Total other

Income (loss) before income tax
Income tax (provision) benet

Net income (loss

Basic net income (loss) per common sh
Net income (loss) available to common stockholi

Weighted average common sha

Diluted net income (loss) per common shi
Net income (loss) available to common stockholi

Weighted average common sha

Year ended December 31

2003 2002 2001
$342,38t  $373,03.  $339,25
41,43 68,37¢ 72,35(
93,56¢ 89,07¢ 15,80¢
67,95¢ 80,44¢ 49,49:
545,33¢  610,93;  476,90¢
(105,679 — —
439,66(  610,93.  476,90¢
14124;  141,06¢ 121,98
72,70: 57,58( 32,67+
63,91( 64,34: 21,35¢
277,850  262,99; 176,01
161,80 347,94 300,89
62,92 73,67¢ 52,22:
109,21« 111,59 52,14¢
17,37¢ 18,83¢ 14,54¢
11,85( 12,72: —
— 29,95’ —
201,36 246,78 118,01
(39,567 101,15 181,97
(14,71)  (14,03) (3,039)
1,43 1,90¢ 4,46¢
4,381 (1,486) 39
(8,899 (13,619 1,467
(48,46() 87,54,  183,44:
22,18: (42,920  (69,52)
$ (26,27 $ 44,61t $113,92:
$ (051) $ 086 $ 2.1F
51,43: 52,11¢ 52,89!
$ (051) $ 08 $ 2.0¢
51,43: 52,52t 54,63¢




The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statemer
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CSG SYSTEMS INTERNATIONAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY
For the Years Ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2(

(in thousands)

Shares of .
Common B Deferred‘ Foreign Unrea}llzed
Additional Compensatior Gains Total
Stock Currency ,
Outstanding Common Common o Treasury Transiation (Losses) on Accumulated Stockholders
Stock Paid-in Related to Short-Term
Stock  Warrants Capital Employees Stock Investments  Earnings Equity
BALANCE, December 31, 2000 52,53( $ 54:$ 17,43( $ 180,75( $ — $(71,49) 8% (654 $ (350) $ 64,947 $ 191,16¢
Comprehensive incom
Net income — — — — — — — — 113,92:

Reclassification adjustment for loss

included in net income (net of tax

benefit of $199 — — — — — — — 33t —
Unrealized gains on short-term

investments (net of tax provision of

$19) — — — — — — — 14¢ —

Foreign currency translation adjustme — — — — — — (13¢) — —
Comprehensive incomr — — — — — — — — — 114,26°
Repurchase of common stock pursuant to stock

repurchase progra (3,020 — — — —  (109,46) — — — (109,467)
Exercise of stock optior 1,11¢ 12 — 15,70 — — — — — 15,71¢
Exercise of stock warran 2,00( 20 (17,430() 41,41( — — — — — 24,00(
Purchase of common stock pursuant to employee

stock purchase ple 36 — — 1,27¢ — — — — — 1,27¢
Tax benefit of stock options exercis — — — 13,08: — — — — — 13,08:
BALANCE, December 31, 2001 52,66: $ 57t $ — $ 252,22 $ — $(180,959) $ (792) $ 134 $ 178,86¢ 250,04¢
Comprehensive incom

Net income — — — — — — — — 44,61¢

Reclassification adjustment for loss

included in net income (net of tax

benefit of $13 — — — — — — — (49 —
Unrealized gains on short-term

investments (net of tax provision of

$25) — — — — — — — (92) —

Foreign currency translation adjustme — — — — — — 1,85z — —
Comprehensive incorr — — — — — — — — — 46,33(
Repurchase of common stock pursuant to stock

repurchase progra (1,579 — — — — (18,919 — — — (18,919
Exercise of stock optior 80 2 — 1,16¢ — — — — — 1,16¢

Restricted common stock granted under equity

compensation plar 44E — — — (5,317 13,83 — — (8,51%) —
Stocl-based employee compensation expe — — — — 1,41: — — — — 1,41
Purchase of common stock pursuant to employee

stock purchase ple 111 — — 1,61¢ — — — — — 1,61¢
Tax benefit of stock options exercis — — — 44¢ — — — — — 44¢

BALANCE, December 31, 200: 51,727 $ 571% — $ 25545 % (3,909 $(186,04Y) $ 1,06 $ 6)$ 214,97.$ 282,10
Comprehensive los
Net loss — — — — — — — — (26,277)
Unrealized gain on investments (net of
tax provision of $6 — — — — — — — 7 —
Foreign currency translation adjustme — — — — — — 5,45¢ — —
Comprehensive los — — — — — — — — — (20,81)
Purchase of common stock pursuant to employee
stock purchase ple 12¢ 2 — 1,31: — — — — — 1,31°¢
Exercise of stock optior 41 — — 35E — — — — — 35¢E
Tax benefit of stock options exercis — — — 33 — — — — — 33
Issuance of restricted common stock pursuant to
agreemen 48C — — — (3,697 14,93
Issuance of restricted common stock pursuant to
employee stoc-based compensation pla 21C 2 — ) — — — — — —
Issuance of restricted common stock pursuant to
tender offer to exchange stock options for

~

(11,237 —

restricted stocl 1,21« 12 — (12) — — — — — —
Repurchase of common stock pursuant to

employee stoc-based compensation pla (13) — — (207) — — — — — (207)
Stocl-based employee compensation expe — — — 2,41¢ 3,14: — — — — 5,55¢
Tax benefit of common stock warrai — — — 22,43¢ — — — — — 22,43¢
BALANCE, December 31, 2003 53,78¢ $ 59:$ — $ 281,78 $ (4,456 $(171,11) $ 6,51¢ $ 18 177,45 $ 290,78t

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statemer
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)

Cash flows from operating activitie
Net income (loss
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to @ehcprovided by operating activit—
Depreciatior
Amortization
Charge for i-process purchased research and develop
Restructuring charge for abandonment of facili
Gain on sho-term investment
Deferred income taxe
Tax benefit of stock options exercis
Stoclk-based employee compensat
Impairment of intangible asse
Changes in operating assets and liabilil
Trade accounts and other receivables
Other current and n-current asset
Arbitration charge payab
Income taxes payable/receival
Accounts payable and accrued liabilit
Deferred revenue

Net cash provided by operating activit

Cash flows from investing activitie
Purchases of property and equipm
Purchases of sheterm investment
Proceeds from sale of sh-term investment
Acquisition of businesses and assets, net of cegphired
Acquisition of and investments in client contra

Net cash used in investing activiti

Cash flows from financing activitie
Proceeds from issuance of common st
Proceeds from exercise of stock warr
Repurchases of common stc
Proceeds from lor-term deb
Payments on lor-term debi
Proceeds from revolving credit facili
Payments on revolving credit facili
Payments of deferred financing co

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on ¢

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of pe

Cash and cash equivalents, end of pe

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow informat
Cash paid during the period —
Interest
Income taxe:

Year ended December 31

2003 2002 2001
$(26,27) $ 44,61¢ $113,92
17,37¢ 18,83¢ 14,54¢
24,30: 22,13¢ 10,00(
— 19,30¢ —
4,42 6,791 —
(19 (49) 724
2,01¢ (600) 8,75¢
33 44¢ 13,08:
5,55¢ 1,417 —
— 1,90¢ —
45,60 (17,870) 29,24¢
(1,536) (2,28¢) (3,409)
25,18" — —
(41,242 12,99¢ 1,561
(2,009) 7,00¢ 5,47(
6,93: (26,53) (13,810
60,35: 88,12« 180,09
(9,02) (12,66  (20,41)
(7,769) (4,20) (106,33
8,79t 56,56¢ 63,86
(2,619  (270,56) (17,750
(1,767) (3,387) (6,629)
(12,369  (234,25) (87,260
1,67C 2,78¢ 16,99!
— — 24,00
(207 (18,919  (109,46)

— 300,00 —
(41,079 (61,500 (26,750
— 5,00( —

— (5,000 —
(1,077) (8,365) —
(40,689 214,00 (95,226)
3,67¢ (3,617) (185)
10,97: 64,25¢ (2,586)
94,42 30,16¢ 32,75
$10539° $ 94,42« $ 30,16¢
$ 11,25 $ 12,02: $ 2,46(
$ 13,03 $ 30,767 $ 45,98

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statemer
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CSG SYSTEMS INTERNATIONAL, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. General

CSG Systems International, Inc. (* Compan” or “CSC"), a Delaware corporation, was formed in October 18%dis based in Denve
Colorado. The Company is a global leader in nexiegation billing and customer care solutions fa ¢hble television, direct broadcast
satellite, advanced IP services, next-generatiobileoand fixed wireline markets. The Company’s bamation of solutions, delivered in both
outsourced and licensed formats, enables its slisndeliver high quality customer service, improperational efficiencies and rapidly bring
new revenue-generating products to market. The @omis an S&P Midcap 400 company. The Company sdtselients through its two
operating segments: the Broadband Services Divigien“Broadband Division”) and the Global Softw&ervices Division (the “GSS
Division”).

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation. The accompanying Consolidated Financial Statésnieclude the accounts of the Company and its
subsidiaries. All material intercompany accountd ttansactions have been eliminated.

Translation of Foreign Currency. The Company’s foreign subsidiaries use as faertional currency the local currency of the
countries in which they operate. Their assets mfulities are translated into United States of Aicee (‘U.S.”) dollars at the exchange rates in
effect at the balance sheet date. Revenues, expemstcash flows are translated at the average ofiexchange prevailing during the period.
Translation gains and losses are included in congorgve income (loss) in stockholders’ equity. Baation gains and losses are included in
the determination of net income (loss).

Use of Estimates in Preparation of Consolidateddficial Statements. The preparation of the accompanying Consolii&ieancial
Statements in conformity with accounting principieserally accepted in the U.S. requires managetoenake estimates and assumptions
affect the reported amounts of assets and liasligind disclosure of contingent assets and ligsilét the date of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenues and expensegydheneporting period. Actual results could diffiemm those estimates. The more critical
estimates and related assumptions that affect timep@ny’s financial condition and results of opexasi are in the areas of: (i) revenue
recognition; (ii) allowance for doubtful accoun&eivable; (iii) impairment assessments of longdiassets; (iv) business restructurings; (v)
loss contingencies; (vi) income taxes; (vii) bussveombinations and asset purchases, (viii) sbasled compensation, and (ix) capitalizatio
internal software development costs.

Revenue Recognition The Company derives its revenues from th@faltg sources (i) processing and related services; (ii) software
licenses; (iii) maintenance fees; and (iv) professal services. Processing and related servicesinegeconsist primarily of monthly processing
fees generated from the Broadband Division’s cereise bureau customer care and billing applicatialled CSG CCS/BP (“CCS”) and
services ancillary to CCS. Software revenues andteraance fees consist of the sale of softwaredies and the related software maintenance
services. Professional services revenues consistafiety of consulting services, such as produptementation and customization, business
consulting, project management, and training sesii@he Company uses various estimates and judgrimecdnnection with the determinati
of the amount of revenues to be recognized (inqdar for software license fees and professiopatises revenues) in each accounting pel

The Company’s primary revenue recognition critéridude: (i) persuasive evidence of an arrangem@ndelivery; (iii) fixed or
determinable fees; and (iv) collectibility of feés.light of the current economic environment inigththe Company operates, the assessment o
collectibility is particularly critical in determing whether revenue should be recognized. Revesmaesecognized only if the Company
determines that the collection of the fees incluidetthe arrangement are considered probable tfie Company expects the
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CSG SYSTEMS INTERNATIONAL, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS —(Continued)

client to pay all amounts in full when invoiced).haking its determination of collectibility forwenue recognition purposes, the Company
considers a number of factors depending upon teeifipaspects of an arrangement.

For multiple-element arrangements that are notestilbp a higher level of authoritative literatuttee Company follows the guidelines of
the Financial Accounting Standards Board’s (“FASBiherging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) Issue No. @Q-Accounting for Revenue
Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables” (“EITF GIt"), in determining the separate units of accoumtin particular, the Company’s
multiple-element software arrangements, which &eussed in greater detail below, are not subgetiié separation criteria of EITF @1- Fot
those arrangements subject to the separationiar@€EITF 00-21, the Company accounts for eactinefindividual units of accounting as a
separate and discrete earnings process considanmang other things, whether a delivered item ladisevto the client on a standalone basis.
For such multipleeslement arrangements, total revenue is allocatéltetgeparate units of accounting based upon olgeand reliable evident
of the fair value of the undelivered item. The defi@ation of separate units of accounting, anddistermination of objective and reliable
evidence of fair value of the undelivered item hoaquire judgments to be made by the Company atloption of EITF 00-21 (effective for
transactions entered into after June 30, 2003hbakad a significant impact on the Company’s antiog to date.

Processing and related services revenues are lieedgas the services are performed. Processingafedsgpically billed monthly based
on the number of client’s customers served, amgibarvices are typically billed on a per transattbasis, and customized print and mail
services are billed on a usage basis.

Software license fees are recognized using theetings of: (i) American Institute of Certified PitbAccountants Statement of Position
(“SOP™) 97-2, “Software Revenue Recognition”, aseaated (“SOP 97-2"); (i) SOP 98-9, “Software Revemecognition, With Respect to
Certain Transactions” (“SOP 98-9"); and (iii) SE@f6 Accounting Bulletin No. 104, “Revenue Recogmif’ (“SAB 104"). For software
transactions that have multiple elements, suclhaware, maintenance and professional servicesCtmapany allocates the contract value to
the respective elements based on vendor-specificitie evidence (“VSOE") of their individual faialues, determined in accordance with
SOP 972. For those software transactions that have neléfgments for which the Company does not have &/8ffair value on one or mo
of the delivered elements, the Company allocatestmtract value to the respective elements based the residual method in accordance
with SOP 98-9. Under the residual method, the wadisted fair value of the undelivered elementsigded and subsequently recognized as
they are delivered. During 2003 and 2002, a subiatgercentage of the Company’s software licensgngements were accounted for using
the residual method in accordance with SOP 98-9.

Arrangements for software license fees consistcipaily of one-time perpetual licenses, but alsdude term license arrangements.
Software licenses are generally sold with some tfpmpacity measurement (e.g., per seat basisitetevenue billed, etc.). Software license
fees are typically recognized upon delivery, dejendpon the nature and extent of the implememntadind/or customization services, if any
be provided by the Company, and assuming all athanue recognition criteria have been met.

The Company does not provide for rights of retuomsts software sales. Payment terms on softwaesgements vary depending upon
several factors, including, among others, the gfabe client, and the amount of fees includechmarrangement. For those software license
arrangements that include multiple installmentspayments generally are due within one year froendate of delivery of the software.
Software license arrangements with extended payteems (e.g., arrangements in which software feesiat due within one year of the date
of delivery of the software) are recognized asfées become due and payable.

The Company’s arrangements may include projectsriplfementation services that involve significaraguction, modification or
customization of the software being licensed. Adoagly, software license and professional serviesgnues related to these arrangements are
recognized over the period the services are
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provided under the percentage-of-completion (“PO@&thod of accounting in conformity with: (i) SOP-9; (ii) Accounting Research

Bulletin No. 45, “Long Term Construction Type Cats” (“ARB 45”); and (iii) SOP 81-1,Accounting for Performance of Construction T
and Certain Production Type Contracts” (“SOP 81-Whder the POC method of accounting, softwarenBeeand professional services
revenues are recognized as the services are pedoifhe Company typically uses hours performed progect as the measure to determine
the percentage of the work completed. The Compaugesof the POC method of accounting on a proggatires estimates of the total project
revenues, total project costs, and the expectedtgffiecessary to complete a project. Changediimatss may result in revisions to the project-
to-date revenue recognized in the period in whighrevised estimates are determined. A numbeneifrial and external factors can affect the
Companys estimates. Provisions for any estimated lossemoompleted contracts are made in the period ictwéuch losses become evid

For certain software transactions, the Companyagased to “host” the software on Company-ownedard. In accordance with EITF
Issue No. 00-03, “Application of AICPA StatementRifsition 97-2 to Arrangements That Include thehRig Use Software Stored on Another
Entity’s Hardware”, these hosting arrangementdra@ed as a separate element of the softwaregamasnt when the client has a contractual
right to take possession of the software at ang tiloring the hosting period without incurring arsfigant penalty and it is feasible for the
client to either run the software on its own hartevar contract with another party unrelated toGoenpany to host the software.

Software maintenance fees (also known as postadrntustomer support, or PCS) are recognized satalgr the service period. The
Company’s maintenance services consist primarilglieht and product support, technical updates (bwy fixes, etc.), and unspecified
upgrades or enhancements. If specified upgradestlmncements are offered in an arrangement, whictre, they are accounted for as a
separate element in accordance with SOP 97-2.

Revenue from professional services billed on a-t@me-materials basis is recognized as the serai@performed and as amounts due
from customers are deemed collectible and contadlgtnon-refundable. Revenue from fixed price ldagn contracts is recognized using the
POC method of accounting (as described abovehttividual contracts using hours performed on agutoas the measure to determine the
percentage of the work completed. In instances whemnvork performed on fixed price agreements igeti#tively short duration, or if the
Company is unable to make reasonably dependaldteatss at the outset of the arrangement, the Coynpsas the completed contract method
of accounting whereby revenue is recognized whemitbrk is completed.

Deferred Revenue and Unbilled Accounts Receivablfelient payments and billed amounts due fromnt$ién excess of revenue
recognized are recorded as deferred revenue. Revenagnized prior to the scheduled billing dateeéorded as unbilled accounts receivable.
Deferred revenue as of December 31, broken oubbsce of revenue, was as follows (in thousands):

2003 2002

Processing and related servii $ 6,88¢ $ 3,881
Software 5,017% 2,85¢
Maintenance service 34,59: 30,99«
Professional service 9,427 9,76¢
Total $55,92¢  $47,50:
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Postage. The Company passes through to its clients dise @f postage that is incurred on behalf of thomts, and typically requires
an advance payment on expected postage costs. athesece payments are included in “client depogitstie accompanying Consolidated
Balance Sheets and are classified as currentitiabitegardless of the contract period. The Compaats the cost of postage against the po
reimbursements, and includes the net amount ineggicg and related services revenues. The Comgangdmcluded that net treatment of
these revenues is appropriate as the Companyerfgrally has little or no credit risk with regacdpostage, as the Company requires postage
deposits from its clients based on contractualhgeenents prior to the mailing of customer statesid(ii} has no discretion over the supplier of
postal delivery services; and (iii) is not the paityn obligor in the postal delivery service. Theatatost of postage incurred on behalf of clients
that has been netted against processing and relateides revenues for the years ended Decemb@083, 2002, and 2001 was $159.1
million, $139.6 million, and $120.1 million, resgely.

Cash and Cash Equivalents. The Company considers all highly liquid investits with original maturities of three months adsl¢o be
cash equivalents.

Short-term Investments and Other Financial Instrntee  The Company’s short-term investments at Deeer8th, 2002 consisted of a
certificate of deposit, with a market value ancbaginal cost of approximately $1 million.

The Company classifies all of its short-term invgests as “available-for-sale” in accordance witht&nent of Financial Accounting
Standards (“SFAS”) No. 115, “Accounting for Certémvestments in Debt and Equity Securities”. Shertn investments are stated at market
value, with unrealized gains and losses on sudhrigies included, net of the related income taxeetfin stockholders’ equity. For all short-
term investments, unrealized losses that are ceresid'other than temporary” are recognized immetijjah earnings. Realized gains and
losses on short-term investments are includedrmigs and are derived using the specific idergtfan method for determining the cost of the
investments.

The Company’s other balance sheet financial instntsias of December 31, 2003 and 2002 includeaaditash equivalents, accounts
receivable, accounts payable, and long-term dedstaBse of their short maturities, the carrying am®of cash equivalents, accounts
receivable, and accounts payable approximate fhieivalue. The carrying amount of the Companytsgderm debt approximates fair value
due to its variable interest rates. The Company e utilize any derivative financial instrumefds purposes of managing the market risks
related to its financial instruments.

Concentrations of Credit Risk. In the normal course of business, the Compsumxposed to credit risk. The principal concerdregiof
credit risk are cash deposits, short-term investsmand the Company’s accounts receivable. The Coynpgularly monitors credit risk
exposures and takes steps to mitigate the liketittddhese exposures resulting in a loss. The Cagplaces cash deposits with financial
institutions it believes to be of sound financiahdition. It is the Company’s intent to maintaitow-risk, liquid portfolio of short-term
investments.
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Historically, credit losses on accounts receivdiaee been predictable because of the concentraftimvenues with a small number of
large, established companies. The Kenan Busineggsiion in early 2002 (Note 3) has changed theqggpal concentration of credit risk
related to accounts receivable, as the Companynbasd from having its primary clients being largstablished cable television and satellite
companies located in the U.S., to being a wideeafgelecommunications service providers locatedughout the world. The Company’s
billed accounts receivable balance by geograplgione(based on the location of the client) as of&mber 31 is as follows (in thousands):

2003 2002
North America (principally the U.S $101,15¢  $119,76!
Europe, Middle East and Africa (principally Eurog 20,21¢ 27,05¢
Asia Pacific 14,28 15,95¢
Central and South Americ 6,177 9,714

Total billed accounts receivak 141,83t 172,49¢
Less allowance for doubtful accoul (11,149 (12,079

Total billed accounts receivable, net of allowa $130,69.  $160,41°

The Company does not require collateral or otheursty to support accounts receivable. The Compamjuates the credit worthiness of
its clients in conjunction with its revenue recdgnm processes, as discussed above, as well agythits ongoing collectibility assessment
processes for accounts receivable. The Companytaimaséran allowance for doubtful accounts receivélalged upon factors surrounding the
credit risk of specific clients, historical trenaisd other information. The Company uses varioumasts and judgments in determining the
adequacy of the allowance for doubtful accountsik@ble. The activity in the Company’s allowancedoubtful accounts receivable for the
years ended December 31 is as follows (in thouga

2003 2002 2001
Balance, beginning of ye $12,07¢ $ 6,31C $5,001
Additions (reductions) to expen (529) 7,614 2,271
Reductions for receivables written (410 (1,845 (969)

Balance, end of ye: $11,148  $12,07¢  $6,31(

Property and Equipment Property and equipment are recorded at costt(@stimated fair value if acquired in a busirasabination)
and are depreciated over their estimated usefes langing from three to ten years. Depreciatiqgrerge is computed using the straight-line
method for financial reporting purposes. Depreciagxpense for all property and equipment is rédléseparately in the aggregate and is not
included in the cost of revenues or the other campts of operating expenses. Depreciation for irectar purposes is computed using
accelerated methods.

Software. The Company expends substantial amounts oangsand development (“R&D”), particularly for ngsoducts or services,
or for enhancements of existing products and sesviEor internal development of software produwas &re to be licensed by the Company
Company follows SFAS No. 86, “Accounting for thegBoof Computer Software to Be Sold, Leased, oeitse Marketed” (“SFAS 86”).
SFAS 86 requires that the cost of developing sofivie expensed prior to establishing technolodézsibility, and those costs be capitalized
once technological feasibility has been establiskegitalization ceases upon general release dfdfteare. For development of software tc
used internally (e.g., processing systems softwére)Company follows SOP 98-1A¢counting for the Costs of Computer Software Depet
or Obtained for Internal Use”
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(“SOP 98-1"). SOP 98-1 requires that the cost afettgping software for internal use be expensedr poidhe application development stage.
The determination of whether internal software R&&3ts are subject to capitalization is, by its rgthighly subjective and involves various
judgments

Amortization of acquired software and capitalizetéinal software R&D costs begins when the prodasavailable for general release
to clients and is computed separately for eachymiogenerally on a straight- line basis over thareged economic life of the product.
Generally, an estimated life of three to five yadargsed in the calculation of amortization. Theoaimation of software is reflected in cost of
software and maintenance in the accompanying Cinlaget Statements of Operations.

Realizability of Long-Lived Assets. The Company evaluates the recoverability ofoitgydived assets, other than goodwill, in accorde
with SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairmemtisposal of Long-Lived Assets”. Long-lived assats required to be evaluated for
possible impairment on a periodic basis (e.g., igulg) if events occur or circumstances change ¢batd indicate that a possible impairmer
these assets may have occurred. A long-lived &ssapaired if future undiscounted cash flows agsed with that asset are insufficient to
recover the carrying amount of the long-lived as$eteemed impaired, the long-lived asset is erittlown to its fair value.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.The Company follows the provisions of SFAS W42, “Goodwill and Other Intangible
Assets” (“SFAS 142") in accounting for acquired dwadll and other intangible assets. Under SFAS 1H@ Company ceased amortizing
goodwill as of December 31, 2001, and never amedtgoodwill that was acquired in business combamatifor which the acquisition date was
after June 30, 2001. Instead, goodwill is requietle tested for impairment on an annual basisjsrehuired to be evaluated for possible
impairment on a more periodic basis (e.g., quattérevents occur or circumstances change thaldcodlicate a possible impairment may h
occurred. Goodwill is considered impaired if thergag value of the reporting unit which includéetgoodwill is greater than the estimated
fair value of the reporting unit. The adoption 45 142 did not result in a material differencgyoodwill amortization between periods, as
amortization related to goodwill for the year endetember 31, 2001 was $0.6 million. As requiredSBAS 142, the Company completed its
initial assessment test of its goodwill balancesfabe adoption date and concluded no impairmégbodwill recorded as of December 31,
2001 had occurred as of June 30, 2002. Under SERSsEparate intangible assets that have finigs loontinue to be amortized over their
estimated useful lives.

Restructuring Charges. The 2003 restructuring charges were accoumtenh faccordance with SFAS No. 146, “Accounting @osts
Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities” (“SFAB16"), which the Company adopted effective Janda3003, and SFAS No. 112,
“Employers’ Accounting for Postemployment Benefitar-Amendment of FASB Statement No. 5 and 43”. T0@22estructuring charges
were accounted for in accordance with EITF 94-3ability Recognition for Certain Employee TermiratiBenefits and Other Costs to Exit an
Activity (Including Certain Costs Incurred in a Resturing)”. SFAS 146 requires that the liabilfyr costs associated with a restructuring
activity be recognized when the liability is incelt Under EITF 94-3, a liability for a restructiugiactivity was generally recognized at the date
of the Company’s commitment to the restructurirenpl

Loss Contingencies. The Company follows the guidelines of SFAS Blg:Accounting for Contingencies” (“SFAS 5”) in dgimining
the appropriate accounting and disclosures foCiiapany’s loss and gain contingencies. The Compansues for a loss contingency when:
(i) it is probable that an asset has been impaoed,liability has been incurred; and (ii) the ambof the loss can be reasonably estimated. The
determination of accounting for loss contingenéesubject to various estimates and judgments.ddrapany does not record the benefit from
a gain contingency until the benefit is realized.
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Earnings Per Common Share (“EPS”). EPS has been computed in accordance with SFAS 28, “Earnings Per Share”. Basic EPS is
computed by dividing income available (loss atttétnile) to common stockholders (the numerator) lywikighted average number of common
shares outstanding during the period (the denomipaasic and diluted EPS are presented on thedathe Company’s Consolidated
Statements of Operations. Diluted EPS is consistihtthe calculation of basic EPS while considgrihe effect of potentially dilutive
common shares outstanding during the period. Uadeshiares of restricted stock are not includedérbiasic EPS calculation. The dilutive
effect of the unvested shares of restricted stockthe stock appreciation right (Note 13) are ideldiwith the dilutive effect of common stock
options in the table below.

No reconciliation of the EPS numerators is necgsaamet income (loss) is used as the numeratoedlfperiods presented. The
reconciliation of the EPS denominators is includethe following table (in thousands). Because@oepany was in a net loss position for the
year ended December 31, 2003, potentially dilutim@mon shares of 302,000 (related to certain uadedtares of restricted stock and cer
stock options) are excluded in calculating dilutisfS, as their effect is antidilutive.

Year Ended December 31

2003 2002 2001

Basic weighted average common shi 51,43 52,11¢ 52,89
Dilutive shares from common stock warra — — 23t
Dilutive shares from common stock optic — 40¢ 1,51z
Diluted weighted average common she 51,43 52,52t 54,63¢

For the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002, & 26mmon stock options of 1.5 million, 4.5 mitlicand 1.7 million shares,
respectively, were excluded from the computatiodibfted EPS as their effect was antidilutive, @ity because the exercise prices of these
stock options were greater than the average marleat of the common shares for the respective derim addition, for the year ended
December 31, 2003, 1.4 million shares of unveststticted stock were excluded from the computatiodiluted EPS as their effect was

antidilutive.

The diluted potential common shares related tatmmon stock warrants were included in the comjurtaif diluted EPS through their
excise date of February 2001.

Stock-Based Compensation During the fourth quarter of 2003, the Compadgpted the fair value method of accounting foclst
based awards in accordance with SFAS No. 123, “Aeting for Stock-Based Compensation” (“SFAS 1289%ing the prospective method of
transition as outlined in SFAS No. 148, “Accountfiog Stock-Based Compensation - Transition and IDssce—An Amendment of FASB
Statement No. 123" (“SFAS 148"). The adoption oASF123 was effective as of January 1, 2003. Urlteeiptospective method of transition,
all stock-based awards granted, modified, or sktiteor after January 1, 2003, are accounted facaordance with SFAS 123. Stock-based
awards granted prior to January 1, 2003, continleetaccounted for in accordance with Accountirigdisles Board No. 25, “Accounting for
Stock Issued to Employees”, and related Intergoetat(*“APB 25”), and follow the disclosure provia®of SFAS 123 and SFAS 148.

At December 31, 2003, the Company had five stodeti@ompensation plans (Note 13). The Companydedastock-based
compensation expense of $5.6 million, $1.4 millgrd zero, respectively, for the years ended DeceB81he2003, 2002 and 2001.
Approximately $1.1 million of the 2003 expense wlaectly attributed to the adoption of SFAS 123tha$0.6 million of this amount attributed
to the first three quarters of 2003. See Note t4flalitional discussion of the 2003 quarterly impH#adopting SFAS 123.
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Awards under the Company’s stock incentive plamsegaly vest over periods ranging from three tarfpears. Because the Company
follows APB 25 for all stock-based awards grantddrgo January 1, 2003, and the prospective mettidcansition under SFAS 148 for stock-
based awards granted, modified, or settled onter danuary 1, 2003, compensation expense recarded Company’s accompanying
Consolidated Statements of Operations is lesswuteat would have been recognized if the fair valasda method under SFAS 123 had been
applied to all awards for all periods. Had compénsaexpense for the Company’s five stock-basedpmsmmation plans been based on the fair
value at the grant dates for awards under thosesia all periods, consistent with the methodolo§$sFAS 123, the Company’s net income
(loss) and net income (loss) per share availabt®tomon stockholders for the years ended Decenthe2®3, 2002, and 2001 would
approximate the pro forma amounts as follows (ouiands, except per share amounts):

Year Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
Net income (loss), as report $(26,277)  $44,61¢ $113,92:
Add: Stock-based employee compensation expensadiedlin reported net
income (loss), net of related tax effe 3,45¢ 87¢ —
Deduct: Total stock-based compensation expensendieted under the fair
value-based method for all awards, net of related tascts (18,677 (19,199 (13,319
Net income (loss), pro forn $(41,49Y)  $ 26,30¢ $100,60:
Net income (loss) per shal
Basi—as reporte! $ (0.5) $ 0.8¢ $ 2.1t
Basic—pro forma (0.8]) 0.5C 1.9C
Diluted—as reportet (0.5)) 0.8t 2.0¢
Diluted—pro forma (0.8)) 0.5C 1.84

The fair value of each option grant was estimatethe date of grant using the Black-Scholes opgiooing model, with the following
weighted average assumptions for options grantéukilyears ended December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2&dectively: riskree interest rates |
2.8%, 3.6%, and 4.8%; dividend yield of zero petdenall years; expected lives of 5.5 years, eérg, and 5.3 years; and volatility of 60.0%,
60.0%, and 50.0%.

Comprehensive Income (Loss).The components of comprehensive income (lassjedlected in the accompanying Consolidated
Statements of Stockholders’ Equity. Foreign curyeinanslation adjustments are not generally adju&ieincome taxes as they relate to
indefinite investments in non-U.S. subsidiaries.

Reclassification. Certain December 31, 2002 and 2001 amounts lbeee reclassified to conform to the December 8032
presentation.

3. Business Acquisitions
The Company followed the provisions of SFAS No.,I*Business Combinatio” in accounting for the following acquisitior

Kenan Business Acquisitio

Description of the Acquisition. On February 28, 2002, the Company closed caitsement to acquire the billing and customer care
assets of Lucent Technologies Inc. (“Lucent”). Lnttebilling and customer care
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business consisted primarily of: (i) software pradand related maintenance and consulting seraiogsired by Lucent when it purchased
Kenan Systems Corporation in February 1999; (iDLB)IATS Data Manager mediation software; and (il§raents of Lucent’s client support,
product support, and sales and marketing organiza{icollectively, the “Kenan Business”). The Kearsiness is a global provider of
convergent billing and customer care software amdices that enable telecommunications serviceigeos to bill their customers for existing
and nextgeneration services, including mobile, Internetglime telephony, cable television, and sateliteignificant percentage of the Ker
Business revenues are generated outside the UeSCaimpany purchased the Kenan Business as a neeexygand the marketing of its
products and services internationally.

Allocation of Purchase Price The Company paid Lucent $250.9 million in céstthe Kenan Business and incurred $5.1 million i
transaction costs resulting in a total purchaseepsf approximately $256 million. The determinatadrthe estimated fair value of assets
acquired and liabilities assumed in the Kenan Bessracquisition required the use of significangjudnt by the Company’s management. In
establishing certain estimated fair values, the Gamy utilized the services of independent valuagigperts. The following table summarizes
the estimated fair values of the acquired assefsiar and assumed liabilities assumed (in thousand

Current assets (primarily accounts receiva $ 62,70(
Fixed assets (primarily computer equipment andelealsl improvements 9,00(
In-process purchased research and develop 19,30(
Acquired client contract 6,00(
Acquired software 46,60(
Goodwill 195,30(

Total assets acquire 338,90(
Current liabilities (74,900
Non-current liabilities (8,000

Total liabilities assume (82,900
Net assets acquire $256,00(

In-process purchased research and development')RRpresented research and development of sodteearhnologies, which had not
reached technological feasibility and have no a#tdve future use as of the acquisition date. IRIRI3 expensed as of the close of the
acquisition and consisted of projects related gaificant enhancements to existing products, as asethe development of new products. The
Company estimated the fair value of the Kenan BassriPRD projects, on a project-by-project basisigian income approach. The risk-
adjusted discount rates used in this estimatiooge®ranged from 25% to 35%. As of December 313 20bstantially all of the IPRD proje:
have been completed, with one remaining projectdeled to be completed in the first quarter of 2004

The acquired client contracts intangible assetesgmted the estimated value of client contractsetkiated at the date of the Kenan
Business acquisition, and was amortized on a $irdiige basis over the twelve months ended FebrB8r2003. The acquired software
intangible assets represented the estimated valhe three primary developed technology produ€ts® Kenan Business, and is being
amortized on a straight-line basis over sixty menth

Goodwill represented the excess of the purchase for the Kenan Business over the net of the atsassigned to assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. Approximately 20% of the Kergrsiness goodwill has been allocated to foreigrjuasdictions where the Company will
not receive a local income tax benefit. Howevee, lompany may realize an income tax benefit undsr tax laws with respect to the foreign
allocated
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goodwill. The Company has assigned 100% of the gilbth the GSS Division operating segment (whiokbludes the acquired Kenan
Business).

Liabilities assumed consisted primarily of deferredenue related to assumed service obligationplame-related liabilities (e.g.,
accrued vacation and involuntary severance of Ké&hainess employees terminated immediately upasirgioof the acquisition), and a
liability related to the costs (on a present vdasis) of abandoning certain assumed facility leaBke deferred revenue amounts represented
the estimated fair value of the obligations the @any assumed at the acquisition date to complefiegsional services contracts and software
maintenance contracts. The rollforward of the ligbfor the abandonment of certain assumed faciébises from the acquisition date through
December 31, 2003 has been combined with the Coyfpather facility abandonment reserves in Note 8.

Kenan Business Acquisition-Related Expensels conjunction with the Kenan Business acqigisitthe Company incurred certain direct
and incremental acquisition-related expenses. Tdragany completed the integration of the Kenan Bagsrin 2002, and therefore, there were
no similar expenses in 2003. The acquisition-rell@epenses for the year ended December 31, 20q#esented below (in thousands).

In-process research and developn $19,30(
Impairment of an existing intangible as 1,90¢
Employesrelated costs (primarily existing CSG employee reliincy costs 3,931
Integration costs (e.g., legal, accounting, ¢ 4,36
All other 452

Total Kenan Business acquisit-related expense $29,957

The impairment of an existing intangible assettesld@o a data mediation software asset, which wasiged by the Company in 1998. As
part of the Kenan Business acquisition, the Compamyired data mediation software assets with smpchnology, resulting in the
impairment of the existing software asset.

The results of the Kenan Business’ operations fiteendate of acquisition (February 28, 2002) throDglcember 31, 2002 have been
included in the accompanying Consolidated Stateroe@iperations. Pro forma information on the Compsnesults of operations for the
years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, assundragdfuisition of the Kenan Business had been cdetpbes of the beginning of each ye
is presented in the table below (in thousands,@xce per share amounts). The unaudited pro fanfamation is not necessarily indicative
the results of operations had the acquisition digtoacurred at the beginning of 2001, nor is itessarily indicative of future results.

Year Ended
December 31,
2002 2001
(Unaudited)
Total revenue $638,79¢  $699,90-
Net income 61,527 52,30¢
Diluted net income per common she
Net income available to common stockholc $ 117 $ 0.9¢
Weighted average common sha 52,52t 54,63¢
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Other Business Acquisitions

ICMS Business Acquisitio  On August 30, 2002, the Company acquired aentaéellectual property and client contracts asasieal witt
IBM’s Integrated Customer Management System (“ICM&Jistomer care and billing solution for $10.4 roillin cash, plus $0.4 million in
acquisition costs. The ICMS platform is a standalsalution that offers customer care, provisioniaging and billing and is based on the IBM
eServer iSeries system. The Company acquired I@Mi&ctease its client base and further enhangmitsolio of solutions in support of the
Company'’s international growth strategy.

Davinci Business Acquisition. On December 20, 2002, the Company acquired 18f%e common stock of Davinci Technologies Inc.
(“Davinci"), a Toronto, Canada-based company, @2%mnillion in cash, plus $0.1 million in acquisiti costs. The acquisition of Davinci gave
the Company ownership of Davinci’s m-Céateolution which has been integrated with the CompaHkgnan Business product suite to enh
its customer self-care and electronic bill presemtiand payment features. The m-Care solution ées be re-named CSGrotal Care. Base
upon the amount of revenue that is associatedthitlCSG™ Total Care solution in 2004, 2005, and 2006, tHierseof Davinci are eligible to
receive additional purchase price payments of u§2t8 million. As of December 31, 2003, these add#l purchase price payments have not
been reflected in the Davinci purchase price. Tdr@ingent payments will be recorded as additionatpase price if and when the events
associated with the contingencies occur.

plaNet Business Acquisition. On September 18, 2001, the Company acquiretlffGhe common stock of plaNet Consulting, Inc.
(“plaNet”), a Delaware corporation, for $16.7 noli in cash. The Company acquired plaNet primadlghitain its assembled management and
consulting workforce to expand the Company’s preifasal services capabilities.

Summary of Purchase Price Allocations.The following table summarizes the estimatédvalues of the acquired assets and assumed
liabilities at the date of acquisitions for the abanentioned businesses (in thousands):

ICMS Davinci plaNet
Current assel $ — $ 80C $ 1,50C
Property and equipme — 20C 40C
Deferred income taxe — — 4,30(

Acquired software and technolo 5,70( 2,55( —
Goodwill 7,10C — 12,20(
Total assets acquire 12,80( 3,55( 18,40(
Current liabilities (2,000 (300) (1,700
Net assets acquire $10,80C $3,25(  $16,70(

The results of operations of for these acquisit@rmsincluded in the accompanying ConsolidatedeStants of Operations for the periods
subsequent to their respective acquisition datestd®ma information on the Compamsyesults of operations for the years ended DeceBih
2002 and 2001, to reflect these acquisitions igonesented as the results of operations duringethesods are not material to the Company’s
results of operations.
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4. Comcast Arbitration

Arbitration Ruling. The Company has been involved in various Ipgateedings with its largest client, Comcast Caxion
(“Comcast”) (formerly AT&T Broadband) since 200nsisting principally of arbitration proceedingsated to the Company’s 15-year
exclusive contract (the “Master Subscriber Agreeti)emth Comcast. In October 2003, the Company ez a ruling in the arbitration
between the Company and Comcast. A summary ofriliation ruling is as follows:

» Comcast does not have the right to terminate thetd&ubscriber Agreement between the two compamigsr the terminatio
provisions of the contrac

* The Company maintains the exclusive rights to pgetke AT&T Broadband video and high-speed datiomeys acquired by
Comcast

» The Company did not obtain the right to processatiiditional Comcast customers;

» Comcast is not entitled, pursuant to an amendneethitet Master Subscriber Agreement, to deconvetbmesrs from the Compa’s
system;

» Comcast is entitled to relief under the Most Faddxations (“MFN”)clause of the Master Subscriber Agreement and ggoirward,
Comcast is entitled to receive charges and feesdoais the Compar's agreements with other clien

e Comcast also was awarded MFN damages for the pettimdugh September 30, 2003 of $119.6 mill

« If Comcast unilaterally terminates the Master Stibsc Agreement, it shall be liable to the Companger a contractual provision
relating to consequential damages, for contractadga® in the amount of $44 million. In the evenswdh termination, the Company
would be required to provide Comcast with termimatassistance for seven mont

Arbitration Award. As stated above, the arbitration ruling incldi@a award of $119.6 million to be paid by the Campto Comcast.
The award was based on the arbitrator’s deternaindtiat the Company had violated the MFN claush@Master Subscriber Agreement
between the Company and Comcast. The Company extdnd impact from the arbitration ruling in theacper ended September 30, 2003 as a
charge to the Broadband Division’s revenue. As ifigelcin the arbitration ruling, the $119.6 milliamas segregated such that $105.7 million
was attributable to periods prior to July 1, 2083 $13.9 million was attributable to the third qeaof 2003. Although the arbitration ruling
did not segregate the award by revenue type, tmep@oy estimates that $13.5 million of the $13.diamilattributable to the third quarter of
2003 can be attributed to processing revenuesthenemaining $0.4 million can be attributed totwafe maintenance fees. These amounts
have been netted against the respective third eu2003 gross revenues (i.e., revenues prior tarbieration award) in the Company’s
presentation in the accompanying Consolidated ®&tés of Operations and the Company’s segmenttsasuNote 5.

During the fourth quarter of 2003, the Company &8d.4 million of the arbitration award, and theneening $25.2 million was paid in
January 2004, with all amounts paid with availatdegoorate funds. The amount of the award accruedest at eight (8) percent per annum
from October 7, 2003 until paid, which resultecapproximately $1 million of interest expense beiagorded in the fourth quarter of 2004. .
Note 7 for additional discussions of the impactheaf arbitration ruling on the Compé's credit agreement.

The Companys insurance policies did not provide any relief&oals the arbitration award. The Company expeatsdeive an income t:
benefit of approximately $44 million (based on atirated income tax rate of approximately 37%thar $119.6 million arbitration award
paid to Comcast through a reduction of 2003 inctemes otherwise payable and through the Compatlisyao carry back net operating
losses to previous years.
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Contract Rights and Obligations. The Master Subscriber Agreement has an origanad of 15 years and expires in 2012, and contains
certain performance criteria and other obligatitmbe met by the Company. Comcast has the rigtertoinate the Master Subscriber
Agreement in the event of certain defaults by tbenfany. As stated above, the arbitrator ruled @mahcast currently does not have the right
to terminate the Master Subscriber Agreement utidetermination provisions of the contract.

As stated above, the arbitrator ruled that the Gomgpmaintains the exclusive rights to process th& ABroadband video and high-
speed data customers acquired by Comcast. Pribetarbitration ruling, the annual minimum finaddammitments due from Comcast under
the Master Subscriber Agreement were approxim&®&B0 million. The arbitrator ruled that the minimyrayment provision in the agreement
between the parties is subject to the MFN clauke. éffect of this ruling is that, while the Compangintains its exclusive right to process the
Comcast customers previously owned by AT&T Broadhalne minimum financial obligation under the agneat is reduced to reflect the
charges and fees under a contract with anothertcltowever, as stated above, the arbitrator alkmirthat if Comcast unilaterally terminates
the Master Subscriber Agreement, it shall be liablthe Company under a contractual provision irgjatio consequential damages, for contract
damages in the amount of $44 million. In the exe#rguch termination, the Company would be requicegrovide Comcast with termination
assistance for seven months. In accordance witarthirator’s ruling, the Company and Comcast etestan amendment to the Master
Subscriber Agreement on November 12, 2003. The dment specifies the fees and procedures assoeiétethe seven months of
termination assistance the Company will provideutdheither party terminate the contract, and aéde forth the manner in which Comcast
would be entitled to obtain its customer data @eaonversion format.

The Company generates a significant percentage cévenues under the Master Subscriber Agreembate are inherent risks
whenever a large percentage of total revenuesisetdrated with one client. One such risk is tehtuld Comcast terminate the Master
Subscriber Agreement in whole or in part for anyhaf reasons stated above, or significantly redlueeevenues expected to be generated
under the Master Subscriber Agreement, it coulceleamaterial adverse effect on the Company’s filcondition and results of operations
(including possible impairment of the intangiblsets related to the Master Subscriber Agreement).

5. Segment Reporting and Significant Concentradins

Overview. Segment information has been prepared in aacgslwith SFAS No. 131, “Disclosures About Segmehtn Enterprise
and Related Information” (“SFAS 131"). SFAS 131uigs disclosures of selected information aboutaipey segments and related
disclosures about products and services, geograpbés, and major customers. SFAS 131 requiresitipgisegments to be determined based
on the way management organizes a company for paspaf making operating decisions and assessifigrpemce. Based on the guideline:
SFAS 131, the Company determined that through epr28, 2002, it had one reportable segment: custaare and billing solutions for the
worldwide converging communications markets.

With the acquisition of the Kenan Business on Faky28, 2002 (Note 3), the Company reorganizetdutsness into two operating
segments: the Broadband Division and the GSS Dividror comparative purposes, the Company’s segmfmmation for the year ended
December 31, 2001 has been restated to refle@dhgpany’s current reportable segments.

The accounting policies of the operating segmergdtee same as those described in the summargmfisant accounting policies in
Note 2 above
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Broadband Division. The Broadband Division consists principallytioé historical processing operations and relatésvace products
of the Company. Products and services from the draad Division made up approximately two-thirdshef Companys total revenues in 20
and 2002, and substantially all of the Companyeneles in 2001. The Broadband Division generategatantial percentage of its revenues
by providing customer care and billing servicetht® U.S. and Canadian cable television and sa&dtiitustries through its core service bureau
processing product, CCS. The Broadband Divisiols &sl software products (e.g., ACSR, Workforce Egg, etc.) and professional services
principally to its existing base of processing mi&to: (i) enhance the core functionality of #s\dce bureau processing application; (ii) incre
the efficiency and productivity of the clients’ gpgons; and (iii) allow clients to effectively taut new products and services to hew and
existing markets, such as high-speed data/ISP adiRets, and residential telephony.

The Broadband Division’s full suite of processisgftware, and professional services allows cliemtsutomate their customer care and
billing functions. These functions include: (i) gt and activation of customer accounts; (ii) salggport; (iii) order processing; (iv) invoice
calculation; (v) production and mailing of invoi¢€gi) management reporting; (vii) electronic pneseent and payment of invoices; and (viii)
deployment and management of the client’s fielthhégans.

As discussed in Note 4, the Broadband Divisiontecpssing and maintenance revenues for 2003 haverbdeced by the $119.6 million
charge for the Comcast arbitration award recorddtie third quarter of 2003 and a reduction in nexeefrom Comcast in the fourth quarter of
2003 as a result of the arbitration ruling.

GSS Division. The GSS Division consists of the Company’sdtalone software products and related services;iwiincipally
includes the Kenan Business, and to a much leggged, the acquired ICMS, Davinci, and plaNet kesges. Products and services from the
GSS Division made up approximately one-third of @mmpany’s total revenues in 2003 and 2002. Rewerelated to the GSS Division in
2001 were insignificant. The majority of the KerBusiness revenues are generated from internatigreaations. For 2003, approximately 7
of the GSS Division’s revenues were generated deittie U.S.

The GSS Division is a global provider of convergeifitng and customer care software and servicasehables telecommunications
service providers to bill their customers for eixigtand next-generation services, including mobilegrnet, wireline, cable television, and
satellite. The GSS Divisioa’revenues consist of software license and mainteniees, and various professional and consuléngces relate:
to its software products (principally, implementatiservices) The GSS Division’s primary product offerings inckudi) the Kenan Business
software product suite, a core convergent billitagfprm, and its key components and modules, whiclude, among others, billing
mediation, threshold servers, real-time rating engines, regesaitlement solutions and pre-paid/pesid convergent billing solutions, aimec
helping telecommunication service providers marthge operations more effectively and efficientiyid (ii) professional services. The GSS
Division’s professional services organizations jdeva variety of consulting services, such as pecoamplementation and customization,
business consulting, project management, and ngservices.

Segment Results. Management evaluates the performance of theatpg segments based on total revenues and cotidribmargin.
Contribution margin is defined as segment operatvgnues less segment operating expenses. Thezenwenaterial inter-segment revenues
for the periods presented below. Certain operaipenses managed at the corporate level (primfagliities and other infrastructure support
costs, stock-based compensation and managemergdx)nwhich can be attributed to the operating segsnare allocated as an indirect
expense charge to the operating segments. Any g@staged at the corporate level (e.g., marketegal| accounting, etc.), which are not
attributable to the operating segments, are reftbats corporate
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overhead costs. The Kenan Business acquisitioterekxpenses and restructuring charges are excfumtadsegment operating expenses. The
Company does not allocate activities below the atey level to its reported operating segments. &g@ment’s review of segment operating

expenses focuses primarily on the functional expefie.g., wages, employee benefits, data processsig, etc.). Additionally, the Company
does not allocate specifically-identifiable asgetscapital additions thereto) to its operatingreegts, or manage those assets by segments.
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The Company’s operating segment information anga@te overhead costs are presented below (indnds}. Information for the year
ended December 31, 2001 has been restated to ootddhe 2003 and 2002 presentation.

Year Ended December 31, 2003

Broadband GSS
Division Division Corporate Total
Processing revenues (Broadband Division inclusi
2003 of $13,472 charge for arbitration ruling
attributable to the third quarter of 2003) $ 338,93t $ 3,44¢ $ — $342,38!
Software revenue 5,141 36,29( — 41,43:
Maintenance revenues (Broadband Division inclugive
2003 of $450 charge for arbitration ruling attritlofe tc
the third quarter of 2003) (. 18,75t 74,80¢ — 93,56¢
Professional services revent 1,55( 66,40¢ — 67,95¢
364,38: 180,95 — 545,33¢
Charge for arbitration ruling attributable to pesgorior tc
July 1, 2003 (2 (105,679 — — (105,679
Total revenues, ni 258,70: 180,95 — 439,66(
Segment operating expenses 211,10: 190,16¢ 66,10 467,37
Contribution margin (loss) (: $ 47,60( $ (9,209 $(66,107) $ (27,71)
Contribution margin (loss) percenta 18.4% (5.)% N/A (6.9%
Amortization of investment in client contracts $ 6,43i $ — $ — $ 643
Depreciation and other amortizati 9,64: 19,45¢ 3,68t 32,78¢
Total depreciation and amortizati $ 16,08( $ 19,45¢ $ 3,68t $ 39,22

Year Ended December 31, 2002

Broadband GSS
Division Division Corporate Total

Processing revenu $ 372,42t $ 607 $ — $373,03
Software revenue 24,23: 44,14: — 68,37t
Maintenance revenut 20,27« 68,801 — 89,07t
Professional services revent 2,26 78,18! — 80,44¢

Total revenue 419,20( 191,73. — 610,93.
Segment operating expenses 212,08 203,80¢ 51,20: 467,09°
Contribution margin (loss) (! $ 207,11 $(12,07) $(51,207) $ 143,83
Contribution margin (loss) percenta 49.4% (6.39% N/A 23.5%
Amortization of investment in client contracts $ 6,197 $ — $ — $ 6,19
Depreciation and other amortizati 11,19¢ 15,99« 5,48 32,67(

Total depreciation and amortizati $ 17,39: $ 15,99¢ $ 548. $ 38,86
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Year Ended December 31, 200

Broadband
GSS
Division Division Corporate Total

Processing revenu: $339,25¢ $ — $ —  $339,25¢
Software revenue 72,35( — — 72,35(
Maintenance revenut 15,80¢ — — 15,80¢
Professional services revent 46,37¢ 3,11¢ — 49,49

Total revenue 473,79( 3,11¢ — 476,90¢
Segment operating expens 205,74¢ 53,30¢ 35,88: 294,93:
Contribution margin (loss $268,04- $(50,18¢) $(35,88Y) $181,97!
Contribution margin (loss) percenta 56.6% N/A N/A 38.1%
Amortization of investment in client contracts $ 5,47 $ — $ — $ 5,47
Depreciation and other amortizati 11,67¢ 2,28 3,12¢ 17,09:

Total depreciation and amortizati $ 17,15: $ 2,287 $ 3,128 $ 22,56¢

(1) The Company’s segment operating expenses and logtidn margin (loss), determined in accordance WifAP, exclude: (i)
restructuring charges of: $11.9 million and $12illiom, respectively, for the years ended Decenfer2003 and 2002; and (ii) Kenan
Business acquisitic-related expenses of $30.0 million for the year dridecember 31, 200

(2) The Company recorded the impact from the Comcadtration ruling in the third quarter ended Septem®0, 2003 as a charge to
revenue. Based on the arbitrator’s ruling, the $8 18illion award was segregated such that $105llfomivas attributable to periods
prior to July 1, 2003, and $13.9 million was attitiible to the third quarter of 20(

(3) Amortization related to investments in client caits has been reflected as a reduction in progeasit related services revenues in the
segment information presented above and in thenaganying Consolidated Statements of Operati

Reconciling information between reportable segmeatgribution margin (loss) and the Company’s ctidated totals is as follows (in
thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
Segment contribution margin (los $(27,71)  $143,83! $181,97"
Restructuring charge (11,850 (12,72 —

Kenan Business acquisiti-related expense — (29,959 —

Operating income (los: (39,56)) 101,157 181,97¢
Interest expens (14,717 (14,039 (3,039
Interest income and oth 5,81¢ 42C 4,50¢
Income (loss) before income tax $(48,46() $ 87,54« $183,44.

Of the $11.9 million restructuring charges recorded003, $2.1 million related to the BroadbandiBiiwn, $9.5 million related to the
GSS Division and $0.3 million related to Corpor&the $12.7 million restructuring charges recadrde2002, $1.9 million related to the
Broadband Division, $10.4 million related to the&Bivision and $0.4 million related to Corporate.
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Geographic Regions. The Company uses the location of the clierthadasis of attributing revenues to individual miies. Financial
information relating to the Company’s operationsgeypgraphic region is as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
Total Revenues:
North America (principally the U.S $300,08"  $459,22:  $467,76:
Europe, Middle East and Africa (principally Eurag 85,251 79,21« 9,14«
Asia Pacific 31,03t 40,51( —
Central and South Americ 23,28: 31,98¢ —
Total revenue $439,66( $610,93: $476,90¢

For revenues generated outside North America, mglescountry accounts for more than 5% of the Caomjsatotal revenues.

As of December 31

2003 2002
Long-lived Assets (excludes intangible asset:
North America (principally the U.S $33,23t  $40,62:
Europe, Middle East and Africa (principally Euro| 3,611 4,42(
All other 1,372 1,39¢
Total lon¢-lived asset: $38,21¢  $46,44.

Significant Clients The Company'’s largest client is Comcast. See=M for additional discussion of the Company’sibess
relationship and contract with Comcast. Duringytears ended December 31, 2003, 2002, and 200&vénhues from Comcast represented
approximately 26%, 27%, and 54%, respectivelyptdltrevenues; and (ii) revenues from Echostar Comoations Corporation (“Echostar”)
represented approximately 15%, 11%, and 10%, réisphc of our total revenues. For 2003, these petages were calculated using the total
net revenue base of $439.7 million (which inclutfes$105.7 million of the Comcast arbitration cleaadtributed to periods prior to July 1,
2003). The calculation of these percentages for &strand Echostar for 2003 using a revenue bab®4&.3 million (which excludes the
$105.7 million of the Comcast arbitration chargeilatited to periods prior to July 1, 2003) woulduk in 21% and 12%, respectively. These
two clients are included in the Broadband Division.

As of December 31, 2003 and 2002, net billed actoreteivable balances attributable to significdients were: (i) 18% and 24%,
respectively, attributable to Comcast; and (ii) 1886 10%, respectively, attributable to Echostam@uinications Corporation.
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6. Long-Lived Assets

Property and Equipmen Property and equipment at December 31 cornsfigte following (in thousands

Computer equipmet
Leasehold improvemen
Operating equipmet
Furniture and equipme!
Construction in proces

Les—accumulated depreciatic

Property and equipment, r

Useful Lives
(years) 2003 2002
3 $ 52,48! $ 53,81
5-10 16,73: 15,90¢
35 42,75 34,15¢
8 15,10¢ 14,91¢
— 67t 1,67(C
127,74° 120,46
(89,529 (74,029
$ 38,21¢ $ 46,44:

Goodwill. The Company does not have any intangible agsttsndefinite lives other than goodwill. The ¢iges in the carrying
amount of goodwill by operating segment for thergeanded December 31, 2003 and 2002 are as fo(lovilsousands):

Balance as of January 1, 2C
Goodwill acquired during ye:

Effects of changes in foreign currency exchangesrand othe

Balance as of December 31, 2(

Adjustment to Kenan Business acquired assets annresl liabilities
Effects of changes in foreign currency exchangesrand othe

Balance as of December 31, 2(

Broadband :
GSS Consolidatec
Division Division
$ 628 $ 12,83¢ $ 13,46
— 202,34¢ 202,34¢
— 4,25k 4,25k
622 219,44: 220,06¢
— (2,499 (2,499
— 1,627 1,627
$ 628 $218,57¢ $ 219,19¢

The Company performed its annual goodwill impairttest during the quarters ended September 30, 2002002, and concluded that

no impairment of goodwill had occurred in eitheripd.

Other Intangible Assets. The Company'’s intangible assets subject to &radion consist of client contracts and softwaks.of
December 31, the carrying values of these assets asefollows (in thousands):

2003

2002

Accumulated

Accumulated

Gross it Gross it
Carrying Amortization Net Carrying Amortization Net
Amount Amount Amount Amount
Client contract: $108,43: $ (50,977 $57,45¢ $106,75¢ $ (42,959 $ 63,80¢
Software 100,73° (62,957 37,78( 99,06( (48,582 50,47¢
Total $209,16¢ $(113,93() $95,23¢ $205,81¢ $ (91,53¢) $114,28:
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Client contracts consist of both investments ierdlicontracts and acquired client contracts. Imeests in client contracts are principally
incentives provided to new or existing clients emeert and process their customers on the Compangt®mer care and billing systems.
Investments in client contracts are amortized tgtaber the lives of the respective contracts, \Whiave termination dates that range from
2008 through 2012. The amortization of the invesitsién client contracts has been reflected as actexh in processing and related services
revenues in the accompanying Consolidated Stateneé@perations, and for the years ended Decemhez®3, 2002, and 2001, was $6.4
million, $6.2 million, and $5.4 million, respectiye

Acquired client contracts represent assets acquirtite Kenan Business acquisition, which were dired over their estimated useful
life of one year (fully amortized as of February, 2803). The amortization of acquired client coctisds reflected in cost of software and
maintenance in the accompanying Consolidated Statenof Operations, and for the years ended Dece®ih&003 and 2002, was $1.1
million and $5.4 million, respectively.

The Company'’s software intangible assets relagottware and similar intellectual property rightsri various business acquisitions,
which are being amortized over their estimateduldefes ranging from three years to five yearse Bmortization of software is reflected in
cost of software and maintenance in the accompgryonsolidated Statements of Operations, and toy#ars ended December 31, 2003,
2002, and 2001 was $14.4 million, $8.5 million, &1d9 million, respectively.

The Company expended $62.9 million, $73.7 milliang $52.2 million, respectively, for internal sofine R&D projects in the years
ended December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001. The Contpdmot capitalize any internal software R&D 0t the years ended December 31,
2003, 2002, or 2001 as the costs subject to caggitedn during these periods were not material. Thenpany did not have any capitalized
internal software R&D costs included in its Decem®&, 2003 or 2002 accompanying Consolidated Bal&teets.

The aggregate amortization for client contracts softivare for the years ended December 31, 200R,2ihd 2001, was $21.9 million,
$20.1 million, and $7.3 million, respectively. Bdsen the December 31, 2003 net carrying value esahintangible assets, the estimated
amortization for each of the five succeeding fisedrs ending December 31 will be: 2004—$20.5 anitli2005—%$19.5 million; 2006—%$16.4
million; 2007—$8.6 million; and 2008—3%$7.0 million.

Carrying Value of the GSS Division’s Intangible étss As of December 31, 2003, there is $37.8 miliionet intangible assets and
$218.6 million of goodwill that is attributable tiee GSS Division, which includes the assets froemKknan Business, ICMS, Davinci, and
plaNet acquisitions. Due to the poor economic ciols of the global telecommunications industryd &me resulting impacts this situation had
on the GSS Division’s business, to include decini@venues, segment contribution losses, and itigtion of various cost reduction and
restructuring programs since the acquisition of€kean Business in early 2002, the Company perfdroeetain financial analyses (to include
work by an outside valuation firm) during the setguarter of 2003 and concluded that based onwodk, there had been no impairment of
the GSS Division’s goodwill or its other long-livedsets.

As stated above, the Company performed its anmad\ill impairment test in the third quarter of Z)@nd concluded that no
impairment of the GSS Division’s goodwill had ocmd at that time. The Company also concluded thauents or changes in circumstances
had occurred during the fourth quarter of 2003 #orant an impairment assessment of GSS Divisiooéglgill and/or other long-lived
intangible assets. The Company will continue to ioorthe carrying value of these assets duringett@nomic downturn in this industry sector.
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If the current economic conditions worsen and/ketimnger to recover than anticipated, it is reabbnpossible that a review for impairmen
the goodwill and/or related long-lived intangiblesats in the future may indicate that these assetsnpaired, and the amount of impairment
could be substantial.

Carrying Value of Broadband Division’s Intangiblsgets. As of December 31, 2003, the Broadband Divi$iad intangible assets
related to client contracts with a net carryingueabf approximately $57 million. Of this amountpapximately $55 million relates to the
Company’s Master Subscriber Agreement with Comdaise to the Comcast arbitration ruling (Note 4 @ompany evaluated for impairment
the intangible assets attributable to the Comcasstt®t Subscriber Agreement and concluded thatdhgsen such analysis, there has been no
impairment of those long-lived assets as of DecerBibe2003. The Company will continue to monitoe tarrying value of these assets as it
discusses with Comcast possible modifications éoMlaster Subscriber Agreement as a result of thigration ruling. Further, should Comcast
terminate the Master Subscriber Agreement, the tiration of these intangible assets would be sigmiitly accelerated.

7. Debt
The Company’s debt at December 31 consists ofdlh@ifing (in thousands):

2003 2002
2002 Credit Facility
Tranche A term credit facility, due February 20iferest at adjusted LIBOR plus 3.25% (weighted-age
rate of 4.43% at December 31, 20 $ 83,14 $107,32!
Tranche B term credit facility, due February 2008erest at adjusted LIBOR plus 3.50% (weightedage
rate of 4.68% at December 31, 20! 145,78 162,67
$40 million revolving credit facility, due Februa®p07, interest at adjusted LIBOR plus applicabs&gm — —
228,92! 270,00(
Lesscurrent portior (45,13)) (16,370
Long-term debt, net of current maturiti $183,78¢ $253,63(

2002 Credit Facility. On February 28, 2002, CSG Systems, Inc., alydooined subsidiary of the Company, closed on e0$#@lion
senior secured credit facility (the “2002 CreditHity”) with a syndicate of banks, financial inttions and other entities (the “Bank Group”).
The proceeds of the 2002 Credit Facility were uggdo fund the Kenan Business acquisition; (ymcquisition-related fees and expenses;
(iii) payoff existing indebtedness; and (iv) proeifinancing for general corporate purposes. Orclibging date, the 2002 Credit Facility
consisted of a $100 million, five-year revolvingdit facility (the “Revolver”), a $125 million, fe~year Tranche A Term Loan (“Tranche A”),
and a $175 million, six-year Tranche B Term Loafré&hche B”). Upon closing of the Kenan Businessuaition, the entire amounts of
Tranche A and Tranche B were drawn down. The 20@2i€CFacility is guaranteed by the Company andhedt¢he Company’s direct and
indirect domestic subsidiaries. In conjunction wthike closing of the 2002 Credit Facility, the Compéncurred financing costs totaling $10.4
million.

On December 5, 2003, the Company entered intoitseAmendment to the 2002 Credit Facility (the “Andment”). The Amendment
was obtained primarily as the result of the imghetComcast arbitration ruling (Note 4) had on2662 Credit Facility’s financial covenants.
The major impacts of the Amendment were to: (i)weaany default or event of default that may haweuoed prior to the Amendment, related
to untrue representations or warranties solelfa¢oeixtent such representations or warranties wereeias a result of the arbitration ruling, (ii)
exclude the arbitration award payments from comatiten related to the Company’s
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compliance under the 2002 Credit Facility; (iiitiease the applicable margins on the Revolver,chai and Tranche B by 75 basis points;
(iv) reduce the amount available under the Revaiv&40 million and further limit the amounts aedile under the Revolver based upon CSG
Systems, Inc.’s total cash on hand; (v) add andifypnedrtain financial covenants; (vi) further linthe Companys investments, acquisitions ¢
capital expenditures; (vii) require the Companyntake a prepayment on the 2002 Credit Facility & 8@llion on or before July 30, 2004; and
(viii) require the Company to provide notice of nifazhtions to material processing agreements, aotlipit the Company from making certain
modifications to the Company’s contract with Contc@ate Company considered the impact of these rvadidns in accordance with EITF
96-19, “Debtor’s Accounting for a Modification ox&hange of Debt Instruments”, and as a resultCii@pany determined that the
Amendment was not an extinguishment of debt asddftherein. The fees paid to or on behalf of taekBGroup in connection with obtaining
the Amendment, totaling approximately $1 milliorene capitalized as deferred financing costs.

The 2002 Credit Facility has no prepayment pergabied requires mandatory prepayments if parti@uants occur, including: (i) certain
sales or issuances of the Company’s Common Sticih€ incurrence of certain indebtedness; (hig sale of assets except in the ordinary
course of business; (iv) proceeds received asudt iifsthe termination of material processing seegi contracts; and (v) the achievement of a
certain level of excess cash flows (as definethé2002 Credit Facility). Except for the $30 miflimandatory prepayment discussed in the
previous paragraph, the Company was not subjentyanandatory prepayments as of December 31, 2003.

In May 2003, the Company made a $20 million volantarepayment on the 2002 Credit Facility, and ingAst 2003, the Company mz
an additional prepayment of $20 million. As a résdiithe voluntary prepayments and the Amendmerd,assuming that 100% of the Tranche
B Lenders elect to receive their pro-rata portibthe $30 million mandatory prepayment discusseaapbthe combined scheduled maturities
of Tranche A and Tranche B are as follows (in tlamats):

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 Total

Tranche A $25,12¢ $25,05! $26,37( $ 6,59: $ — $ 83,14:
Tranche B 20,00¢ 1,29¢ 1,29: 92,47 30,71¢ 145,78:
Total payment: $45,137 $26,34¢ $27,66: $99,06¢ $30,71¢ $228,92!

The interest rates for the Revolver and the twodhas of term loans are chosen at the option oftirapany and are based on a base rate
or adjusted LIBOR rate, plus an applicable margjire base rate represents the higher of the floatiimge rate for domestic commercial loans
and a floating rate equal to 50 basis points ireeg©f the Federal Funds Effective Rate. Effeatiith the Amendment, the applicable margins
are as follows:

Base Adjusted

Rate LIBOR
Tranche A 2.00% 3.25%
Tranche B 2.25% 3.5(%
Revolver 2.00% 3.25%

The Company believes the carrying amount of the @omg’'s long-term debt approximates its fair value tb the 2002 Credit Facility’s
variable interest rate features.

The Company has historically selected LIBOR loassdpposed to base rate loans) as the basis &yndeing its interest rates for its
long-term debt, and the Company expects to contioutilize LIBOR loans
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in the foreseeable future. The Company has themati selecting the length of time (ranging froneda twelve months) that it locks in the
LIBOR contract rate. As of December 31, 2003, $824illion of the 2002 Credit Facility’s outstandibglance was in a six-month LIBOR
contract at an adjusted LIBOR rate of 1.18% (foombined rate of 4.43% for Tranche A and 4.68%Tlf@anche B) that is effective through
March 31, 2004. The remaining outstanding balafi& @ million was in a six-month LIBOR contractat adjusted LIBOR rate of 1.2125%
(for a combined rate of 4.4625% for Tranche A artla5% for Tranche B) that is effective throughel@0, 2004. The weighted-average
interest rates (adjusted LIBOR plus applicable rimrgn Tranche A and Tranche B was 4.10% and 4.86fitng 2003 and 2002, respectively.
As of December 31, 2003, the Company does not Aayealerivative financial instruments to managénitsrest rate risk from the variable rate
features of the 2002 Credit Facility.

For an eleven-day period in May 2002, the Compad/$b million outstanding against the Revolver.iBgi2003, the Company had no
borrowings under the Revolver. The Company paysnangitment fee equal to 0.50% per annum on the geetdaily unused portion of the
Revolver, which rate is subject to reduction to/8% once the Company achieves a certain leveraige The Company’s ability to borrow
under the Revolver is subject to a limitation dhtondebtedness based upon the results of a lgeesdio calculation and based upon the
amount of CSG System, Inc.’s current cash balais@f December 31, 2003, approximately $27 millidrthe Revolver was available to the
Company.

The 2002 Credit Facility is collateralized by swmgtally all of the Company’s domestic tangible améngible assets and the stock of the
Company’s domestic subsidiaries. The 2002 CreditliBarequires maintenance of certain financidlas, including: (i) a leverage ratio; (ii) an
interest coverage ratio; and (iii) a fixed charggarage ratio. As a result of the Amendment, fahdacal quarter through the fourth quarter of
2004, the Company must also meet minimum adjusBi@[BA amounts (as defined in the Amendment). Th@2Credit Facility contains
other restrictive covenants, including limitatiams. (i) additional indebtedness; (ii) cash dividemad other payments related to the Compmany’
capital stock; (iii) repurchases of the Compangapital stock; (iv) capital expenditures and staeents; (v) movement of funds between cel
subsidiaries of the Company; and (vi) acquisitiand customer services agreement payments (as défitlee 2002 Credit Facility). The 2002
Credit Facility also requires that the assets @afillities of CSG Systems, Inc. remain separatmftbe assets and liabilities of the remainder of
the Company’s consolidated operations, includirggrttaintenance of separate deposit and other baokiais. As of December 31, 2003, the
Company believes it is in compliance with thesevigions of the 2002 Credit Facility, as amended.

Deferred Financing Costs. As of December 31, 2003 and 2002, unamortizddroed financing costs were $7.3 million and $8.5
million, respectively. Deferred financing costs araortized to interest expense over the related tdithe credit agreement using a method
approximates the effective interest rate metharést expense for the years ended December 33, 2002, and 2001 includes amortization
of deferred financing costs of $2.3 million, $1.8lion, and $0.4 million, respectively. The weigttaverage interest rate on the Company’s
debt borrowings, including amortization of deferfethncing costs and commitment fees on the rengleredit facilities, for the years ended
December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001 was 5.3%, 5.0806 8%, respectively.

8. Restructuring Charges

Cost Reduction Initiatives Related to Market Caodi. Due to the economic decline in the global telemunications industry, and
the uncertainty in the timing and the extent of angnomic turnaround within the industry, durin@2@nd 2002, the Company implemented
the following cost reduction initiatives:

» During the third quarter of 2002, the cost redutiiatiative consisted of: (i) involuntary employgaminations from all areas of the
Company of approximately 300 people (approximat€lys of the
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Company'’s then current workforce); (ii) limited imig of new employees; (iii) a reduction of the Canyp’s facilities and
infrastructure support costs, including facilitmmsolidations and abandonments; and (iv) redugtioicosts in several discretionary
spending areas, such as travel and entertainmelosteétially all of the involuntary employee teritiions were completed during |
third quarter of 2002, with the remainder complededng the fourth quarter of 200

» During the first quarter of 2003, the cost reduttiaitiative consisted of involuntary employee térations of approximately 7
people (approximately 2% of the Company'’s thenentrivorkforce). All of these involuntary employeeminations were completed
by the end of the first quarter of 2003, and cdesdiprincipally of individuals within the GSS Divis.

» During the second and third quarters of 2003, the eduction initiative consisted principally af/bluntary employee terminatio
of approximately 60 people (approximately 2% of @@mpany’s then current workforce). All of thesgadluntary employee
terminations were completed by the end of the thudrter of 2003, and consisted principally of indiials within the GSS Divisior

Cost Reduction Initiatives Related to the Comcalitration Ruling. In response to the expected reduction in reeemesulting from
the Comcast arbitration ruling, during the fourtrager of 2003, the Company implemented a costatémtuinitiative which resulted in
restructuring charges. The cost reduction initetensisted of: (i) involuntary employee terminatidrom all areas of the Company of
approximately 130 people (approximately 5% of tlwenpany’s then current workforce), with the greatestentage of these terminations
occurring within the Broadband Division; (ii) a textion of costs related to certain of the Compaeyigployee compensation and fringe benefit
programs, to include a freeze in wages for 2008 lihited hiring of new employees; (iv) movemaenftcertain product support and/or software
research and development functions to lower castiés; and (v) a reduction in costs in severalrdt@mary spending areas. The involuntary
terminations were substantially completed by theé @2003, with the remaining ones expected todrepieted by the end of the first quarter
of 2004. The involuntary termination benefits axperted to be substantially paid by the end of sé@uarter of 2004.

Restructuring Charges. As a result of the cost reduction initiativdaring the years ended December 31, 2003 and 208Zompany
recorded restructuring charges of $11.9 million &h&.7 million, respectively. The restructuring tsosave been reflected as a separate line
item on the accompanying Consolidated Statemern@pefations. The components of the 2003 and 208fucturing charges are as follows
thousands):

Year Ended
December 31,

2003 2002
Involuntary employee terminatiol $ 7,63C $ 5,81(
Facilities abandonmen 4,19¢ 6,891
All other 25 14

Total restructuring charge $11,85(  $12,72:

The involuntary employee terminations componerthefrestructuring charges relates primarily to smvee payments and job placement
assistance for those terminated employees. Thititscabandonment component of the restructurtmyges relates to office facilities that are
under long-term lease agreements that the Compasgliandoned. The facilities abandonment chargguial to the present value of the future
costs associated with those abandoned facilitetspfithe estimated proceeds from any future sgklegreements. The Company has used
estimates to arrive at both the future costs oftbendoned facilities and the proceeds
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from any future sublease agreements. The Compdhganitinue to evaluate its estimates used in iogrthe facilities abandonment charge.
As a result, there may be additional charges argals in the future related to the facilities thatl been abandoned as of December 31, 2003.

Restructuring Reserves. The activity in the business restructuring rese during 2003 and 2002, to include the liabilitg Company
assumed in the Kenan Business acquisition relatétetabandonment of certain assumed facility ké¥ete 3), is as follows (in thousands):

Termination
Facilities

Benefits Abandonments Other Total
December 31, 2001, balan $ — $ — $— $ —
Abandonment reserve established in the Kenan Bssiaequisitior — 10,46¢ — 10,46¢
Charged to expense during yi 5,81( 6,891 14 12,721
Cash payment (5,570 — 149 (5,589
Amortization of liability for abandonment of fadigs — (1,968 — (1,96¢)
Other — 17¢ — 17¢
December 31, 2002, balan 24C 15,57 — 15,81
Charged to expense during yi 7,63( 4,198 25 11,85(
Cash payment (5,752 (287) (25 (6,064
Amortization of liability for abandonment of fadiks — (6,807 — (6,807%)
Other — 447 — 447
December 31, 2003, balan $ 2,11¢ $ 13,12 $— $15,23¢

Of the $15.2 million business restructuring resexs®f December 31, 2003, $8.7 million was incluilecurrent liabilities and $6.5
million was included in non-current liabilities.

9. Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordaitbethe asset and liability method. Tax provisi@nd credits are recordec
statutory rates for taxable items included in tbeompanying Consolidated Statements of Operatiegardless of the period for which such
items are reported for tax purposes. Deferred irectares are recognized for temporary differencésden financial statement and income tax
bases of assets and liabilities.

The components of net income (loss) before incared are as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31

2003 2002 2001
Domestic $(85,744) $79,93¢  $185,18t
Foreign 37,28¢ 7,61( (1,749

$(48,46() $87,54.  $183,44:
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The income tax provision (benefit) consists of filiwing (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31

2003 2002 2001
Current:
Federal $(33,327) $33,64. $53,66:
State (2,935 6,147 7,02:
Foreign 13,14 3,96( 44
(23,11H 43,74¢ 60,72¢
Deferred:
Federal 9,17¢ (1,194 7,77¢
State (2,704 (257) 1,017
Foreign (5,53¢) 62¢ —
932 (822) 8,79:
Total income tax provision (benef $(22,187) $42,92¢  $69,52:

As a result of the Company’s domestic net operdtisg (“NOL”) position for the year ended DecemB#r 2003, the Company recorded
an income tax receivable of $35.1 million as of &mber 31, 2003, which results from the Compamafility to claim a refund for 2003 incor
taxes already paid, and from the Company’s altilitgarry back its NOL to prior years.

Income tax benefits associated with nonqualifieglsoptions and disqualifying dispositions of intte@ stock options reduced income
taxes payable by approximately zero, $0.4 milliamd $13.1 million, respectively, for the years ehBecember 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001.
Such benefits were recorded as an increase ta@uklipaid-in capital and are included in net cpsivided by operating activities in the
accompanying Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.

The difference between the income tax provisioméfi) computed at the statutory federal incomertdg and the financial statement
provision (benefit) for income taxes is summariasdollows (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31

2003 2002 2001
Provision (benefit) at federal rate of 3¢ $(16,96) $30,66:  $64,19¢
State income taxe (3,665 3,81t 5,272
Research and development cre (3,03%) (1,187 (1,147
Impact of foreign operatior 2,774 8,64¢ 4
Resolution of certain income tax contingenc (1,650 — —

Other 354 981 1,18¢

$(22,18) $42,92¢  $69,52
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Deferred income taxes reflect the expected utiradf tax net operating loss carryforwards andrteetax effects of temporary

differences between the carrying amount of assetdiabilities for financial reporting purposes ah& amounts used for income tax purposes.
Net deferred income tax assets as of Decembere3ataibutable to the following (in thousanc

2003 2002
Current deferred tax asse
Accrued expenses and reser $9,13¢ $ 8,35¢
Noncurrent deferred tax assets (liabilitie
Purchased research and developr $30,48:  $34,11¢
Software 6,82¢ 7,094
Client contracts and related intangib 9,231 (9,522
Noncompete agreemer 4,347 5,027
Net operating loss carryforwar 5,26( 2,98¢
Property and equipme (2,129 (1,809
Stoclk-based compensatic 1,662 (19%)
Goodwill (2,537 (1,349
Other 1,391 882

54,53¢ 37,23¢
Valuation allowanct (1,211 (73)

53,321 37,16

Net deferred tax asse $62,46: $45,51¢

As of December 31, 2003, the Compangkt deferred income tax assets of $62.5 millierewelated primarily to its domestic operatit
The Company continues to believe that it is mdeelyi than not that sufficient taxable income wil generated in the future to realize the
benefit of these deferred tax assets.

Provision has been made for U.S. and addition&idortaxes for the anticipated repatriation of@i@rearnings of foreign subsidiaries of
the Company. The Company considers the undistiibeéenings of its foreign subsidiaries above thewamalready provided to be indefinits
reinvested. As of December 31, 2003, the undigeithearnings of the foreign subsidiaries amouraegt5 million. Upon distribution of these
earnings in the form of dividends or otherwise, @@npany may be subject to U.S. income taxes amilgio withholding taxes. It is not
practical, however, to estimate the amount of inedaxes that may be payable on the eventual retoétaf these earnings.

The Company has an acquired NOL carryforward o $6illion as of December 31, 2003, which will begiinexpire in 2017 and can be
utilized through 2022. This NOL carryforward isréttitable to the pracquisition periods of an acquired subsidiary. Ttikzation of this NOL
carryforward may be limited pursuant to Section 88the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amenttegl Company has state NOL
carryforwards of $64.3 million, which will expireeginning in 2008 and ending in 2023. The Compasy bhs a Canadian NOL carryforward
of $2.2 million, which will expire in 2010. The &Lmillion valuation allowance is attributable tetteferred tax assets of a Canadian
subsidiary.

In the fourth quarter of 2003, the Company conallide the tax treatment of common stock warranti@pany issued in 1997 and 1
were exercised in late 2000 and early 2001 (NojeA2a result, the Company recorded a $17.1 milircrease in deferred tax assets relat
client contracts, a $5.3 million reduction in incetaxes payable, and an increase of $22.4 milbadtitional paid-in capital.
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10. Employee Retirement Benefit Plans

Defined Contributio-Type Plans The Company sponsors a defined contribution ptavering substantially all U.-based employee
of the Company. Participants may contribute up3%2af their annual wages, subject to certain litiotes, as pretax, salary deferral
contributions. The Company makes certain matchimyservice-related contributions to the plan. TleenBany’s matching and service-related
contributions for the years ended December 31, 20032, and 2001, were $8.2 million, $9.9 milliand $5.6 million, respectively. The
Company also sponsors defined contribution-typagpfar certain of its non-U.S.-based employees.Thmpany'’s voluntary contributions to
these plans for the years ended December 31, 2002, and 2001 were $1.4 million, $1.2 million, a®do, respectively.

Deferred Compensation Plan. The Company has a non-qualified deferred comsgtéom plan for certain key U.S.-based executives
which allows the participants to defer a portiorthadir annual compensation. The Company providgs% matching contribution of the
participant’s deferral, up to a maximum contribatif $6,250 per year, plus a return on the defearmdunt balance attributable to the
individual participants. As of December 31, 2008 2002, the Company has recorded a liability f@s tbligation of $3.5 million and $2.3
million, respectively. The Company’s expense fas filan for the years ended December 31, 2003,,200£2001, was $1.5 million, $0.6
million, and $0.6 million, respectively. The plamtunfunded.

11. Commitments, Guarantees and Contingencies

Operating Leases. The Company leases certain office and prodndtaoilities and other equipment under operatiragés that run
through 2015. The leases generally are renewabl@ravide for the payment of real estate taxescanthin other occupancy expenses. Future
aggregate minimum lease payments under these agnégfor the years ending December 31 are as fsil@@04—$22.7 million, 2005—
$19.8 million, 2006—$14.6 million, 2007—$11.5 nulfi, 2008—%$9.8 million, and thereafter—$31.3 millidme total minimum lease
payments to be received in the future under noredahte subleases as of December 31, 2003 total@chdiBion. Total rent expense for the
years ended December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001 2¢a3 #illion, $29.0 million, and $10.6 million, m@sctively.

Service Agreements. The Company’s Broadband Division outsourceBitst Data Corporation (“FDC”) the data processamgl related
computer services required for the operation gpitecessing services and certain related prodlibes CCS proprietary software is run in
FDC's facility to obtain the necessary mainframenpater capacity and other computer support servigg®ut making the substantial capital
and infrastructure investments that would be nesgdsr the Company to provide these services matéy. The Broadband Division’s clients
are connected to the FDC facility through a comtimeof private and commerciallgrovided networks. The Company also contracts widic
for computer floor space on which the Company nadstcertain open systems hardware, used primargypport CCS related products and
internal administrative systems. In August 2008, @ompany extended its service agreement with Fibaligh June 30, 2008. The service
agreement was previously scheduled to expire ie 2005, and is cancelable only for cause, as d&finthe agreement. Under the service
agreement, the Company is charged a base fee phriable fee based on usage and/or actual cdséstofal amount paid under the FDC
service agreement for the years ended Decemb&088, 2002, and 2001, was $37.2 million, $33.3iaml|land $28.1 million, respectively.
The Company believes it could obtain data procgsaimd related computer services from alternativecss, if necessary.

Product Warranties. The Company generally warrants that its proglacid services will conform to published specifaag, or to
specifications provided in an individual clientammgement, as applicable. The typical warranty pes®0 days from delivery of the product or
service. The typical remedy for breach of warrdstio correct or replace any defective deliverahie] if not possible or practical, the
Company will accept the return of the defectivawdghble and refund the amount paid to the Compentler the client arrangement that is
allocable to the defective deliverable. Historigathe Company has incurred minimal warranty castsl as a result, does not maintain a
warranty reserve.
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Product Indemnifications. The Company’s software arrangements generatlypde a product indemnification provision thatlwil
indemnify and defend a client in actions broughdiast the client that claim the Company’s prodirtsnge upon a copyright, trade secret, or
valid patent. Historically, the Company has nouimed any significant costs related to product imdiication claims, and as a result, does not
maintain a reserve for such exposure.

Contingent Consideration. Contingent consideration represents an arraegeto provide additional consideration in a busine
combination to the seller if contractually spedfigonditions related to the acquired entity ardeaad. As of December 31, 2003 and 2002,
Davinci purchase agreement was the Company’s ariyigement that included contingent considerafiarring 2003, the Company accrued
$0.8 million related to contingent consideratiomlenthe Davinci purchase agreement related toubeessful integration of Davinci’'s CSG
Total Care solution with CSG Kenan/BP. This corgimigconsideration was paid in January 2004. Baped the achievement of specified
amounts of Company revenue that is associatedthatiCSG™ Total Care solution in 2004, 2005, and 2006, thierseof Davinci are eligible
to receive additional purchase price payments dabug.3 million.

Claims for Company Non-performance.The Company’s arrangements with its clientscgily cap the Compang’liability for breach t
a specified amount of the direct damages incuryeith® client resulting from the breach. From tiroeiime, the Company’s arrangements may
also include provisions for possible liquidated dges or other financial remedies for non-perforredmcthe Company. As of December 31,
2003, the Company believes it had adequate restraEs/er any exposure as a result of the Compargngerformance for any past or current
arrangements with its clients.

Legal Proceedings. From time-totime, the Company is involved in litigation relajito claims arising out of its operations in themal
course of business. In the opinion of the Compaméasagement, the Company is not presently a pauwdny material pending or threatened
legal proceedings.

12. Stockholders’ Equity

Common Stock Warran. As of December 31, 1999, the Company had tmi#eon Common Stock Warrants (tI“Warrant”)
outstanding. The Warrants were issued as parteotdhsideration for the Master Subscriber Agreeraadtthe software technology assets
purchased from TCl in 1997, and were held by AT&D&lband as the successor of TCI until they weeectsed. During the fourth quarter of
2000, Warrants to purchase one million sharesefXbmpany’s Common Stock were exercised at $1208Hmre, for a total exercise price of
$12 million. Immediately following the exercisethie Warrants, the Company repurchased the oneomahares at $47.42 per share (an
average of the closing price for the five-day tradperiod ended October 26, 2000) for a total refpase price of $47.4 million, pursuant to the
Company’s stock repurchase program. As a resealthét cash outlay for this transaction was $35I4amj which was paid by the Company
with available corporate funds.

During the first quarter of 2001, Warrants to pasd two million shares of the Company’s Common ISteere exercised at $12.00 per
share, for a total exercise price of $24 millianniediately following the exercise of the Warratie Company repurchased the two million
shares at $37.00 per share (approximates the glpsice on February 28, 2001) for a total repurehagce of $74 million, pursuant to the
Company'’s stock repurchase program. As a rese@thét cash paid for this transaction was $50 millishich was paid by the Company in
March 2001 with available corporate funds. Aftastinansaction, AT&T Broadband no longer had anyrams or other rights to purchase the
Company’s Common Stock.

Stock Repurchase Program.In August 1999, the Company’s Board of Direstapproved a stock repurchase program which aatubri
the Company to purchase up to a total of five orillshares of its
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Common Stock from time-to-time as market and bussireonditions warrant. In September 2001, the Bo&Rirectors amended the program

to authorize the Company to purchase up to a tdt@n million shares. The shares repurchased uhdgorogram (including the shares
repurchased in conjunction with the Warrant exesciscussed above) are as follows (in thousamdspéper share amounts):

200:
2002 2001 2000 1999 Total
Shares repurchas: — 1,57: 3,02( 1,09( 65€ 6,33¢
Total amount pai — $18,92( $109,46(  $51,08¢ $20,24:  $199,71(
Weightec-average price per she — $ 120 $ 36.28 $46.87 $30.8 $ 31.57

At December 31, 2003, the total remaining numbeshaires available for repurchase under the progptated 3.7 million shares. The
Company’s 2002 Credit Facility, as amended, rdsttlee amount of Common Stock that can be repuechasder this program. The
Company’s current leverage ratio is such that ribtehal shares can be repurchased under the prograhis time.

The repurchased shares are intended to be haldassity shares, and possibly used (at the Compdisgeetion) to fulfill issuances of
Common Stock under the Company’s various equitypmmmation plans.

13. Equity Compensation Plans
Stock Incentive Plans

Summary of Stock Incentive PlansAs of December 31, 2003, the Company hasdtmak incentive plans, as summarized below. The
shares available under the 1995 Plan and the 1@@/have been reserved for issuance to eligibld@raeps and non-employee directors of the
Company in the form of stock options. The shareslable under the 1996 Plan and the 2001 Plan bega reserved for issuance to eligible
employees of the Company in the form of stock ogtistock appreciation rights, performance unitrdsarestricted stock awards, or stock
bonus awards. The Company adopted the 1995 Plai 996 Plan, and the 1997 Director Plan upon studkln approval. The 2001 Plan was
adopted without stockholder approval. Shares utideR001 Plan may be granted to key employeeseo€timpany or its subsidiaries who are
not: (i) officers or directors of the Company; (ifovered employees” of the Company for purposeSeaftion 162(m) of the Internal Revenue
Code; or (iii) persons subject to Section 16 of$leeurities Exchange Act of 1934.

Shares
Shares Available
Reserved For

Plan For Issuance Issuance
1995 Plar 514,00( 131,60(
1996 Plar 11,000,00! 5,251,47.
1997 Director Plau 450,00( 37,90(
Total stockholder approve 11,964,00 5,420,97:
2001 Plar 3,000,001 385,59¢
Total 14,964,00 5,806,57.

Restricted Stock During 2003 and 2002, the Company granted4119® shares and 444,582 shares of restricted @imtek of
2,348,701 shares), with a weighted-average val$#d 868 per share and $11.96 per share, respactida shares typically vest over three to
four years. Certain shares of the restricted sbadome fully vested upon a change in control ofGbepany, and certain shares have other
acceleration of vesting provisions related to deagtirement or termination of the respective empto As of December 31, 2003, 2,154,923
shares of the restricted stock were unvested. Tdrerao restrictions on these shares other thapassage of time (i.e., the shares are released
upon calendar vesting with no further restrictions)
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A summary of the restricted stock grants is aofedl.

August 2002 Exchange

In August 2002, the Company cancelled options f472,000 shares of the Comp’s Common Stock held by key member:
management (primarily members of executive managénreexchange for 715,415 shares of restrictedkstof which 444,582 shares were
issued in August 2002 and the remaining 270,838eshasued in January 2003. The cancelled stoétrmpin excess of the number of shares
of restricted stock granted, or 1,759,585 shareseweturned to the pool of authorized shares aviailfor future awards.

The Company issued 444,582 shares of treasury sidcikill the restricted stock grants in Augu€l(2, as opposed to issuing new
shares. The difference between the carrying valtieeoshares of treasury stock issued of $13.danillweighted-average price per share of
$31.11) and the amount of deferred employee conapiensrecorded of $5.3 million, or $8.5 million, sveecorded in 2002 as a reduction to
accumulated earnings.

As discussed below, the Company issued the rengai?¥0,833 restricted stock shares in January 2Q08il these shares were issued, a
provision within an employment agreement which jpted for a certain contingent cash bonus right keyamember of management remained
in effect. The bonus right granted in the agreerhentattributes similar to a stock appreciatiohtigxpected to be settled in the Company’s
stock, and as a result, the Company accountedhifoagreement as a variable stock award until #8833 shares were issued in January 2003

January 2003 Grants

In January 2003, the Company granted 480,000 sbérestricted stock at no cost to a key membenahagement, with 270,833 shares
related to the stock options cancelled in Augu§2@s discussed above. The 270,833 shares vegtal installments on January 2, 2005,
2006, and 2007. The remaining 209,167 shares ®8stahnually over the four years from the date efghant.

The Company issued 480,000 shares of treasury sadclfill the restricted stock grants, as opposedssuing new shares. The differe
between the carrying value of the shares of trgastock issued of $14.9 million (weighted-averageeper share of $31.11) and the amount
of deferred and accrued employee compensationdedaf $3.7 million (weighted-average price of B3per share), or $11.2 million, was
recorded as a reduction to accumulated earnings.

December 2003 Exchange Program.

In December 2003, the Company completed a tendier tof exchange certain outstanding stock optieid hy employees for restricted
stock. The Company accepted for exchange and dadagltstanding options to purchase 3,617,335 shareommon stock, and in exchange
for such cancelled options, issued 1,214,119 shadnesstricted stock. The restricted stock vestsually over three years. Senior executive
officers of the Company and non-employee Directoege not eligible to participate in the exchangegpam. The cancelled stock options in
excess of the number of shares of restricted sjomhkted, or 2,403,216 shares, were returned tpdbkof authorized shares available for fut
awards. The Company issued new shares for thistawar

The Company accounted for the exchange as a spilhanodification and restricted stock grant unither fair value method in
accordance with SFAS 123. The total deferred corsguEam related to the restricted stock granted$28s5 million (weighted average price of
$24.30 per share). This equals the unamortized SE283leferred compensation related to the stodkmgtplus the fair value of the restricted
stock in excess of the fair value of the stockamgiexchanged.
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December 2003 Grants

In December 2003, the Company granted 210,000 slodrestricted stock at no cost to certain empsyghich will vest annually ow
four years. The Company issued new shares foathisd.

Stock Options. Stock options are granted with an exerciseepeipual to the fair market value of the Compargdmmon Stock as of t
date of the grant. Generally, options granted utigdeplans vest over four years and have a maxiteam of ten years. Certain stock options
become fully vested upon a change in control of@benpany. A summary of the stock options issueceutite Company’s stock incentive
plans, and changes during the years ending Dece3dbare as follows:

Year Ended December 31

2003 2002 2001
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Exercise Exercise Exercise
Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price
Outstanding, beginning of ye 6,539,05! $ 29.0¢ 6,882,41! $ 34.0Z 5,745,11. $ 26.5¢
Granted 613,85( 10.0¢ 3,054,02. 25.1¢ 2,735,27! 41.7:
Exercisec (40,850 8.6¢ (80,425 14.4¢ (1,194,32) 16.41
Forfeited/cancelle (4,082,93) 35.0¢ (3,316,94) 36.1¢ (403,659 32.41
Outstanding, end of ye: 3,029,12 $17.3¢ 6,539,05! $ 29.0¢ 6,882,411 $ 34.0:
Options exercisable at year € 1,390,70! $ 20.5¢ 2,423,73 $ 27.4¢ 1,426,15! $22.4¢
Weighted average fair value of options grar
during the yea $ 5.6 $12.82 $21.02
Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted
Average
Remaining Weighted Weighted
Contractual Average Average
Range Of Number Exercise Number Exercise
Exercise Prices Outstanding Life Price Exercisable Price
$ 0.6:-$11.06 883,14 6.5 $ 9.01 380,98: $ 8.62
$11.5-$23.44 1,583,84 7.6 14.2¢ 663,85¢ 16.91
$23.5¢-$29.94 82,02t 7.6 25.7: 31,21( 25.9¢
$30.2:-$39.81 266,00¢ 55 35.7¢ 157,28( 36.4(
$40.1:-$49.75 171,60( 6.3 46.8: 127,87" 46.7¢
$50.2!-$62.33 42,50( 5.7 53.27 29,50( 52.9:
$ 0.6:-$62.33 3,029,12 7.C $17.3¢ 1,390,70! $ 20.5¢

Modifications to Stock Based Awards.During the first quarter of 2004, the Compamydified the terms of approximately 406,000
shares of unvested restricted stock, and 116,008sted stock options held by key members of managefmembers other than executive
management) to include a provision which allowsfédirvesting of the stock-based awards upon a gan control of the Company. Unless
such an event occurs, the stock-based awardsamitiraie to vest as set forth in the original teohthe agreements.

Compensation Expense. The Company recorded stobised compensation expense of $5.6 million, $1liomiand zero, respectivel
for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002, adtl. For the years ended December 31, 2003 and appgoximately 94% and 100%,
respectively, of the stock-based compensation esgenincluded in the selling, general and admiaiiste expense caption in the
accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations.
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Deferred employee compensation related to the Coyipatock-based awards accounted for under APBs2&% December 31, 2003 and
2002, as reflected in the accompanying ConsolidBadnce Sheets is $4.5 million and $3.9 millie@spectively. Deferred compensation
expense related to stock-based awards accountedider SFAS 123 as of December 31, 2003 was $3dliermThis amount is not reflected
in the Company’s accompanying Consolidated Bal&@twets. The Company recognizes deferred employepeatsation for its stock-based
awards on a straight-line basis over the vestinpgdef the underlying award. The total deferrecpéayee compensation of $39.4 million as of
December 31, 2003 is expected to be recognizerpense in each of the succeeding fiscal yearsliasvib(assuming 100% vesting): 2004—
$14.9 million; 2005—%$13.0 million; 2006—$10.7 milh; and 2007—%$0.8 million.

1996 Employee Stock Purchase Plan.

As of December 31, 2003, the Company had employgsk purchase plan whereby 458,043 shares of timep@ony’s Common Stock
have been reserved for sale to its employees thrpagroll deductions. The price for shares purctiaseler the plan is 85% of market value
the last day of the purchase period. Purchasemade at the end of each month. During the yearsceb&cember 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001,
129,995, 111,061, and 35,481 shares, respectiwelg purchased under the plan for $1.3 milliong$#o $13.22 per share), $1.6 million
($9.27 to $31.54 per share), and $1.3 million (3280 $51.23 per share), respectively. As of Deeamti, 2003, 75,935 number of shares
remain eligible for purchase under the plan.

14. Unaudited Quarterly Financial Data

Quarter Ended

September 3 December 3:
March 31 June 30

(in thousands, except per share amounts)

2003 (1):
Total revenue $141,93: $142,36: $ 25,51 $ 129,85’
Gross margin (loss) (exclusive of depreciati 70,94¢ 74,73¢ (46,33 62,45¢
Operating income (loss)(2)(: 17,85¢ 20,30: (94,079 16,35¢
Income (loss) before income taxes 14,65¢ 19,70° (96,239 13,41
Income tax (provision) benefit(: (5,949 (7,989 42,46 (6,347
Net income (loss) available to common stockholi 8,701 11,71¢ (53,779 7,071
Net income (loss) available to common stockholgersshare
Basic 0.17 0.2t (1.0%) 0.14
Diluted 0.17 0.2:¢ (1.0%) 0.14
2002 (5):
Total revenue $130,37! $169,73t $ 155,61 $ 155,20!
Gross margin (exclusive of depreciatic 78,95¢ 100,96( 85,02t 82,991
Operating income(6)(7 12,69¢ 37,811 17,24 33,40(
Income before income taxes(6) 11,717 32,81( 12,84( 30,171
Income tax provision(8 (9,259 (13,562) (6,990 (13,120
Net income available to common stockholc 2,46 19,24¢ 5,85( 17,053
Net income available to common stockholders peresl
Basic 0.0t 0.37 0.11 0.3:
Diluted 0.0t 0.3¢ 0.11 0.3:
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The third quarter of 2003 includes a $119.6 millabvarge to revenue related to the Comcast arlaitratiling. This resulted in the
Company recording an income tax benefit of $42 lianiin the third quarter of 2003. Due to the amiion ruling, the Compang’fourth
quarter revenues from Comcast decreased by appatedyr$13 million. See Note

The Company adopted SFAS 123 during the fourthtquaf 2003, which was effective as of January(D3 As a result, the Company
has restated its quarterly financial statementshfeffirst three quarters of 2003. The impact &f thstatement is additional stock-based
compensation expense of $0.1 million, $0.2 milliand $0.3 million in the first, second, and thiuhgers of 2003, respective
Beginning with the first quarter through the fougtlrarter of 2003, the quarterly results of operatimcluded restructuring charges of
$3.2 million, $1.0 million, $3.5 million, and $4gillion (total of $11.9 million). See Note

The overall effective income tax rate was approxelyad6% for 2003. In the first two quarters of 20€he effective income tax rate was
approximately 40% in each quarter, and for thedthind fourth quarters of 2003, the effective incdenerates were 44% and 47%,
respectively. The rates were higher in the lasttguguarters of 2003 due to the impact of the Casharbitration charge and other
factors.

The results of the Kenan Business operations ftedate of the acquisition (February 28, 2002)ughoDecember 31, 2002 are inclu
in the Compan’s consolidated results of operations. See N¢

Beginning with the first quarter through the fougtirarter of 2002, the quarterly results of operatimcluded Kenan Business acquisition-
related expenses of $23.8 million, $3.6 million,I$aillion, and $0.5 million (total of $30.0 milli). See Note &

The third and fourth quarters of 2002 includedrtestiring charges of $12.0 million and $0.7 milljoaspectively (total of $12.7 millior
See Note 8

The overall effective income tax rate was approxétyad9% for 2002. The effective income tax ratesvapproximately 79%, 41%, 54
and 43% in the first through the fourth quarter@®2, respectively. The fluctuation in rates betwquarters was primarily due to the
impact of the Kenan Business acquisition and oftetors.
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Iltem 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants orcégnting and Financial Disclosure
None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
(a) Disclosure Controls and Proceduri

As required by Rule 1:-15(b), our management, including the Chief Exeau@fficer “CEC”) and Chief Financial Office* CFC"),
conducted an evaluation as of the end of the pe&dwdred by this report of the effectiveness ofdiaclosure controls and procedures as
defined in Rule 13a-15(e). Based on that evaluatfmnCEO and CFO concluded that our disclosuréralsrand procedures were effective as
of the end of the period covered by this report.

(b) Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

As required by Rule 13a-15(d), our managementydiob the CEO and CFO, also conducted an evaluafionr internal control over
financial reporting, as defined by Rule 13a-15()determine whether any changes occurred durmgjtiarter covered by this report that have
materially affected, or are reasonably likely tatenglly affect, our internal control over finantiaporting. Based on that evaluation, there has
been no such change during the quarter coverelibyetport

PART IlI

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

See the Proxy Statement for our 2004 Annual Meaidfrgtockholders, from which information regardutigectors is incorporated herein
by reference. Information regarding our executiffecers will be omitted from such proxy statementas furnished in a separate item
captioned “Executive Officers of the Registranttlinded in Part | of this Form 10-K.
ltem 11. Executive Compensation

See the Proxy Statement for our 2004 Annual Meaidfrfgtockholders, from which information in respens this Item is incorporate
herein by reference.
ltem 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners atbBnagement

See the Proxy Statement for our 2004 Annual Meaetdirgtockholders, from which information requiregithis Item is incorporate
herein by reference, with the exception of the ggtompensation plan information which is preseriteldem 5, “Market for Registrant’s
Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters”, ignidcorporated herein by reference.
Iltem 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

See the Proxy Statement for our Annual Meetingto€igholders, from which information in responsehis Item is incorporated herein
by reference.
Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

See the Proxy Statement for our Annual Meetingto€holders, from which information in responsehtis Item is incorporated herein
by reference.
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Item 15.

PART IV

Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules and Repoots Form 8-K

(&) Financial Statements, Financial Statemehe&uales, and Exhibits:

(b)

1)

Financial Statemen

The financial statements filed as part of this repee listed on the Index to Consolidated Findr8iatements on page 4

(@)

Financial Statement Schedules:

None. Any information required in the Financialt8taent Schedules is provided in sufficient detaibiur Consolidated Financial
Statements and notes thereto.

3)

Exhibits

Exhibits are listed in the Exhibit Index on page 93

The Exhibits include management contracts, compgensplans and arrangements required to be filegkaghits to the Form 10-K
by Item 601(10)(iii) of Regulation S-K.

Reports on Form-K

Form 8-K dated November 18, 2003 under Item 5, Ofvents and Regulation FD Disclosure, was filethwhe Securities
and Exchange Commission which included a presaseldated November 18, 3003. The press releaseraretthat CSG
has begun a voluntary stock option exchange prodoamligible CSG employee

Form 8-K dated November 18, 2003 under Item 5, Ofvents and Regulation FD Disclosure, was filethwhe Securities
and Exchange Commission which included a presaseldated November 18, 3003. The press releaseraretbrevised
financial guidance for the full-year 2004 to inctuthe impact of the voluntary stock option exchamggram for eligible
employees

Form 8-K dated December 8, 2003 under Item 5, Civents and Regulation FD Disclosure, was filedhlite Securities
and Exchange Commission which included a presaseldated December 8, 3003. The press releaseramubiinat CSG
has received an amendment related to its curredit@greemen

Form 8-K dated December 10, 2003 under Item 5, iICEents and Regulation FD Disclosure, was filethulie Securities
and Exchange Commission which included a presaseldated December 10, 3003. The press releasera@ubthat CSG
has adopted the fair value method of accountingtimck-based awards in accordance with Statemdfinahcial
Accounting Standard¢® SFAS") No. 123, using the prospective method of transiéisroutlined in SFAS No. 14

Form &K dated December 19, 2003 under Item 5, Other Bvamd Regulation FD Disclosure, was filed with Segurities
and Exchange Commission which included a presaseldated December 19, 3003. The press releaseraubthe
successful completion of C¢s exchange program for certain outstanding stotiogheld by CSG employee

Form &K dated January 27, 2004, under Item 12, Resul@pefrations and Financial Condition, was filed with Securitie
and Exchange Commission which included a presaseldated January 27, 2004. The press releaseran@ubGSGs fourth
quarter earnings releas
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d)f the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regiant has duly caused this
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigrk thereunto duly authorized.

CSG SYSTEMSI| NTERNATIONAL , | NC.

By: /s/ NEeAL C. HANSEN

Neal C. Hansen
Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Office)

Date March 12, 200

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exadmnge Act of 1934, this report has been signed beldw the following persons ol
behalf of the registrant and in capacities and ontte dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
/sl NeaL C. HANSEN Chairman of the Board of Directors and Ct March 12, 200¢
Executive Officer (Principal Executive
Neal C. Hansen Ofﬁcer)
/s/ JoHNP. PoGGE President, Chief Operating Officer and Direc March 12, 200«

John P. Pogge

/s/ PeTERE. K ALAN Executive Vice President and Chief Finan March 12, 200«
Officer (Principal Financial Officer)

Peter E. Kalan

/sl RaNDY R. W IESE Senior Vice President and Chief Accounting March 12, 2004
Officer (Principal Accounting Officer)

Randy R. Wiese

/s/ GEORGEF. H ADDIX Director March 12, 2004

George F. Haddix

/sl JaNICE |. O BUCHOWSKI Director March 12, 200

Janice |. Obuchowski

/s/ BERNARDW. R EZNICEK Director March 12, 200

Bernard W. Reznicek

/s/ DONALD V. SMITH Director March 12, 200

Donald V. Smith

/sl Frank V. Sica Director March 12, 2004

Frank V. Sica
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Exhibit
Number

2.19(3)*
2.19A(5)*
2.19B(6)*

2.19C(7
2.19D(7)*

2.19E(7
2.19F(7y
2.19G(8)’
2.19H(9)*

2.191(10)*

2.19J(11)
2.19K(12)*
2.19L(13)"

2.19M(15)*

EXHIBIT INDEX
Description

Restated and Amended CSG Master Subscriber Manag&ystem Agreement between CSG Systems, Inc. @hd T
Cable Management Corporation dated August 10, .

Second Amendment to Restated and Amended CSG Magbscriber Management System Agreement between
Systems, Inc. and TCI Cable Management Corporatiated January 9, 19!

First Amendment to Restated and Amended CSG M8&stiescriber Management System Agreement between CSG
Systems, Inc. and TCI Cable Management Corporatiated June 29, 19¢

Sixth Amendment to Restated and Amended CSG M8&stiescriber Management System Agreement between CSG
Systems, Inc. and TCI Cable Management Corporatiated July 22, 199

Seventh Amendment to Restated and Amended CSG Madhscriber Management System Agreement betweé&h
Systems, Inc. and TCI Cable Management Corporatiated September 8, 19

Eighth Amendment to Restated and Amended CSG M8siescriber Management System Agreement between CSG
Systems, Inc. and TCI Cable Management Corporatiated September 25, 19

Eleventh Amendment to Restated and Amended CSGekasbscriber Management System Agreement betw8&
Systems, Inc. and TCI Cable Management Corporatiated September 30, 19

Fifth, Ninth, Tenth, Thirteenth, Fourteenth, Seeemth and Nineteenth Amendments to Restated anchdedeCSC
Master Subscriber Management System Agreement bat®8G Systems, Inc. and TCI Cable Management Catipn

Fourth and Twenty-Second Amendments and SchedtdeRestated and Amended CSG Master Subscriber Mamag
System Agreement between CSG Systems, Inc. ancCalle Management Corporati

Twenty-Third, Twenty-Fourth, Twent-Fifth, Twenty-Seventh, Twen-Eighth, Thirtieth, Thirt-Fourth Amendments ar
Schedule Q to Restated and Amended CSG Master ithdrsklanagement System Agreement between CSGr8ygste
Inc. and TCI Cable Management Corporat

Thirty-Sixth and Thirt-Eighth Amendments to Restated and Amended CSG Mastescriber Management Syst
Agreement between CSG Systems, Inc. and TCI Cablealgement Corporatic

Fifteenth, Twent-Ninth, Forty-First and Fort-Third Amendments and Schedules | and X to RestateldAmended CS!
Master Subscriber Management System Agreement bat®8G Systems, Inc. and TCI Cable Management Catipn

Thirty-Seventh, Fortieth, Forty-Fourth and FortytriAmendments to Restated and Amended CSG Mastescaber
Management System Agreement between CSG Systemsnd TCl Cable Management Corporal

Forty-Ninth Amendment to Restated and Amended CSG M&athscriber Management System Agreement betweer
Systems, Inc. and AT&T Broadband Management Cotfmralated October 10, 20(
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2.19N(16)’
2.190(19)'
2.19P(21)
2.19Q*
2.20(3
2.21(3
2.22(3
2.23(3
2.24(3
2.25(4
2.26(8
2.27(13
2.28(21

2.29(21

2.30(21

2.31(21

Description

Forty-Sixth, Forty-Eighth, Fiftieth and Fift-Second Amendments to Restated and Amended CSG Masiscribe
Management System Agreement between CSG Systemgnd AT&T Broadband Management Corpora

Fifty-Third, Fifty-Fourth and Fifty-Fifth Amendmesto Restated and Amended CSG Master Subscribeadéament
System Agreement between CSG Systems, Inc. and ABi&adband Management Corporat

Fifty-Sixth Amendment to Restated and Amended CS#5tet Subscriber Management System Agreement bet@86
Systems, Inc. and AT&T Broadband Management Cotjmr.

Fifty-Seventh Amendment to Restated and Amended CSG Mawscriber Management System Agreement bet
CSG Systems, Inc. and Comcast ABB Management Catiparf/k/a AT&T Broadband Management Corporai

Asset Purchase Agreement between CSG Systemsdtiteral, Inc. and TCI SUMMITrak of Texas, Inc., TCI
SUMMITrak, L.L.C., and TCI Technology Ventures, Indated August 10, 19¢

Contingent Warrant to Purchase Common Stock betW&$h Systems International, Inc. and TCI TechnoMggtures
Inc., dated September 19, 1¢

Royalty Warrant to Purchase Common Stock betwedd Sgstems International, Inc. and T
Technology Ventures, Inc., dated September 19,

Registration Rights Agreement between CSG Systeatesnational, Inc. and TCI Technology

Ventures, Inc., dated September 19, 1

Loan Agreement among CSG Systems, Inc. and CS@@gdnternational, Inc. as-borrowers, and certain lenders ¢
Banque Paribas, as Agent, dated September 18,

First Amendment to Loan Agreement among CSG Systerasand CSG Systems International, Inc. &-borrowers, an
certain lenders and Banque Paribas, as Agent, dabteember 21, 199

Second Amendment to Loan Agreement among CSG Sgstam and CSG Systems International, Inc. asaroslvers,
and certain lenders and Banque Paribas, as Agatet] November 16, 19¢

Third Amendment to Loan Agreement among CSG Systémsand CSG Systems International, Inc. eborrowers,
and certain lenders and Paribas, as Agent, datecda24, 200!

Asset Purchase Agreement by and between Lucenn®bagies Inc., as Seller, and CSG Systems Intennaltj Inc., as
Buyer, dated as of December 31, 2

Intellectual Property Agreement by and among Ludeahnologies Inc., Lucent Technologies GRL Corpona Lucent
Technologies Ireland Holding Limited and CSG Systénternational, Inc., CSG Software Inc., CSG Tatbagy
Limited, effective as of February 28, 20

Software and Services Master Supply Agreement (Namerica) by and among Lucent Technologies Ind. @8G
Systems International, Inc. and CSG Software, diated as of February 28, 20

Software and Services Master Supply Agreementrfiateonal) by and among Lucent Technologies Ind. @8G Syster
International, Inc. and CSG Software, Inc., datedfa-ebruary 28, 20C
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2.32(21

2.3¢

3.01(1
3.02(2
3.03(2
4.01(1
10.01(1
10.02(23
10.03(17
10.4*(27

10.14(8
10.14A(15
10.14B(23
10.14C(24
10.14D(25

10.15(20
10.39(12
10.40(14Y

10.44(18
10.45(8
10.46(8

10.47(15

10.48(17

10.49(19

10.50(23

10.51(27

10.52(24

Description

Amended and Restated Credit Agreement among CSter8ysnternational, Inc., as Holdings, CSG Systbros as
Borrower, the Lenders from Time to Time Partieséder BNP Paribas, as Administrative Agent, Lehmam@ercial
Paper, Inc., as Syndication Agent, and Credit LyyasiNew York Branch, the Bank of Nova Scotia andls¥eargo Bank
National Association, as (-Documentation Agents, dated as of February 28, .

First Amendment and Waiver to the Amended and Ret@redit Agreement among CSG Systems Interndfioma, as
Holdings, CSG Systems Inc., as Borrower, the Lenffern Time to Time Parties Hereto, BNP ParibadA@ministrative
Agent, Lehman Commercial Paper, Inc., as Syndinatigent, and Credit Lyonnais New York Branch, thenB of Nova
Scotia and Wells Fargo Bank, National AssociatanC-Documentation Agents, dated as of December 5,

Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Comp

Restated Bylaws of CSG Systems International,

Certificate of Amendment of Restated Certificatérmforporation of CSG Systems International,
Form of Common Stock Certifica

CSG Systems International, Inc. 1995 Incentive ISilan

CSG Employee Stock Purchase F

CSG Systems International, Inc. 1996 Stock Incenfiian

Third Amended and Restated Services Agreement leetWwist Data Technologies, Inc. and CSG Systenes dated
August 1, 2003

Employment Agreement with Neal C. Hansen, dateddither 17, 199

First Amendment to Employment Agreement with NeaHa@nsen, dated June 30, 2(

Second Amendment to Employment Agreement with Kedilansen, dated April 29, 20!

Third Amendment to Employment Agreement with NeaHansen, dated August 30, 2(

Fourth Amendment to Employment Agreement with NeaHansen, dated November 15, 2!

Form of Indemnification Agreement between CSG Systinternational, Inc. and Directors and Execu@fficers
CSG Systems, Inc. Wealth Accumulation Plan, as a@eg¢iNovember 16, 19¢

Second Amended and Restated Services Agreemengdretwrst Data Technologies, Inc. and CSG Systhros,dated
April 1, 2000

CSG Systems International, Inc. Stock Option PtarNfor-Employee Director
Employment Agreement with John P. Pogge, dated hbee 17, 199!
Employment Agreement with Edward Nafus, dated Ndwend7, 199¢
Employment Agreement with J. Richard Abramson, dl@tegust 17, 200
Employment Agreement with Peter Kalan, dated Janiidy 2001

Employment Agreement with William E. Fisher, dageptember 18, 20(

CSG Systems International, Inc. 2001 Stock Incerfiian

Stock Option Cancellation Agreement with Neal Cnbtn, dated August 30, 20
Stock Option Cancellation Agreement with Peter Blak, dated August 30, 20!

95



Table of Contents

Exhibit
Number Description

10.53(24 Stock Option Cancellation Agreement with EdwardN@fus, dated August 30, 20
10.54(24 Stock Option Cancellation Agreement with WilliamMsher, dated August 30, 20
10.55(24 Stock Option Cancellation Agreement with John Rydeo dated August 30, 20
10.56(27 Restricted Stock Award Agreement with Neal C. Hanskated August 30, 20(
10.57(24 Restricted Stock Award Agreement with Peter E. Kattated August 22, 20(
10.58(24 Restricted Stock Award Agreement with Peter E. Katiated August 30, 20(
10.59(24 Restricted Stock Award Agreement with Edward C.udaflated August 30, 20l
10.60(24 Restricted Stock Award Agreement with William Eslkér, dated August 30, 20
10.61(24 Restricted Stock Award Agreement with John P. Podgeed August 30, 20(
10.62(26 Restricted Stock Award Agreement with Neal C. Hanskated January 2, 20
10.63(26 Restricted Stock Award Agreement with Neal C. Hanskated January 2.20!
16.1(22 Letter from Arthur Andersen LLP dated June 19, 2

(1)
)

®3)
(4)

©)
(6)
()
®)
9)
(10)

(11)

21.01 Subsidiaries of the Compal

23.01 Consent of KPMG LLF

31.01 Certifications Pursuant to Section 302 of the Saek-Oxley Act of 200z

31.0Z Certifications Pursuant to Section 302 of the Saet-Oxley Act of 2002

32.01 Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarl-Oxley Act of 2002

99.01 Safe Harbor for Forwa-Looking Statements Under the Private Securitieigaiton Reform Act of 19¢—Certain
Cautionary Statements and Risk Fac

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of the sammber to the Registration Statement No-244 on Form -1.

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of the sammber to the Registris Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the period ended Ju
30, 1997,

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of the sammber to the Registri's Current Report on Forn-K dated October 6, 199
Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of the sammber to the Registris Annual Report on Form -K, as amended for the ye
ended December 31, 19¢

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of the sammber to the Registrant’'s Quarterly Report omd0-Q for the period ended
March 31, 1998

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of the sammber to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report om+0-Q for the period ended June
30, 1998

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of the sammmber to the Registri’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the period ende
September 30, 199

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of the sammber to the Registrant’'s Annual Report on Fd@rkK, as amended for the year
ended December 31, 19¢

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of the sammmber to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report om+0-Q for the period ended
March 31, 1999

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of the sammber to the Registris Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the period ended Ju
30, 1999,

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of the sammber to the Registri’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the period ende
September 30, 199
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(12)
(13)
(14)
(15)
(16)
(17)
(18)
(19)
(20)
(21)
(22)
(23)
(24)
(25)
(26)
(27)

*

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of the sammmber to the Registri’s Annual Report on Form -K, as amended, for the ye
ended December 31, 19¢

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of the sammber to the Registrant’'s Quarterly Report omd0-Q for the period ended
March 31, 2000

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of the sammber to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report om+0-Q for the period ended June
30, 2000.

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of the sammmber to the Registri’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the period ende
September 30, 200

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of the sammber to the Registri’s Annual Report on Form -K for the year ende
December 31, 200!

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of the sammber to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report om+0-Q for the period ended
March 31, 2001

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of the sammber to the Registrant’'s Quarterly Report omFd0-Q for the period ended June
30, 2001,

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of the sammber to the Registri’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the period ende
September 30, 200

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of the sammber to the Registris Annual Report on Form -K for the year ende
December 31, 200:

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of the sammber to the Registrant’'s Current Report on Ftfor the event dated as of
March 14, 2002

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of the sammber to the Registri’s Current Report on Forn-K for the event dated as
June 17, 200z

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of the sammber to the Registris Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the period ended Ju
30, 2002,

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of the sammber to the Registrant’'s Quarterly Report omd0-Q for the period ended
September 30, 200

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of the sammmber to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Fb@aK for the year ended
December 31, 200:

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of the sammmber to the Registri’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the period ende
March 31, 2003

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of the sammber to the Registri’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the period ende
September 30, 200

Portions of the exhibit have been omitted purst@iain application for confidential treatment, ahd bmitted portions have been filed
separately with the Commissic
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FIFTY SEVENTH AMENDMENT TO
RESTATED AND AMENDED CSG MASTER
SUBSCRIBER MANAGEMENT SYSTEM AGREEMENT
BETWEEN
CSG SYSTEMS, INC.
AND
COMCAST ABB MANAGEMENT CORPORATION f/k/a AT&T BROAD BAND
MANAGEMENT CORPORATION

This Fifty Seventh Amendment (“Amendment”) is exeeclthis 12th day of November, 2003, and is madartaybetweel€SG Systems, Inc,

a Delaware corporation (“CSG”), afbmcast ABB Management Corporation(f/k/a AT&T Broadband Management Corporation (“ATT)B
which in turn was f/k/a TCI Cable Management Cogpion) (“Customer”). CSG and Customer are parties tertain Restated and Amended
CSG Master Subscriber Management System Agreematet] August 10, 1997, which has subsequently asemded pursuant to separately
executed amendments (collectively, “Agreement”l] aow desire to amend the Agreement in accordaiitbetive terms and conditions set
forth in this Amendment. If the terms and condii@et forth in this Amendment shall be in confliéth the Agreement, the terms and
conditions of this Amendment shall control. Anynbarin initial capital letters or all capital letsaused as a defined term in the Agreement but
not defined in this Amendment shall have the measgt forth in the Agreement. Upon execution of thinendment by the parties, any
subsequent reference to the Agreement betweerattiegpshall mean the Agreement as amended bAthendment.

The parties hereto agree as follows:

1. CSG and Customer acknowledge and agree thahtméshdment is not intended to and does not haveeffegt whatsoever on the relit
scope, meaning and/or enforceability of the fineded issued on October 7, 2003, (“Award”) by thendi@able John J. Gibbons in the
arbitration between CSG and ATTB (“Arbitration”xaeptas otherwise expressly provided in this Amendment.

2. The parties hereby consent to the continuinigdiction of Judge Gibbons over matters associatgy with the Award or this Amendment
to and including December 31, 2004. Should thegmenter into an agreement which supercedes tatessand amends the Agreement in
whole or in part (“New Agreement”), in a manner malty agreed between the parties, CSG and Custagree to negotiate in good faith to
appoint a Special Master for the continuing jugsidn over matters associated with the Award, Ari'endment or any New Agreement
thereafter.

3. Section 34(a) is deleted in its entirety effestipon the execution of this Amendment and repladgéh the following:
It is the partie’ desire that with respect to any arbitration thay fa filed per this Agreement, to the greatestrxteasonabl’
practicable, the arbitrator(s) shall issue an apinvithin six (6) months from the date a noticeslaiim is serviced on the other party.

CONFIDENTIAL AND PROPRIETARY INFORMATION. FOR USE B AUTHORIZED EMPLOYEES OF
THE PARTIES HERETO ONLY AND IS NOT FOR GENERAL DIRIBUTION WITHIN OR WITHOUT
THEIR RESPECTIVE COMPANIES.

1



Pages where confidential treatment

been requested are stampé&mbhfidentia

Treatment Requested and the Redacted Me
has been separately filed with the Commission,”

and places where information has been red

have been marked with (**!

Further, nothing contained in this paragraph 3ldimait any rights of either party of any nature athoever, at law or at equity, as such relate to
the Arbitration or the Award.

4. Section 18 of the Agreement is hereby deletedrastated as follows:
18. TERMINATION ASSISTANCE.

(a) Upon expiration or termination of this Agreernbn either party for any reason (including a teration without cause by a party), C!

shall, for a period of up to seven (7) months fittwn date of such expiration or termination, prouielenination assistance to Customer in order
that Customer can convert its subscribers to syste#frone or more customer care and/or billing vetgof Customes choosing and/or to ol
or more customer care and/or billing system maietaiby Customer or one of its affiliates, or angnbination thereof. Customer
acknowledges that CSG'’s obligations to provide gecmination assistance shall be conditioned upast@ner’s obligation to pay all
outstanding invoices not disputed in good faith emsded in the ordinary course of business. Suchitation assistance shall include activities
that are within CSG’s reasonable control and acesgary, reasonably anticipated and/or useful 8® @ perform in order that such
subscriber conversions can be completed at a chti @xceed **** *rrtiik sk dkkokkkok skkkkkkk ek *rkkkkx) in any one (1) month

without interruption of customer care and/or biliservices to any of Customer’s subscribers, inofythose being converted, and without
unreasonable disruption to Customer’s businesperations. Such termination assistance activitiekide (i) CSG’s full and complete
cooperation with Customer and any vendors or afé to whom subscribers are being converted inexion with the conversion; (ii) all
commercially reasonable efforts by CSG to minin@rg interruptions or disruptions referred to in gieceding sentence; and (iii) furnishing
CSG's standard deconversion data package as watlyaspecifications for any interfaces used by @ust that are under CSG'’s sole control
via electronic data transmission or tapes, provid&¢e has ninety (90) days advance written noticst@ner acknowledges, if CSG sends the
deconversion data package via electronic transamsgion Customer’s request and such transmissilsrfda reasons beyond CSG’s control,
CSG shall not be liable for such failure. Any respufler deconversion files or data shall be reaslyrstated in an SOW or such other written
notification received by CSG which clearly states tlesired cut-off date and the SYS PRINS involved.

For purposes of this Amendment and the Agreeme®G’'€ “standard deconversion package” shall mearfoll@ving ten (10) master files:

1) Subscribe

2) House

3) Equipment Inventory
4) Location Equipment
5) Workorder

6) Subscriber Memo

7) Online Statements

CONFIDENTIAL AND PROPRIETARY INFORMATION. FOR USE B AUTHORIZED EMPLOYEES OF
THE PARTIES HERETO ONLY AND IS NOT FOR GENERAL DIRIBUTION WITHIN OR WITHOUT
THEIR RESPECTIVE COMPANIES.
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8) Monetaries
9) Subscriber HSD Access (email addresses)(for épigled data sites only)
10) Subscriber HSD Equipment (for high speed di¢és snly)

Customer acknowledges that: (a) CSG’s standaroffutay for deconversions is during the nightly leyof the twenty first (2%) of the montt
and the deconversion timeline starts at upsysteth@morning of the 22which normally occurs at 3:30 am Central Time; éo)in the ever
Customer’s designates a cut-off date other tha2ileof the month, Customer shall be required to pay 8&t&n current fees for a financial
snapshot as of the cut-off date, provided CSG iflesthe fees associated therewith and will nahe@ence any activity until Customer agrees
thereto. For deconversions of up to *** xxxkkkk (kkkkxrax) gyhscribers, CSG shall furnish such decoansion files (live subscriber data)
within **xxx *xkk (6%) hoyrs from upsystem (normally occurs by 3:30 am Central Time) on the first dialfowing the designated cut-off date.
For deconvers'ons between *kk kkkkkkk (*********) a nd kkkk kkkkkkk kkkk khkkkkhk kkkkkkhkik (*********) S UbSCI’IbeI’S, CSG Sha.” furnlsh
such deconversion files (live subscriber data) witpi******** (*¥) hours from upsystem (normally o ccurs by 3:30 am Central Time) on the
first day following the designated cut-off dater f@st deconversions under *** **xkkx (kkkxkkaax) - gybscribers, the test data shall be
delivered within ***+<xxixik (63) hoyrs after the e nd of the live deconversion timeframe for the giveonth pursuant to the terms set forth
above For test deconvers'ons between *kk *******T\'******) SUbSCI’IberS and *kkk kkkkkkhk kkkk hkhkkkk * kkkkkkkk (*********)

subscribers, the test data shall be delivered mvithi *¥*xxxx* *xx *xkxax (xxx) hoyrs after the end  of the live deconversion timeframe for the
given month pursuant to the terms set forth abDeeonversion data shall be delivered in the follapéequence as it becomes available: 1)
live 2) 30 day test 3) 90 day test.

During the time period that termination assistaisqarovided by CSG hereunder, CSG agrees to majrgapport, and make available to
Customer levels of support substantially similathtose provided immediately preceding the noticeeohination as well as all Products and
Services used by Customer in formats or versioas turrently used by Customer, including and noitéd to ACSR, CCS, Vantage licensed
products and other Products and Services themedilby Customer. Such versions and formats shaltdngded to Customer at no additional
costs, fees or license requirements, except aecuioj and unless expressly provided in the Agregmethe Award.

(b) To the extent this Agreement is terminatedctuse by Customer, CSG shall perform the terminatgsistance described herein at no
charge or fee to Customer whatsoever, includingnbtilimited to, any deconversion fees and anygdsor fees for deconversion files or
tapes or other data requests referenced in subpatagp) made by Customer and which may be periditmgeCSG using all commercially
reasonable efforts, made in connection with a cmiwe whether such charges and fees appear inghsefent (in its original form or as
deemed to be amended pursuant to the Award) oneige

(c) To the extent this Agreement is terminated iothan for cause by Customer, CSG shall performehmination assistance described in this
Amendment and this Agreement in accordance witte&ale D of this Agreement, as modified by the Awandluding and not

CONFIDENTIAL AND PROPRIETARY INFORMATION. FOR USE B AUTHORIZED EMPLOYEES OF
THE PARTIES HERETO ONLY AND IS NOT FOR GENERAL DIRIBUTION WITHIN OR WITHOUT
THEIR RESPECTIVE COMPANIES.
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limited to paragraph 2 of Relief Section X therdbthis Agreement is terminated other than forsmby Customer, then Customer will pay
CSG, in advance, on the first day of each calendarth and as a condition to CSG’s obligation tovjate termination assistance to Customer
during that month, an amount equal to CSG'’s redserestimate of the total amount payable to CSGdich termination assistance for that
month. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Customer @&t agree that for the purposes of this Subseofitiis Amendment, such termination
assistance shall include, at a minimum, for eadte®y Principles (“SYSPRIN”) one (1) live tape, t({&) test tapes, and up to three (3) service
code passers; provided, the aggregate paymentM&PBIN for such activities shall not exceed *****s#xixxxx dg||grs (FrHrrrress)

(d) CSG further agrees that notwithstanding theseof the Award and/or elsewhere stated in thisesAgrent (including Schedule A hereto),
from time-to-time and at any time, and whether atrnelating to a termination or expiration of titigreement, Customer may request
deconversion files or tapes or other data in CR@&session to be electronically accessed by Custonuelivered to location(s) specified by
Customer, in Customer’s sole discretion to thergbdeach request is practicable using all commédyciabsonable efforts. In the event
Customer requests additional data or data in ardifit format other than CSG'’s standard deconvedate package, Customer shall provide
CSG with specifications defining the desired d#te,format and the media upon which the data wveilplovided. Within five (5) business days
of receipt of such specifications, CSG shall noGiystomer of the estimated development hours asi$ cequired to produce the customized
data and a target date for delivery of such dapmnhcceptance of said estimated hours and cogsistpmer, such customized data shall be
provided at CSG's then current hourly rates in atance with Schedule D of this Agreement, as esfyesodified by the Award, including
and not limited to paragraph 2 of Relief Sectioth®reof. CSG shall use all commercially reasonefitits to minimize the scope, hours, cc
and expenses associated therewith. Without limttiregforegoing, in any instance where either phay given a notice of termination to the
other, they each agree that CSG’s obligation teigeseven (7) months termination assistance potdoeSection 18(a) above shall not
commence until CSG has delivered to Customerrigs fequest for live deconversion data pursuafection 18(a).

(e) CSG agrees that upon request of Customer, @8lBpsovide Customer up to sixty (60) days in adenly access on CSG's online system
(CCS/ACSR/Vantage). The fees for read only accags®G'’s online system shall be $****** per subsaitper month. Without limiting the
rights and remedies of Customer under this Agre¢ntlee Award, and Section 8 of Schedule A to thiseement, or otherwise, CSG
acknowledges and agrees that (subject to the tionits of liability set forth in Section 14 of thigreement), CSG is a bailee of any and all
supplied by Customer, its agents or subscribe®36, and any data in CSG’s possession derivedftbere

(f) CSG further agrees to perform the obligatioatsferth in Sections 18(a)-(d) of this Amendmemig éhat with respect to such obligations
TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE. To the extent CSG failp#oform obligations that it could have performethgommercially reasonable best
efforts, CSG and Customer agree that damages ana@equate remedy at law and that Customer maly &mpand be granted injunctive rel
and/or specific performance without the need for supersedeas or other bond or similar securignincourt of competent

CONFIDENTIAL AND PROPRIETARY INFORMATION. FOR USE B AUTHORIZED EMPLOYEES OF
THE PARTIES HERETO ONLY AND IS NOT FOR GENERAL DIRIBUTION WITHIN OR WITHOUT
THEIR RESPECTIVE COMPANIES.
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Jurlsdlctlon *k kkkkkkkkhk kkk khkkk kkk khkk kkk k% *kk kk kkkkkkk kkk kk hhk hkkkkhhhhikk kkkk *k kkkkk *khkk kkkkkkkkhk kkkkk
K*khkkkkkkkkkk kkkkkkkkhkk kkkk khkkhkkk k% *kkkkx *x% % *kkkkkkkkk kkkkkk kkk kkhkhk kkk *k *kk kkkkk *kk *kk *k kkkkk kkkkkkkk
kkkkkkkk kkk kkkk hkkkkkk kkkkkhk k% kkkk *hkkkkik *k *kkkkkkk kkk kkhkkkkk kk hkk kkkhhhhhhhkkikkhk *kkx *kkxk k*kkkk kkkk kkkkk kkk
khkkk kkk hkkkkkkkk *k kkkkkkhhhk kkkkhhkd dhkkkkhhhk * kkkkkkk kk kkk kkkkkhk kk kkkkhhhhhkkkx kkhhhhxx kkkx *kkk khkkkkkkkk *kk kkkx
kkk kkkk kk kkk kkkkk kkkkk kkk kkkk kkkk hkk kkkkk *%k kk kkkkkk kk kkk kkkkkhhhhkkk kk kkkk kkkhhhk kkk *kkkkkkkk kkk kkkkkkk
kkkkk kkk kkkkk kkk kkhkkk kkk hhkkkkkkk *khkkhkkkihik *kkkkkkk kkkkkhkhk kkkkkhkhhkhhkkk *kkk *kk k%% *kkk *% % *k kkkk kkkkhkhk kkkk hhkk
kkk kkkkkkk kk kkkkkk *k kkk hhkhhhkkkkkhkh dhkkkihik *kk * *%* *%* *%k kkkk kkkkk hkhk kkkkk kkk *kkkkhkkk kkkkhhkhkkkkx

*% * * *kkk *kk kkk kkk kkkk kkk *kkkkkkkkk kkhkk kkk khkkkkkk k% khkkhkk k% *kk hhkkkxkx *****. The fOfegOIng

Frerkkkkkk kkekkkk shall be Customer’s sole and exc lusive remedy for failure to perform its obligat@get forth in Subsections 18(a)-(e),
except in cases where Customer has been grantettiivie relief and/or specific performance

(g) All written notification from Customer shall Ipeirsuant to the terms and conditions of SectiariT®%he extent CSG deems any notice
received by Customer is not in compliance with Bec27, CSG shall notify Customer immediately af ixact nature of the deficiencies and
what information is needed for CSG to perform thguested tasks.

5. CSG acknowledges and agrees that all fees ardehrelating to its termination assistance diiwhereunder are subject thereto and shall
be deemed to be “charges and fees” referred tanagoaph 2 of Relief Section X of the Award. Howevte the extent the charges and fees
referred to in paragraph 2 of the Relief SectioofXhe Award do not provide pricing for servicesidfied in this Amendment or services
substantially similar thereto containing similanétionalities, such services shall be provided tstBmer at CSG’s then current hourly
consulting fee in accordance with paragraph 2 eRblief Section X of the Award. CSG shall identifig estimated hours and costs associated
therewith and will not commence any activity uilstomer agrees thereto. CSG shall use commercgionable efforts to minimize the
scope, hours, costs and expenses associated ttherewi

6. Wlthln ten (10) days Of the exeCUtIOﬂ Of thIS mdment, *kk hkkkkk kk hhkkkkkk kk hkkkkkkkh * kkkkkx *kkkhkhkkk kkkhhhhkkkkk *hhhkxx
kkkkkkkkkkkkkhkkkk kk * kkkk kkkkkkkkkk k% kkkkkkhkk *%k kkkkk kkk khkkkkkkkkk khkkkkkikk *kk kkk *hk dhkkkkx *%k kk kkkkkkkk *k k% k%
kkkkkkkk kk kkk kkkkkkk k% kkkhhkhkkkk kkkhkkkxxx % * kkkkkkkkkkkk kk kkkkkkhkhk k% *x k% * k% kkkk hhkkkkx *kkk kk kkkkkkkkk k% *
Kkhkkk kk kkkkkkkkk kkkkhkkkkkhhhk kkkkhkkhhhhikx khkkhhx *k hk kk kkk hhkkkkkkk hhkkhkkkkk kk khkkkkk *hkkkkx kkkk *hkkkkkkkk hkkk
khkkkkk kkkkhkk kk kkk hhkkkk kkhk kkkk kk *kk k% kkk *kkkk kkk kk khk hkkk khhhhhkhkx kk khkkhkkxk kkk kxk kkkkk kk kkk kk kkkkk
kkkkk kk k kkkkkk kkkkkkkk khkkhkhhkkk k% *khkkkkxk *k * * % * *kk kkkkkkkkkkhkhk kkkk *hkkk kkkk *kkkk kkkk k%
khkkkkkkkkk khkk kkkhhhhkk kkkk hhkkkx kkkkhk kkkk *kk *k hkk kkkkkhhhhkkk kkhhhhk kk khhhhkhkx kkk *kk *x%x % *kkkkkkhkk kk hhkkkkhkkkx
khkkkkkk khkhkk kkkk *k kkkkkkhhhk k% khkhkk kkkkik % *kk kk kkkkkk kk kkkkk hhkkkkkkkkhh khkkkkhhhk *xx % *k kkkkkkk kkk kkk
Kkkkkkkkkk kk kkk kkkkkkkhkkk kkhkkkhkkk k% kkkkkkkx *kk *kkkk kk kkkkkkkhhkkk k% kkk k% khkkk kkkk k% *kk kkk *k kkkk kkkkkkkk k%

*hkkkkkkk kkhk kkk hkkkk

CONFIDENTIAL AND PROPRIETARY INFORMATION. FOR USEB AUTHORIZED EMPLOYEES OF
THE PARTIES HERETO ONLY AND IS NOT FOR GENERAL DIRIBUTION WITHIN OR WITHOUT
THEIR RESPECTIVE COMPANIES.

5



Pages where confidential treatment

been requested are stampé&mbhfidentia

Treatment Requested and the Redacted Me
has been separately filed with the Commission,”

and places where information has been red

have been marked with (**!

*kkkkkkk kkkkkkkkk kkk kkk kk kkkkkkk kkk kkkkkkkkk *k kkk kkkkk kk kkkkkkkk kk k kkk k kk kkkk kkkkkkk *kk kkkkkkkk kkkk

** *% % ** * kk kkkkk kkkk kkkkkkhkkkk kkk kkkkkk kkkk kkkkk hhkkk hkhkhkkkkkh kkkkkhkhkkkkkk kkkk *kk kkkkkkkkkkkkkkkhkk

** * k% ** kkkkkkkk kk kkkk kkkkkkk % k% kkk kkhkk kkkkhk kkkkkhkkk kk kkkkkk hkkkk hkkk k% *kkk * kkhkkkkk kkhkk kkk kkkk
*kkkkkhk kkk kkkk kkkkk kkkkkkkkkk kk kkkkkkk k% *kk *kkkkkkk kkkkkkkkkhk kk kkkkkkkkkhkkk kk kkkkkkkk k% *k Kk k kk kkkk

** k% kkk kkk kkkk * kkhkk kkk kkkkkkkkhkkk k% kkkkkkkkkkk kk kkkk kkkkhkhkkk kkk k% kkk kkkkk *kk *kkkkhkhkhk kkkkkhkkkkkk k%

** *% % ** * kkkk k% * kk kkk kkkkkkk kkkkkkkk kkhkk kkkkhkkkkkkkhkhkkkkkk kkkkk kkhkkkkkkhk *k% * kkkkkkkkkk kk kkkk
*kkkkkkkkkk kkkkkkkkkkk 1 1+ 1 H 1 1 *kk kkkkkk kkkk

For the purpose of the acti  vities authorized or contemplated by this Sectiaf this Amendment,

*kkkk hkkk khkkkk kkhkkkkkhkk kkkkk *k kkkkkhk k% kkhkk *kk kkhkkkkkkkhkhk kkkkhkkkkkkhkhkhkk kkk kkkkk kkhkkkkk *kx% *k kk kkkkkkhk kkkk
kkkkkhkkhkkhkkk hhkhkkkhkhk kkk hhkkkk kkhkk k% *kk kkkkk * * Kk kkkkkkk kkkkkk kkhkkk khkhkhk kkhkkhkk kkkkkkkk kkkkkx kkkkkkkkkkk kkkkkkk
*kkk kkk kkkkkkkk kkkkkkhkkhk kk kkk kkk kkkkkkkkkkhkk kkkkkkkkk kk kkkkk kkkkkkkhkkk kkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkk k% *kk kkk kk kkkkk
*kkkkkkkkk kk k kkkkkk kkkk kk kkkkk kkkkkhkkk kkkkk * kk kkkkkkkk kk kkk kkkk kk kkk kkkkkkk kkkkkk kkk *kkkkk kkkkkkkk kkkkkkkk
kkkkkhkhkhkkhkkk khkhkhk kkk kkkkkkkhkkkkkk kkkkkkkk kkk *kkkx *kkk kkkkkkk kkkkhkhkkkk kk kkk kkhkkkkkk kkk kkkkhkkkkx *k kkhk kkkkkkk kkk
*kkkkk kkkkkkk kkkkhkhkhk kk kkhkkk kkkkkkkkk kkkkkkkkk * kkkkhkk kkkk kkk kkkkkkkkk kkk kkkkkkkkkhkhkkk kkk % *kkkkkkkkkhkkk
*kkkkkkkk kkk *% *kk *kk * kkkk kk kkkkkkk kkkkkk kkkkk kkkk kkkkkkk kkkk kkhkk kkkkkk kkkkkkkk * kkkk kkkkkkkkk kkk

** * *% *kkk kkkkkk kkk kkkk kkhkkkk *k kkk hkk kkkhkk kkk kkkkkkkhk kkkkhkhkhkkk kkhkhk kkkkkkx * kkkkkkkk kkkkkkhk kkk
*kkkkkkkkk kkkkkkkkhk kkkkkhkkkkk kkkkkkk kkkkkk *kkk *k kkk kkkkkkkkkkkhk kkkkkkkhkkkhkkhkhk kkkkkkkkk *kk %% *kkkkkkkkkk kkkk
*kkkkkk kkkkkk k% *kkk *% *k% * *kk kkkkkkkkkkk kkkkkkhkkkkkkk kkkkkkk kkkkkkkkkk *kk %% * kkkkk kkkkkkk

** k%% kkk % *kkk kkkkkkkkkkhkhkkk kkk kkkk kkkkkkk kkkkkkk kkkkkkkkkkik

7. Contemporaneously with execution of this Amendin€SG agrees to deliver to Customer a fully etestgountersigned letter, in form an
substance of that attached hereto as Exhibit “Alfici is incorporated herein by this reference.

8. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement or &miment to the contrary but subject to the lettéarenced in the immediately preceding
paragraph, CSG acknowledges and agrees that arsllgrayments, damages or liabilities of CUSIOMEEEG are *rrtttk dox okkokokokok xox

khkkkkkk kkkkkk kkk *kk *% kkkk *kk kkk kkk kkkkkhkhk kkkkkkhkh khkkk kk hkhk kk kkkhhhhkk khkhhhkhkx *%x K*kkhkkkk kkkkk k%

K*kkkkkk kk kkkk kkkkkkkkkkx

Both parties agree that the rights provided in 8gstion 8 are not exclusive in nature but ratihercamulative with other rights and remedie
the parties as set forth in this Amendment, thee&grent, the Award and otherwise.

This Amendment is executed on the day and yedrstirswn above.

CONFIDENTIAL AND PROPRIETARY INFORMATION. FOR USE B AUTHORIZED EMPLOYEES OF
THE PARTIES HERETO ONLY AND IS NOT FOR GENERAL DIRIBUTION WITHIN OR WITHOUT
THEIR RESPECTIVE COMPANIES.
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CSG Systems, In Comcast ABB Management Corporation, f/k/a AT&T Bdband
Management Corporatic

By: /sl Joseph T. Ruble By: /sl Terrel Ellis Davis

Name: Joseph T. Rubl Name: Terrel Ellis Davis

Title: SVP and General Couns Title: Vice President and Deputy General Coul

CONFIDENTIAL AND PROPRIETARY INFORMATION. FOR USEB AUTHORIZED EMPLOYEES OF
THE PARTIES HERETO ONLY AND IS NOT FOR GENERAL DIRIBUTION WITHIN OR WITHOUT
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EXHIBIT “A”
November 12, 200

Joseph Ruble, Esq.

CSG Systems, Inc.

7887 E. Belleview Ave., 10th Floor
Englewood, CO 80111

Re: AT&T Broadband Management Corporation. vGCS/stems, Inc.
AAA No. 77 181 00159 02 VSS

Dear Joe:

We write to confirm our agreement concerning CSGt&ns, Inc.’s (“CSG”) remaining payments to AT&ToBadband
Management Corporation (now known as Comcast ABBadament Corporation) (“ATTB”) under paragraph 4g)of the “Relief” section
(“Relief Paragraph One”) of the October 7, 2003aaiMthe “Award”) in the above-referenced arbitrati

Relief Paragraph One provides that CSG shall payB\Fr++++xxxxx plyg Grkxxxxx fgr egch month begi  nning July 1, 2003,
through the date of the Award, plus interest orséhsums at the rate of *% per annum from Octohenttil the date of payment. The parties
agree that damages shall be calculated and paidghrSeptember 30, 2003, while ATTB invoices comeirenOctober 1, 2003, shall reflect
those mandated by the Award. Thus, the total amowet] under Relief Paragraph One is $rrxvssssssx [ @, = Frvvrrkrkrrk 4 (Grarrrkkas
* 3)), plus interest. On ****+++ **+ 9003 CSG made partial payment of $********** glys interest tiereon of $*******+* Accordingly,
the remaining balance due and owing by CSG undkeffRaragraph One is $rr**¥¥rrex ([ @ = Frikkkkkrrik _ Grakkikkiir)  plus interest.

CSG and ATTB have agreed to the following paymehedule for the remaining amounts due and owinguRetlief Paragraph
One. CSG shall pay $** ***+++* gn or before Novemipel 7, 2003, plus interest at the rate of *% pernanmommencing on October 7, 2003.
For example, if CSG makes payment on NovemberhEn it must pay a total of $rrxxrrxsarrsin (@, | Frikkkkkkrk  (*x/365 * 4] days *
$rexrrrekik))  CSG shall then pay the remaining bance of $r***¥xrrxk (@, | Frakkkkkirk _ Gk on or before January 26, 20(
plus interest at the rate of *% per annum commaenom October 7, 2003. For example, if CSG makesngay on January 26, 2004 then it
must pay a total Of $******~k~k***** ( IL! $~k*****~k~k~k* + (**/365 * 111 days * $*~k~k~k******))

CONFIDENTIAL AND PROPRIETARY INFORMATION. FOR USEB AUTHORIZED EMPLOYEES OF
THE PARTIES HERETO ONLY AND IS NOT FOR GENERAL DIRIBUTION WITHIN OR WITHOUT
THEIR RESPECTIVE COMPANIES.
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The payments described in the immediately preceparggraph are to be made in accordance with tlenviog wiring instructions
Comcast ABB Management Corp., c/o Comcast CableliRgn., Inc.

Bank Name kkkkkkkk kkhkkk kkkkkhhhhkkxkx *k

Account Name *kkhkhhkk kkkkk hhkkhkkkk hk kkkkx
Bank ACCOU nt # *kkkkkkkkkkkk

Transit/Routing #  **xxrkkx

Payment by CSG in accordance with the above schedu instructions shall be full and complete &atiton of CSGS obligations
to ATTB under Relief Paragraph One. Provided thaG&omplies in all respects with the payment scleealnd instructions set forth above,
ATTB shall refrain from otherwise enforcing or exéing on Relief Paragraph One or any judgment deoentered in connection with Relief
Paragraph One. This shall not, however, limit éectfin any way, ATTB's rights to have the Awarddiuding Relief Paragraph One)
confirmed and converted to a judgment at any tiin@SG should fail to make full and timely paymémi&accordance with the schedule and
instructions set forth above, then, upon any aeditkt deviation from such schedule or instrucsioATTB shall have the right to immediately
enforce and execute upon Relief Paragraph Oneyojudgment or order entered in connection with &dHaragraph One, including, any
remedy under the Award, at law, equity or otherwise

The receipt and acceptance by ATTB of the $** ****payment on or before November 17, 2003, or atheppartial payment
under the Award, shall not be deemed nor constiué@ an accord and/or satisfaction nor a forbeasamaiver or estoppel by ATTB under
Award, at law, equity or otherwise.

Please indicate CS&agreement to the foregoing by countersigningpy od this letter and returning the same to mednsiimile a
720-267-3290.

Sincerely,

Comcast ABB Management Corporati

Terrel E. Davis
Vice President and Deputy General Coul

Joseph Ruble, Es
Senior Vice President and General Coul
CSG Systems, In

CONFIDENTIAL AND PROPRIETARY INFORMATION. FOR USEB AUTHORIZED EMPLOYEES OF
THE PARTIES HERETO ONLY AND IS NOT FOR GENERAL DIRIBUTION WITHIN OR WITHOUT
THEIR RESPECTIVE COMPANIES.
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Exhibit 2.33

FIRST AMENDMENT AND WAIVER, dated as of DecemberZ)03 (“* Amendment), to the AMENDED AND RESTATED
CREDIT AGREEMENT, dated as of February 28, 2002h@®tofore amended, supplemented or otherwisefiraddihe “ Credit Agreement
"), among CSG SYSTEMS INTERNATIONAL, INC., a Delameacorporation (“ Holding%), CSG SYSTEMS, INC., a Delaware corporation
(the “ Borrower”), the several banks and other financial institng or entities from time to time parties to theditr Agreement (the “ Lenders
"), BNP PARIBAS, as administrative agent (in suapacity, the “ Administrative Agefi}, LEHMAN COMMERCIAL PAPER INC., as
syndication agent (in such capacity, the “ Syndcafgent”), and CREDIT LYONNAIS NEW YORK BRANCH, THE BANK & NOVA
SCOTIA and WELLS FARGO BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATIONas co-documentation agents.

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Credit Agreement, the kenthave made loans and other extensions of ¢oettie Borrower on the
terms set forth in the Credit Agreement;

WHEREAS, the Borrower has requested that the Lenagree to amend and to waive certain provisioiseoCredit Agreement;
and

WHEREAS, the Lenders have agreed to such requasteddments and waivers on the terms and conditmmsined herein;

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto hereby agrdellasvs:

SECTION 1. DEFINITIONS Unless otherwise defined herein, all capitalitths used herein shall have the meanings given to
them in the Credit Agreement.

SECTION 2. AMENDMENT.

2.1 Amendments to Section 1.1 (Defined Terms).

(a) The definition of “ Applicable Margihin Section 1.1 of the Credit Agreement is amentteckad in its entirety as follows:

“ Applicable Margin”: for each Type of Loan under each Facility, the pieannum set forth opposite such Facility unte
relevant column heading below:

Base Rat LIBOR

Loans Loans
Revolving Credit Facility 2.0(% 3.25%
Tranche A Term Loan Facilit 2.0(% 3.25%

Tranche B Term Loan Facilit 2.25% 3.5(%



(b) The definition of “ Consolidated EBITDAIn Section 1.1 of the Credit Agreement is herabyended by adding, in clause (y)
thereof following the words “cash payments”, th@mession “other than Arbitration Payments maderdusiuch period in an aggregate amount
not exceeding, for all periods, $119,601,000)".

(c) The definition of “ Consolidated Fixed Chardds Section 1.1 of the Credit Agreement is herabyended by (i) adding
“(including the effect of any available loss cafoyward and tax refund)” immediately after the @eéfor such fiscal period” in clause (b) of
such definition and (ii) adding the following aetkend of the parenthetical phrase in clause (suofi definition:

“but excluding prepayments required by Section hefeof”.

(d) The definition of “ Consolidated Leverage Rdtia Section 1.1 of the Credit Agreement is herabyended by (i) deleting the
portion of such definition before the proviso thierend (ii) inserting the following in lieu of suateleted portion:

“on any date, the ratio of (a) Consolidated TotabbDon such date to (b) Consolidated EBITDA ofBloerower and its Subsidiaries
for the period of four consecutive fiscal quartefshe Borrower most recently ended on or priosuoh date;”.

(e) The definition of “ Material Adverse Effetin Section 1.1 of the Credit Agreement is herabyended by adding the following
proviso at the end thereof:

“ providedthat the Relief shall not constitute a Material Acse Effec”.

(f) The definition of “ Permitted Acquisitiohin Section 1.1 of the Credit Agreement is herabyended by (i) adding the phrase “as
in effect on the Closing Date” immediately aftee fphrase “under Section 7.1(a)” in paragraph (lsuah definition, (ii) replacing the amount
“$60,000,000" in clause (i) of paragraph (f) théretith the amount “zero”, (iii) replacing the exgston “1.00 to 1.00 or (ii)” in paragraph (f)
thereof with the expression “1.75 to 1.00, (ii) ¥BW,000, if the Consolidated Leverage Ratio (asadculated) is greater than or equal to 1.00
to 1.00 and less than 1.75 to 1.00 or (iii)".




(g) Section 1.1 of the Credit Agreement is hereimgiaded by adding the following definitions in thpioper alphabetical order:

“ Adjusted Consolidated EBITDA: for any period, the sum of (a) Consolidated EBA of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries for
such period, plugb) cash payments made during such period in régpeestructuring charges reflected in the statemoé Consolidated
Net Income for (x) to the extent such restructuchgrges constitute extraordinary, unusual or remoHring losses or expenses, any
preceding Fiscal Quarter and (y) otherwise, suclogeall as determined on a consolidated basmvigedthat the amounts referred to in
this clause (b) shall not, in the aggregate, ex&&000,000.

“ Arbitration Payment$: payments required to be made by Holdings oBbaower pursuant to the Ruling.

“ Average Recognized Revenue Per Subsciibfar any period with respect to any Material Guser Services Agreement, an
amount equal to (x) the amount of the total revaergegnized by the Borrower with respect to suchidval Customer Services
Agreement for such period divided by) the average number of subscribers under sudedhCustomer Services Agreement for such
period.

“ First Amendmen”: the First Amendment and Waiver, dated as of Dece®mp2003, to this Agreemer
“ First Amendment Effective Da”: as defined in the First Amendme
“ Relief ": Section X of the Ruling, a copy of which is amee hereto as Annex |II.

“Ruling ": the decision, issued in October, 2003, by thH@teator in the arbitration between the Borrowed ansubsidiary of
Comcast Corporation (which subsidiary was form&rngwn as AT&T Broadband Management Corporation) éman Arbitration No.
771810015902 VSS), with respect to the AT&T CustoBervice Agreement.

2.2 Amendment to Section 2.4 (Revolving Credit Catnrants). Section 2.4(a) of the Credit Agreement is heratmgnded by
adding the following sentence at the end of suati&e

“Notwithstanding the foregoing, during the periadrfi and including the First Amendment Effective ®antil the date of delivery
of the audited financial statements for the 208d4di year of the Borrower pursuant to Section §,1¢gether with the related compliance
certificate required pursuant to Section 6.2(h)(it) Loan shall be made on any Borrowing Date éoetktent that, after giving effect to
such Loan, the Total Revolving Extensions of Crediistanding on such Borrowing Date, when addgtiédorrower’s good faith
estimate of the aggregate amount of cash on hatitedorrower and its Subsidiaries as of the ctddmuisiness on the Business Day
immediately preceding the date on which the Bormgallotice in respect of such Loans shall have hiedinered to the Administrative
Agent pursuant to Section 2.5, as reflected onpatated report delivered pursuant to Section 5.i#ja)6 such date, shall exceed
$60,000,000.".




2.3 Amendment to Section 2 (Amount and Terms of @dments). Section 2 of the Credit Agreement is hereby aradria/
adding the following new Section 2.25 at the eratebf:

“2.25Additional Prepaymer. On or before July 30, 2004, the Term Loans dhalbrepaid in an aggregate amount equ
$30,000,000 (in addition to the amount, if anyp@ndatory prepayments required to be made befatedate pursuant to Section 2,12).
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary hereint, fwbject to Section 2.18(d), with prepayments pams to this Section shall be applied
to the Term Loans prataaccording to the respective outstanding principabants of such Term Loans and shall be applieddacge
the scheduled amortization installments for thenTepans payable on or after January 1, 2005 g@based on the remaining
outstanding principal amounts of such installménts.

2.4 Amendment to Section 5.3 (Conditions to Eactefsion of Credit) Section 5.3(a) of the Credit Agreement is heraimgnded
by adding the following new clause (iii) at the ghdreof:

“(iii) The Administrative Agent shall have received @pdated report (in a form substantially consistéth the reports delivere
pursuant to Section 6.2(h)(i) hereof but withow thclusion of cash on hand of Holdings and itsslibries other than the Borrower and
its Subsidiaries) reflecting the Borrower’s gooilHaestimate of aggregate amount of cash on hatigeoBorrower and its Subsidiaries as
of the close of business on the Business Day imatelgli preceding the date on which the Borrowingi®in respect of such Revolving
Extension of Credit is delivered to the AdministratAgent pursuant to Section 2.5, which reportldb&atrue and correct in all respects.”

2.5 Amendment to Section 6.2 (Certificates; Otiméordmation). Section 6.2 of the Credit Agreement is herebyradad by (i)
deleting the “and” at the end of paragraph (f) ¢oér (i) deleting the period at the end of parayrég) thereof and substituting “; and” in lieu
thereof, and (iii) adding the following new paraggngh) at the end thereof:

“(h) as soon as available, but in any event netrldtan thirty (30) days after the end of eachafisaonth of Holdings, (i) a report
substantially in the form of Annex | hereto showthg amount of cash held by Holdings and eacls@ithsidiaries as of the last day of
such month, which report shall set forth the appnate amount of cash held at Holdings and eachi@abg that is required to be
maintained at Holdings or such Subsidiary due gallecontractual or economic restrictions or wogkaapital needs, (ii) a report
indicating the number of Subscribers (as such ierdefined in the AT&T Customer Service Agreementatermined by the Ruling) of
the Customer (as so defined) processed by the Berrand its Subsidiaries during such month, arida(ifeport showing the aggregate
amount of processing revenue for the Borrower g8ubsidiaries for such month; providedt the reporting requirements set forth in
this Section 6.2(h) shall not apply at any time whge Consolidated Leverage Ratio on the last daélyeomost recently completed fiscal
quarter of the Borrower is equal to or less thaua, @mains at, 1.75 to 1.00.”.
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2.6 Amendment to Section 6.7 (Notice§ection 6.7 of the Credit Agreement is herebyraded by (i) deleting the “and” at the end
of paragraph (e) thereof, (ii) deleting the perdddhe end of paragraph (f) thereof and substigutirand” in lieu thereof, and (iii) adding the

following new paragraph (g) at the end thereof:

“(g) any amendment, supplement or other modificatibany Material Customer Services Agreement (twliepursuant to an
amendment, waiver, arbitration ruling, litigationatherwise), if such amendment, supplement or figadion, together with all other
such amendments, supplements or other modificatioasrring after the First Amendment Effective Dateuld (i) reduce the term of
such Material Customer Services Agreement, (iiehidne effect of causing the Average Recognized Rey®er Subscriber for such
Material Customer Services Agreement for the caemabnth most recently ended on or prior to the datsuch amendment, supplement
or other modification (calculated as if the propbaenendment, supplement or modification had beafféct throughout such period) to
be less than (A) in the case of the AT&T Customewvise Agreement, $0.4755 or (B) in the case of@hgr Material Services
Contracts, 90% of the Average Recognized RevenuS&#escriber for such Material Customer ServiceeeAment for such period
(calculated without giving effect to any amendmenfplement or modification made to such MateriadtGmer Service Agreement sit
the First Amendment Effective Date), (iii) adveysaffect the exclusivity provisions, if any, contad in such Material Customer Servi
Agreement as in effect on the First Amendment EiffedDate, or (iv) reasonably be expected to haveaterial Adverse Effect.”.

2.7 Amendment to Section 7.1(a) (Consolidated LayeiRatio) Section 7.1(a) of the Credit Agreement is herimgnded by

deleting such Section in its entirety and insertimg following in lieu thereof:

“(a) Consolidated Leverage Ra. Permit the Consolidated Leverage Ratio as alasteday of any period of four consecutive fis
guarters of the Borrower ending on the last dagnyf fiscal quarter set forth below, or as at any ptior to the last day of the succeeding

fiscal quarter, to exceed the ratio set forth betpposite such fiscal quarter:

Fiscal Quarter

FQ4 200z
FQ1 2004
FQ2 2004
FQ3 2004
FQ4 2004
FQ1 2005 and thereaft

Consolidated
Leverage Ratio

2.351t0 1.0C
2.50 to 1.0C
2.50 to 1.0C
2.50 to 1.0C
2.50 to 1.0C
1.50to 1.0".



2.8 Amendment to Section 7.1(c) (Consolidated FiRedrge Coverage Ratiopection 7.1(c) of the Credit Agreement is hereby
amended by adding, following the expression “tddss than”, the expression)‘(n the case of FQ4 2004, 1.30 to 1.00 and ffiijhie case of a
other such fiscal quarters,”.

2.9 Amendment to Section 7.1 (Minimum Adjusted Guidsited EBITDA). Section 7.1 of the Credit Agreement is herebyraiee
by adding the following new paragraph (d) at thd #ereof:

“(d) Minimum Adjusted Consolidated EBITD. Permit Adjusted Consolidated EBITDA for any fisqaarter set forth below to t
less than the amount set forth below opposite §iachl quarter:

Adjusted
Consolidated EBITDA

Fiscal Quarter

FQ4 200z $19,000,00(

FQ1 2004 $19,000,00(
FQ2 2004 $19,000,00(
FQ3 2004 $20,000,00(
FQ4 2004 $20,000,00".

2.10 Amendment to Section 7.6 (Limitation on Restd Payments)Section 7.6(e) of the Credit Agreement is herafmgnded by
(i) replacing the word “and” at the end of clauggA) with a comma, (ii) adding the phrase “bus¢ethan 1.75 to 1.00” following the phrase
“greater than or equal to 1.50 to 1.00” in claugéB) thereof and (iii) adding, at the end of c&w(ii)(B) thereof and before the proviso thereto,
the expressiondnd (C) if the Consolidated Leverage Ratio as efldist day of the most recently ended fiscal quaftéloldings is greater the
or equal to 1.75 to 1.00, zero”.

2.11 Amendment to Section 7.7 (Limitation on Cdtependitures) Section 7.7 of the Credit Agreement is herebyradad by
deleting the proviso in clause (a) of such Secdiod inserting the following in lieu thereof:

“ providedthat (i) up to $25,000,000 of any such amount refkto above, if not so expended in the fiscal yeawhich it is
permitted, may be carried over for expenditurehmnext succeeding fiscal year, (i) Capital Exprmds made pursuant to this clause (a)
during any fiscal year shall be deemed made, firstespect of amounts carried over from the piigral year pursuant to subclause (i)
above and, secondn respect of amounts permitted for such fisearyas provided above, and (iii) notwithstanding atther provision o
this Section, (A) the aggregate amount of Capitgddaditures made by Holdings and its Subsidiaridtscal year 2004 shall not exceed
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$15,000,000 and (B) any unused amount of CapitpeBditures permitted by the foregoing clause (egfiher of fiscal years 2003 or
2004 may not be carried over for expenditure in sufysequent fiscal year.”.

2.12 Amendment to Section 7.8 (Limitation on Inweshts). (a) Section 7.8(c) of the Credit Agreement isshgramended by (i)
deleting the “andat the end of clause (A) thereof and insertingraroa in lieu thereof and (ii) inserting the followimew clause (C) at the e
of such Section:

“and (C) at any time after the First Amendment BffecDate, $2,000,000 in the aggregate for all duelestments pursuant to tt
clause (C).".

(b) Section 7.8(n) of the Credit Agreement is hgraimended by adding the following proviso at the ehsuch Section:
“, providedthat, after giving effect to each such Investm#rg, Consolidated Leverage Ratio is less than ©h2500”.

(c) Section 7.8(q) of the Credit Agreement is hgraimended by adding the following proviso at thd efsuch Section:

“, and provided further, that the aggregate consideration parspect of all Investments made pursuant to thiagraph after the
First Amendment Effective Date at any time when@oasolidated Leverage Ratio is greater than 17500 shall not exceed
$3,000,000;".

(d) Section 7.8(r) of the Credit Agreement is hgratnended by (i) deleting the “andt the end of clause (A) thereof and inserti
comma in lieu thereof and (ii) inserting the follogy new clause (C) at the end of such Section:
“and (C) at any time after the First Amendment Efffee Date, $2,000,000 in the aggregate for alhdnwestments pursuant to this
clause (C).".
(e) Section 7.8(u) of the Credit Agreement is hgratmended by adding the following proviso at the grereof:
“, providedthat the aggregate amount of Investments made guirsol this paragraph after the First Amendmengdive Date at
any time when the Consolidated Leverage Ratiogatgr than 1.75 to 1.00 shall not exceed $5,000,000
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2.13 Amendment to Section 7.17 (Limitation on Ameeahts to Other Documentspection 7.17 of the Credit Agreement is hereby
amended by (i) deleting the “or” directly precediriguse (c) thereof, (ii) deleting clause (c) tloérend (iii) inserting in lieu thereof the
following new clauses (c) and (d):

“(c) amend, supplement or otherwise modify, or sufb exist any amendment, supplement or other fication (whether pursuant
to an amendment, waiver, arbitration ruling, litiga or otherwise) of, the terms and conditionshef AT&T Customer Services
Agreement, if such amendment, supplement or madiin, together with all other such amendmentspkupents or other modifications
occurring after the First Amendment Effective Datzuld (i) reduce the term thereof, (ii) have thieef of causing the Average
Recognized Revenue Per Subscriber for the AT&T @ust Services Agreement for the calendar month necsintly ended on or prior
to the date of such amendment, supplement or atbeification (calculated as if such amendment, &mppnt or modification had been
in effect throughout such period) to be less thad #65, (iii) adversely affect the exclusivity pisiens contained in the AT&T Customer
Services Agreement as in effect on the First Ameasmriffective Date or (iv) reasonably be expectedave a Material Adverse Effect
or (d) concede or otherwise acquiesce in any mathia¢the damages due to the Borrower, should tretother (as defined in the AT&T
Customer Service Agreement) unilaterally terminbteAT&T Customer Service Agreement, be limite&#a,000,000.".

2.14 Amendment to Section 8(h) (Events of Defauiection 8(h) of the Credit Agreement is herebgaded by (i) deleting the
phrase “judgments or decrees” each time it appeasch Section and substituting in lieu thereafijments, decrees or arbitral decisions”.

2.15 Annex A. Annex A to the Credit Agreement is hereby amertdeagad in its entirety as set forth on Annex Achte.

2.16 Annex I; Annex Il The Credit Agreement is hereby amended to addmasex 1” and “Annex 11" thereto the respective fos
attached as Schedule | and Schedule Il hereto.

SECTION 3. COMMITMENT REDUCTION Pursuant to Section 2.10 of the Credit Agreenefiective as of the Amendment
Effective Date, the Borrower hereby permanentlyuced the aggregate amount of the Revolving Creatiti@itments to $40,000,000.

SECTION 4. WAIVER. The Lenders hereby waive any Default or Everideffault that may have occurred prior to the First
Amendment Effective Date (a) as a result of anyustepresentation or warranty made by any Loaty Parsuant to any Loan Document,
solely to the extent such representation or wayrasats untrue because of the Relief or (b) othensidely because of the Relief.

SECTION 5. MISCELLANEOUS

5.1 Conditions to Effectivenes. This Amendment shall become effective on the @ate* Amendment Effective Dat”) on which
the following conditions are satisfied (or waived):




(a) The Administrative Agent shall have receivecea&acuted counterpart of this Amendment duly exegtand delivered by the
Borrower and Holdings;

(b) The Administrative Agent shall have receiveéaxed Lender Consent Letters in the form attatieedto as Exhibit A (the “
Lender Consent Lett&) from the Required Lenders consenting to the eken of this Amendment by the Administrative Agemtovided that
the amendments effected by Sections 2.10, 2.1a¢hpd 2(d) of this Amendment shall not become ¢iffeaunless the Administrative Agent
shall have received executed Lender Consent Ldttarsthe Supermajority Lenders;

(c) The Administrative Agent shall have receivedearcuted Acknowledgment and Consent (the “Ackndgéenent and Consent”
together with this Amendment, the “* Amendment Doeuiation”) in the form attached hereto as Exhibit B froncle&ubsidiary Guarantor
(together with the Borrower and Holdings, the “ Ardenent Partied);

(d) The Administrative Agent shall have receivedearcuted legal opinion of Joseph Ruble, Esq., géreunsel to the Borrower,
reasonably satisfactory in form and substanceddthministrative Agent; and

(e) The Administrative Agent shall have receivedtfe account of each Lender executing and detigesi Lender Consent Letter
on or before 5:00 P.M., New York time, on Decembe2003, an amendment fee equal to 0.25% of theefgde Exposure of such Lender
(such Aggregate Exposure to be calculated afténgieffect to the permanent reduction of the T&aVolving Credit Commitments as set fc
in this Amendment).

5.2 Representation and Warrantié$oldings and the Borrower represent and war@thé Agents and the Lenders that (i) all
representations and warranties made by the Loare®ar the Loan Documents and in the AmendmentiD@ntation are true and correct in
all material respects on and as of the Amendmefeckfe Date, after giving effect to this Amendmea if made on and as of the Amendment
Effective Date and (ii) no Default or Event of Deffashall have occurred and be continuing as ofAtnendment Effective Date after giving
effect to this Amendment. Without limiting the geal@y of the preceding sentence, Holdings andBbeower represent and warrant to the
Agents and the Lenders that Holdings and the Bagrawe in compliance with Section 6.9 of the Crégjteement.

5.3 Release of Claims=ach of Holdings and the Borrower hereby (andexscution and delivery of the Acknowledgement and
Consent, each other Loan Party hereby) unconditigrieeely, voluntarily and, after consultationtiwicounsel and becoming fully and
adequately informed as to the relevant facts, oistances and consequences, releases, waives audrfdischarges (and further agrees not to
allege, claim or pursue) (a) any and all liabiltiendebtedness and obligations, whether knowmknaown, of any kind whatsoever, of any
Lender, any Agent or any of such Lender’s or Ageptesent or former subsidiaries, affiliates, @ffs; directors, employees, attorneys or other
representatives or agents (collectively with tme@pective successors and assigns, the “ Lendée$qto any Loan Party, (b) any legal,
equitable or other obligations of any kind whatsrewhether known or unknown, of any
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Lender Party to any Loan Party (and any rightsngfleoan Party against any Lender Party), (c) ardyahclaims, whether known or unknown,
under any oral or implied agreement with (or oltligm or undertaking of any kind whatsoever of) &eynder Party which is different from or
in addition to the express terms of this Amendmtrg,Credit Agreement and the other Loan Documamdis(d) all other claims, rights, causes
of action, counterclaims or defenses of any kindtsbever, in contract or in tort, in law or in dguivhether known or unknown, direct or
derivative, which such Loan Party or any predeagssmcessor or assigh might otherwise have orhmag against any Lender Party on
account of any conduct, condition, act, omissiaene, contract, liability, obligation, demand, caaat, promise, indebtedness, claim, right,
cause of action, suit, damage, defense, circumstanmatter of any kind whatsoever, in the caseash of the foregoing clauses (a) through
(d) which existed, arose or occurred at any timerpo the Amendment Effective Date and arose étth@ Loan Documents or the financing
made available by the Lender Parties pursuantetdtlan Documents or any transactions directly eelaliereto.

5.4 Continuing Effect; No Other Waivers or Amendtsehis Amendment shall not constitute an amendroentaiver of or
consent to any provision of the Credit Agreemermt tre other Loan Documents not expressly refeduetein and shall not be construed a
amendment, waiver or consent to any action on déinegs the Borrower that would require an amendmematver or consent of the
Administrative Agent or the Lenders except as esglyestated herein. Except as expressly amendethyhehe provisions of the Credit
Agreement and the other Loan Documents are antirehadin in full force and effect in accordancehntiteir terms.

5.5 CounterpartsThis Amendment may be executed in any numbeepésite counterparts by the parties hereto (inatubly
telecopy), each of which counterparts when so execshall be an original, but all the counterpahall together constitute one and the same
instrument.

5.6 Payment of Fees and Expens&kle Borrower agrees to pay or reimburse the Atstrative Agent and the Syndication Agent
for all of their reasonable out-of-pocket costs esmsonable expenses incurred in connection wighAtmendment, any other documents
prepared in connection herewith and the transesttomtemplated hereby, including, without limitatithe reasonable fees and disbursements
of counsel to the Administrative Agent and the Sgation Agent.

5.7 GOVERNING LAW. THIS WAIVER AND THE RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF THEPARTIES UNDER THIS WAIVEF
SHALL BE GOVERNED BY, AND CONSTRUED AND INTERPRETEIN ACCORDANCE WITH, THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF
NEW YORK.

[The remainder of this page is intentionally lefartk.]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have catissdAmendment to be executed and delivered by tespective duly
authorized officers as of the date first abovetemnit

CSG SYSTEMS INTERNATIONAL, INC

By: /s/ Peter E. Kala

Name: Peter E. Kals
Title: SVP and CFC

CSG SYSTEMS, INC

By: /s/ Peter E. Kala

Name: Peter E. Kals
Title: SVP and CFC

BNP PARIBAS, as Administrative Age

By: /s/ Susan M. Bowes

Name: Susan M. Bowe
Title: Director

By: /s/ Lee S. Buckner

Name: Lee S. Buckne
Title: Managing Directo
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EXHIBIT A
LENDER CONSENT LETTER

FIRST AMENDMENT TO
AMENDED AND RESTATED CREDIT AGREEMENT

To: BNP Paribas, as Administrative Agent
c/o Simpson Thacher & Bartlett LLP
425 Lexington Avenue
New York, New York 10017

Re: First Amendment to Amended and RestatediChgdeement

Ladies and Gentlemen:

Reference is made to the AMENDED AND RESTATED CREBIGREEMENT, dated as of February 28, 2002 (astbéoee
amended, supplemented or otherwise modified, ieetlit Agreement), among CSG SYSTEMS INTERNATIONAL, INC., a Delarea
corporation (“ Holdings), CSG SYSTEMS, INC., a Delaware corporation (tlgorrower”), the several banks and other financial institos
or entities from time to time parties to the Creflireement (the “ Lender3, BNP PARIBAS, as administrative agent (in suelpacity, the “
Administrative Agent), LEHMAN COMMERCIAL PAPER INC., as syndication agt (in such capacity, the “ Syndication Ag&ntand
CREDIT LYONNAIS NEW YORK BRANCH, THE BANK OF NOVA E0TIA and WELLS FARGO BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION,
as co-documentation agents. Unless otherwise dkefieeein, all capitalized terms used herein shatetthe meanings given to them in the
Credit Agreement.

The Borrower has requested that the Lenders cotsamend and waive certain provisions of the Grdreement on the terms
described in the First Amendment to which a fornthi Lender Consent Letter is attached as ExAilfthe “* Amendment).

Pursuant to Section 10.1 of the Credit Agreeméetundersigned Lender hereby consents to the earduyt the Administrative
Agent of the Amendment.

Very truly yours,

(NAME OF LENDER)

By:

Name:
Title:

Dated: , 2003



EXHIBIT B
ACKNOWLEDGMENT AND CONSENT

Each of the undersigned parties (the “ Grantpte the Amended and Restated Guarantee and €adlaAgreement, dated as of
February 28, 2002, as amended, supplemented amasieemodified from time to time, made by the ursilgmed in favor of the Administrative
Agent for the benefit of the Lenders, hereby (a)semts to the transactions contemplated by thé &Airendment, dated as of December 5,
2003, to the Credit Agreement (the “* Amendm®ntb) represents and warrants to the Agents had enders that the representations and
warranties made in the Amendment in respect of &relmtor are true and correct in all material retpe(c) ratifies, acknowledges and agrees
to the provisions of Section 5.3 of the Amendmemtt @) acknowledges and agrees that the guaraateegrants of security interests contai
in such Amended and Restated Guarantee and Callatgreement and in the other Security Documergsamd shall remain, in full force and
effect after giving effect to the First Amendmendaall prior modifications to such Amended and Rext Guarantee and Collateral
Agreement..

CSG SYSTEMS INTERNATIONAL, INC

By:

Name:
Title:

CSG SYSTEMS, INC

By:

Name:
Title:

PLANET CONSULTING, INC.

By:

Name:
Title:

CSG SOFTWARE, INC

By:

Name:
Title:




CSG AMERICAS HOLDING, INC

By:

Name:
Title:

CSG CANADA HOLDINGS, INC.

By:

Name:
Title:

CSG SYSTEMS CANADA CORF

By:

Name:
Title:
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ANNEX A
PRICING GRID

PRICING GRID FOR COMMITMENT FEES

Consolidated Leverage Ratio Commitment Fee Rate
Greater than or equal to 1.25t0 1 0.50%
Less than 1.25 to 1.( 0.375%

Changes in the Applicable Margin with respect t @ommitment Fee Rate resulting from changes iilCthesolidated Leverage Ratio
shall become effective on the date (the “ Adjusthizsite”) on which financial statements are deliveredit® tenders pursuant to Section 6.1
(but in any event not later than the 45th day afterend of each of the first three quarterly p#siof each fiscal year or the 90th day after the
end of each fiscal year, as the case may be) aildremain in effect until the next change to bieeted pursuant to this paragraph. If any
financial statements referred to above are noveedd within the time periods specified above, thentil such financial statements are
delivered, the Consolidated Leverage Ratio aseaétid of the fiscal period that would have beereoed thereby shall for the purposes of this
Pricing Grid be deemed to be greater than 2.0000. 1n addition, at all times while an Event off@dt shall have occurred and be continuing,
upon notice from the Administrative Agent to theriover at the request of the Required LendersCitresolidated Leverage Ratio shall for
purposes of this Pricing Grid be deemed to be gréhin 2.00 to 1.00. Each determination of thesGbdated Leverage Ratio pursuant to this
Pricing Grid shall be made for the periods anchenmanner contemplated by Section 7.1(a).



Exhibit 21.01

CSG SYSTEMS INTERNATIONAL, INC.
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2003

SUBSIDIARY

CSG Systems, In

CSG Software, Inc

CSG Services, Inc

CSG Americas Holding, Inc
CSG Canada Holdings, In
CSG Technology Limite:

CSG Systems Canada Cc
DaVinci Technologies, Inc
CSG Netherlands, B'

CSG International Limite

CSG Belgium S.P.R.L

CSG France SA

CSG Germany Gmbl

CSG ltaly S.R.L

CSG Silicon Iberia, S.L

CSG Australia Pty. Limite:
CSG Systems India Private Limited (
CSG Japan K¥

CSG Korea Limited Compar
CSG Systems Singapore Pte. L
CSG Argentina S.R.L

CSG Systems do Brasil Lt
CSG Systems de Mexico S de RL de

STATE OR COUNTRY
OF INCORPORATION

Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Bermuda

Nova Scotia, Cana
Ontario, Canad
Netherlands
United Kingdom
Belgium
France
Germany

Italy

Spain
Australia

India

Japar

Korea
Singapore
Argentina
Brazil

Mexico



EXHIBIT 23.01
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS ™ CONSENT

The Board of Directors
CSG Systems International, Inc.:

We consent to the incorporation by reference in Gy&ems International, Inc.’s Registration Statet®en Forms S-8 (File Nos. 333-10315,
333-32951, 333-48451, 333-83715, 333-42202, 33%818nd 333-104206) of our report dated March D042 with respect to the
consolidated balance sheets of CSG Systems Inienagtinc. and subsidiaries as of December 31320@ 2002, and the related consolidated
statements of operations, stockholders’ equity,casth flows for the years then ended, which regmpears in the December 31, 2003 annual
report on Form 10-K of CSG Systems Internatiorrad, Dur report contains an explanatory paragraptudsing our audit of certain
adjustments that were applied to restate the disods for reportable segments reflected in the Bbee 31, 2001 financial statements, which
were audited by other auditors who have ceasedatipes. However, we were not engaged to auditerevor apply any procedures to the 2
consolidated financial statements other than végtpect to such adjustments. Our report refersctmage in the method of accounting for
stock-based compensation during 2003.

KPMG LLP

Denver, Colorado
March 10, 2004



Exhibit 31.01

CERTIFICATIONS PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Neal C. Hansen, certify that:

1.
2.

Date:

I have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of CSG Systems International, In

Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omététe a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts under which such statements were made, nk#adisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor

Based on my knowledge, the financial statement$oéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this rep

The registrar's other certifying officer and | are responsible establishing and maintaining disclosure contrals procedures (¢
defined in Exchange Act Rules -15(e) and 15-15(e)) for the registrant and ha

(@)

(b)
(©)

(d)

Designed such disclosure controls and proceduregused such disclosure controls and proceduies tlesigned under o
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgrite period in which this report is being prepa

[Paragraph omitted pursuant to SEC Release N-8238 and 3-47986]

Evaluated the effectiveness of the regis’s disclosure controls and procedures and preséntad report our conclusions abc
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andgulures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such
evaluation; ant

Disclosed in this report any change in the regid’s internal controls over financial reporting thatorred during the registre s
most recent fiscal quarter that has materiallycéf@, or is reasonably likely to materially affette registrans internal control ove
financial reporting; an

The registrar's other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdmion our most recent evaluation of internal @miver financia
reporting, to the registre’s auditors and the audit committee of the regi¢’'s board of directors

(@)
(b)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contradiofinancial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmhcial information; ant

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significdain the registra’s
internal control over financial reportin

March 12, 200 /s/ NEAL C. H ANSEN

Neal C. Hansen
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.02

CERTIFICATIONS PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Peter E. Kalan, certify that:

1.
2.

Date:

I have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of CSG Systems International, In

Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omététe a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts under which such statements were made, nk#adisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor

Based on my knowledge, the financial statement$oéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this rep

The registrar's other certifying officer and | are responsibledetablishing and maintaining disclosure contanld procedures (i
defined in Exchange Act Rules -15(e) and 15-15(e)) for the registrant and ha

(@)

(b)
(©)

(d)

Designed such disclosure controls and proceduregused such disclosure controls and proceduies tlesigned under o
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgrite period in which this report is being prepa

[Paragraph omitted pursuant to SEC Release N-8238 and 3-47986]

Evaluated the effectiveness of the regis’s disclosure controls and procedures and preséntad report our conclusions abc
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andgulures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such
evaluation; ant

Disclosed in this report any change in the regid’s internal controls over financial reporting thatorred during the registre s
most recent fiscal quarter that has materiallycéf@, or is reasonably likely to materially affette registrans internal control ove
financial reporting; an

The registrar's other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdmion our most recent evaluation of internal @miver financia
reporting, to the registre’s auditors and the audit committee of the regi¢’'s board of directors

(@)
(b)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contradiofinancial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmhcial information; ant

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significdain the registra’s
internal control over financial reportin

March 12, 200 /s/ PETERE. K ALAN

Peter E. Kalan
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office



Exhibit 32.01

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

The certification set forth below is being subndtta connection with the Annual Report on Form 1@tie “Report”) for the purpose of
complying with Rule 13a-14(b) or Rule 15d-14(b}té Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchafag) and Section 1350 of Chapter 63
of Title 18 of the United States Code.

Neal C. Hansen, the Chief Executive Officer ancePEt Kalan, the Chief Financial Officer of CSG ®yss International Inc., each
certifies that, to the best of his knowledge:
(1) the Report fully complies with the requiremeotsSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act; and
(2) the information contained in the Report faplgsents, in all material respects, the finanaaldition and results of operations
CSG Systems International, Inc.

March 12, 200

/s/  NEeaL C. HANSEN

Neal C. Hansen
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

March 12, 200

/s PeTERE. K ALAN

Peter E. Kalan
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office



Exhibit 99.01

SAFE HARBOR FOR FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS UNDER TH E PRIVATE SECURITIES
LITIGATION REFORM ACT OF 1995

CERTAIN CAUTIONARY STATEMENTS AND
RISK FACTORS

CSG Systems International, Inc. and its subsidigigellectively, the “Company or forms of the prond'we”) or their representatives from
time-to-time may make or may have made certain dotooking statements, whether orally or in wititncluding without limitation, any
such statements made or to be made in Managenizgiatassion and Analysis of Financial Condition &ebults of Operations (“MD&A”)
contained in our various SEC filings or orally ionderences or teleconferences. We wish to ensatestith statements are accompanied by
meaningful cautionary statements, so as to ensutestfullest extent possible the protections efghfe harbor established in the Private
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.

ACCORDINGLY, THE FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS ARE QUWFIED IN THEIR ENTIRETY BY REFERENCE TO AND ARE
ACCOMPANIED BY THE FOLLOWING MEANINGFUL CAUTIONARY STATEMENTS IDENTIFYING CERTAIN IMPORTANT
FACTORS THAT COULD CAUSE ACTUAL RESULTS TO DIFFERATERIALLY FROM THOSE IN SUCH FORWARD-LOOKING
STATEMENTS.

This list of factors is likely not exhaustive. Wperate in a rapidly changing and evolving busimegslving the converging global
telecommunications industry (e.g., cable televis@BS, wireline and wireless telephony, Interned aigh speed data, etc.), and new risk
factors will likely emerge. Management cannot peedll of the important risk factors, nor can isass the impact, if any, of such risk factor
our business or the extent to which any factocamnbination of factors, may cause actual resultiffer materially from those in any forward-
looking statements.

ACCORDINGLY, THERE CAN BE NO ASSURANCE THAT FORWARDOOKING STATEMENTS WILL BE ACCURATE
INDICATORS OF FUTURE ACTUAL RESULTS, AND IT IS LIKEY THAT ACTUAL RESULTS WILL DIFFER FROM RESULTS
PROJECTED IN FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS AND THAT StH DIFFERENCES MAY BE MATERIAL.

CURRENT ECONOMIC STATE OF THE GLOBAL TELECOMMUNICAT IONS INDUSTRY

The economic state of the global telecommunicatiodastry continues to be depressed, with manp@itompanies operating within this
industry publicly reporting decreased revenueseardings, as well as several companies filing forkdouptcy protection. Public reports
indicate any expected turnaround in the econonaie gif the global telecommunications industry cdwédslow, and a sustained recovery could
take several years. Many telecommunications conegamve announced cost and capital expendituretiedyprograms to cope with the
depressed economic state of the industry. Since ofi@air current and future clients operate witthis industry sector, the economic state of
this industry directly impacts our business, pagiytlimiting the amount of products and serviaesrent or future clients may purchase from
us, as well as increasing the likelihood of unatitde amounts from current and future accountsikable and lengthening the cash collection
cycle. For these reasons, the current economicitbmmsl may impact our future results of operatians limit our ability to grow our revenues.
Since a significant amount of our GSS Division’simess comes from international sources withinitidsistry sector, this presents a
significant risk to our ability to timely collectuo accounts receivable, and to achieve and maiptaifitability for this division of our business.

GSS DIVISION’S GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Key drivers of the value of the acquired Kenan Bass and the other businesses that we have ass@trerlGSS Division are the global
telecommunications industry customer base anddfieare assets acquired. In
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connection with these acquisitions, as of DecerBlie2003, we had approximately $219 million of gewdldand other long-lived intangible
assets (client contracts and software) with a agyng value of approximately $38 million. In atidh to the requirement to perform an anr
goodwill impairment test, goodwill and other lotiged intangible assets are required to be evatlfatepossible impairment on a periodic b
(e.g., quarterly) if events occur or circumstandesnge that would indicate that a possible impaitroéthese assets may have occurred.
During the second quarter of 2003, we determinatttiere was a sufficient concern about the cagryaiue of these assets in light of the
current market conditions and the recent opergterfprmance of this division. As a result, we ee#dd the carrying value of the GSS
Division’s goodwill and related long-lived intand¢gbassets, and concluded an impairment of suchsasad not occurred. We will continue to
monitor the carrying value of these assets dutimgeconomic downturn. If the current economic dtads worsen and/or take longer to
recover than anticipated, it is reasonably posdshde a review for impairment of the GSS Divisiog@odwill and/or related long-lived
intangible assets in the future may indicate thas¢ assets are impaired, and the amount of impaircould be substantial.

CLIENT BANKRUPTCIES

Certain of our clients have filed for bankruptcyfaction, with Adelphia Communications representimglargest one for us. Companies
involved in bankruptcy proceedings pose greatemfimal risks to us, consisting principally of pddsiclaims of preferential payments for
certain amounts paid to us prior to the bankrufitoyg date, as well increased collectibility rigdr accounts receivable, in particular, those
accounts receivable that relate to periods prighéocbankruptcy filing date. We consider such riskassessing our revenue recognition and the
collectibility of accounts receivable related ta alients that have filed for bankruptcy protectidvie establish accounting reserves for our
estimated exposure on these items. However, tlzgrée no assurance that our accounting resenagsddb these items are adequate. Should
any of the factors considered in determining theqadcy of the overall reserves change adverselgdmstment to the provision for doubtful
account receivables may be necessary. Because pbthntial significance of these items, such gustishent could be material.

RESTRUCTURING ACTIVITIES

As a result of the Comcast arbitration ruling, weplemented of a cost reduction initiative during faurth quarter of 2003, which is targete:
reduce our operating expenses by approximatelyn#iBion in 2004, when compared to the third qua&803 annualized operating expense
rate. See MD&A, “Restructuring Charges” for additi discussions of this matter. There can be narasse that our cost reduction initiatives
will achieve the expected cost savings within tkgeeted time frame, while simultaneously not jedang our revenue opportunities.

During 2003 and 2002, we recorded restructuringggsarelated to involuntary employee terminatioms @arious facilities
abandonments. The accounting for facilities abandons requires significant judgments in determirimgrestructuring charges, primarily
related to the assumptions regarding the timingtheacamount of any potential sublease arrangenfientse abandoned facilities, and the
discount rates used to determine the present wdlthes liabilities. We continually evaluate thessamptions, and adjust the related facilities
abandonment reserves based on the revised assomatithat time. In addition, we continually evaduaays to cut our operating expenses
through restructuring opportunities, to include tiiization of our workforce and current operatifiagilities. As a result, there is a reasonable
possibility that we may incur additional materiastructuring charges in the future.

RELIANCE ON KEY CUSTOMER CARE AND BILLING PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

Historically, a substantial percentage of our toégkenues have generated from our core servicabymocessing product, CSG CCS/BP
(“CCS"), and related services. These CCS produudssarvices are expected to provide a large peagerdf our, and most of the Broadband
Division’s, total revenues in the foreseeable fatur



Historically, a substantial percentage of the G38sidn’s revenues have been generated from its costomer care and billing system
product, CSG Kenan FX (formerly CSG Kenan/BP) nidude software maintenance services and profegssenvices associated with this
product. CSG Kenan FX software licenses and relspéitvare maintenance services and professionalcesrare expected to provide a large
percentage of the GSS Division’s total revenuabénforeseeable future.

Any reduction in demand for CCS and/or CSG KenaraR¥ related services discussed above could hematexial adverse effect on our
financial condition and results of operations, irtthg possible impairments to related goodwill atfter intangible assets.

TECHNOLOGICAL INNOVATION

The market for customer care and billing systenthégacterized by rapid changes in technology aimigihly competitive with respect to t
need for timely product innovations and new prodotbductions. We believe that our future sucéesaistaining and growing our revenues
depends upon continued market acceptance of oterduyproducts, including CCS and CSG Kenan FX,@mdability to continuously adapt,
modify, maintain, and operate our products to askltke increasingly complex and evolving needauofttients, without sacrificing the
reliability or quality of the products. As a residtibstantial research and development will beiredio maintain the competitiveness of our
products and services in the market.

In particular, the Broadband Division is curreritlyolved in a significant architectural change ©©6%to further support convergent broadband
services including cross-service bundling, convergeder entry and advanced service provisionirgabdities. CCS’s advanced convergent
solution is expected to be the Broadband Divisiorgst generation product offering.

In addition, we recently introduced Kenan FX, whadmbined certain software technologies we hadipusly developed with the best of the
Kenan B/P product family. Kenan FX is the resulanf18-month R&D project that resulted in a businfiesmework consisting of pre-
integrated products and modules that make seraiaitable via a common middle layer. Kenan FX ipepted to be the GSS Division’s
primary product offering in future periods.

There is an inherent risk of technical problemmaintaining and operating our products and senasethe complexities are increased.
Development projects can be lengthy and costly,aaadsubject to changing requirements, programmiffigulties, a shortage of qualified
personnel, and unforeseen factors which can resdilays. In addition, we are typically responsifr the implementation of new products,
and depending upon the specific product, may atsebponsible for operations of the product. Thgeen inherent risk in the successful
implementation and operations of these producthegechnological complexities increase. Therelzano assurance: (i) of continued market
acceptance of our current products; (i) that wi Iné successful in the timely development of prcticenhancements or new products that
respond to technological advances or changingtatieeds; or (iii) that we will be successful in paging the implementation and/or operati
of product enhancements or new products. Theraddiional risks related to implementation projeadsiressed below.

COMCAST AND AT&T BROADBAND BUSINESS RELATIONSHIP

We generate a significant percentage of our tetadmues under the Comcast Master Subscriber Agreekive received a ruling in our
arbitration with Comcast in October 2003. See “MD&bdmcast and AT&T Broadband Business Relationsfupa discussion of our busine
relationship with Comcast and related risk factors.



RENEWAL OF ECHOSTAR COMMUNICATIONS CONTRACT

The percentages of our total revenues generatadEahostar Communications (“Echostar”) for the thuquarter of 2003 was approximately
13%. We expect that the amount of our 2004 qugrtestenues generated from Echostar will be compatalthat of the fourth quarter of
2003.

We provide services to Echostar under a masteeaget which was scheduled to expire on Decembe2@®¥. In the first quarter of 2004,
this contract was extended through March 1, 200&. failure of Echostar to further renew its cortragpresenting a significant part of its
business with us, could have a material adversetedin our financial condition and results of ofierss.

DEPENDENCE ON U.S. VIDEO INDUSTRY — CABLE TELEVISIO N AND SATELLITE

The Broadband Division generates its revenues dyiging products and services to the U.S. and Canazhble television and satell
industries. Although our dependence on these indgdtas been lessened by earning additional reseputside the U.S. as a result of the
Kenan Business acquisition, revenues from the thBle television and satellite industries are stifpected to provide a large percentage of
our, and substantially all of the Broadband Diuig®) total revenues in the foreseeable future. érelgse in the number of customers served by
our clients, loss of business due to non-renewalieft contracts, industry and client consolidasipand/or changing consumer demand for
services could have a material adverse effect omesults of operations. There can be no assurtiiateew entrants into the video market will
become our clients. Also, there can be no assurthiateideo providers will be successful in expagdinto other segments of the converging
telecommunications industry. Even if major foray®inew markets are successful, we may be unalneé&t the special billing and customer
care needs of that market.

CONSOLIDATION OF THE GLOBAL TELECOMMUNICATIONS INDU  STRY

The global telecommunications industry is undergdaiignificant ownership changes at an accelerated.fOne facet of these changes is that
telecommunications service providers are consafigatiecreasing the potential number of buyerotorproducts and services. In addition,
consolidation in the global telecommunications tiy may put at risk our ability to leverage ouiséing relationships. Should this
consolidation result in a concentration of custoasrounts being owned by companies with whom thdaveot have a relationship, or with
whom competitors are entrenched, it could negatigéect our ability to maintain or expand our metrkhare, thereby having a material
adverse effect to our results of operations.

COMPETITION

The market for our products and services is higbiypetitive. We directly compete with both indepemidproviders of products and servii
and in-house systems developed by existing andhpiakelients. In addition, some independent previdare entering into strategic alliances
with other independent providers, resulting in @ith new competitor, or a competitor(s) with greatsources. Many of our current and
potential competitors have significantly greateaficial, marketing, technical, and other competitiesources than our company, many with
significant and well-established international @iems. There can be no assurance that we wilbleeta compete successfully with our
existing competitors or with new competitors.

ATTRACTION AND RETENTION OF PERSONNEL

Our future success depends in large part on thignced service of our key management, sales, ptatbwelopment, and operational
personnel. We are particularly dependent on oucugikee officers. We believe that our future succalss depends on our ability to attract and
retain highly skilled technical, managerial, openadl, and marketing personnel, including, in marr, additional personnel in the areas of
research and development and technical supportp€tition for qualified personnel at times can befse, particularly in the areas of rese:
and development, conversions, software implememtatiand technical support. In

4



addition, our restructuring activities adverselyamnt our workforce as a result of involuntary terations of employees and may adversely
impact our ability to retain key personnel and ugganew employees when there is a need. For thessons, we may not be successful in
attracting and retaining the personnel it requivgsch could have a material adverse effect oulitahdo meet our commitments and new
product delivery objectives. As mentioned above seek to ensure that our cost reduction initiatd@sot adversely impact our revenue
opportunities.

IMPLEMENTATION PROJECT COMPLEXITIES AND RISKS

Our GSS Division provides a variety of implemerdgatservices in conjunction with its software arramgnts. The nature of the efforts
required to complete the implementations can rdrage relatively short and noncomplex projects toagand complex projects. These
implementation projects typically range from sixwelve months in length, but can be longer or hatepending upon the specifics of the
project. The length and complexity of an individpabject is dependent upon many factors including,not limited to, the following: (i) the
level of software customization, if any, requiradhe implementation; (ii) the complexity of théedit's business, and the client’s intended use
of our products and services to address their bgsineeds; (iii) whether the project includes mldtsoftware product implementations or
services; (iv) the extent of efforts required ttegrate our products with the client’s other corepstystems and business processes; (v) the
amount and type of data that is required to be edad from the client’s old application systemhe hewly implemented system; (vi) the
geographic location of the implementation projécii) whether the arrangement includes additioreidors participating in the overall project,
including, but not limited to, prime and subcontoaaelationships with our company; and (viii) tlessponsibility we have assumed for the
overall project completion. For example, from titoetime we may assume a prime contractor (or piirtegrator) role in a project in addition
to our software implementation responsibilitiesni®r contractor roles are inherently more diffictid/or complex as we take on the additional
responsibility of managing other vendors as pathefproject.

Lengthy and/or complex projects carry a greaterekegf business risk than those projects thatlae and/or noncomplex in nature. C
inability to timely and successfully complete ajprt and meet client expectations could have aniahtverse effect on our financial
condition and results of operations by impacting:

» the amount and timing of revenue recognition. Weegelly account for our software implementationjgcts using the percente-
of-completion (“POC”) method of accounting. We agppérious judgments and estimates in following #isounting method, the
primary one being the determination of the estish&tiort required to complete a project. Significartreases between quarters in
the total estimated effort required to complete@get accounted for in this manner can resultiaduction in anticipated revenues,
and possibly, the reversal of previously recognizenue

» the overall profitability of a project. Many of oprojects are priced on a fix-fee basis or the amount of fees that can be bilied
time-and-materials basis is capped. As a resuéxpected costs and/or delays can result in thegiopeing less profitable than
originally anticipated, or even unprofitable (i.e loss contract). In addition, our products apdslly considered mission critical
customer management systems by our clients. Asudtran arrangement may include penalties anatampial damages for failure
of our company to perform under the agrupon terms of the arrangement; anc

» the timing of invoicing and/or collection of arrargent fees. Our ability to invoice and collect agament fees may be dependent
upon us meeting certain contractual milestonesjay be dependent on the overall project statustitain situations in which we act
as a subcontractor to another vendor on a prdjeca result, the status of and/or delays in a ptajan impact the timing of invoicir
and collection of our arrangement fe

VARIABILITY OF QUARTERLY RESULTS

Variability in quarterly revenues and operatingutessare inherent characteristics of the softwaue grofessional services industri
Common causes of a failure to meet revenue andtpgrexpectations in these
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industries include, among others: (i) the inabitidyclose one or more material software transastibat may have been anticipated by
management in any particular period; (i) the ifigbto timely renew one or more material softwanaintenance agreements, or renewing such
agreements at lower rates than anticipated; aidh@ inability to timely and successfully com@etn implementation project and meet client
expectations, due to factors discussed in greataildbove.

We expect software license, software maintenancéces, and professional services revenues to be@mincreasingly larger
percentage of our total revenues in the future.sS€quently, as our total revenues grow, so too tleessk associated with meeting financial
expectations for revenues derived from our softliaemnses, software maintenance services, and gwiofeal services offerings. As a result,
there is a proportionately increased likelihood tha may fail to meet revenue and earnings exgeatbf the analyst community. Should we
fail to meet analyst expectations, by even a retftismall amount, it would most likely have a digportionately negative impact upon the
market price for the our common stock.

DEPENDENCE ON PROPRIETARY TECHNOLOGY

We rely on a combination of trade secret and cgbyfiaws, nondisclosure agreements, and otheraxintl and technical measures to protect
our proprietary rights in our products. We alsodhallimited number of patents on some of our ngweducts, and do not rely upon patents
primary means of protecting our rights in our ilgefual property. There can be no assurance thaetprovisions will be adequate to protect
our proprietary rights. Although we believe that mtellectual property rights do not infringe upttre proprietary rights of third parties, there
can be no assurance that third parties will na¢rassfringement claims against our company oraignts.

Historically, the vast majority of our revenue ltasne from domestic sources, limiting the need teettp a strong international intellectual
property protection program. With the Kenan Bussn@squisition, we have clients using our produtt®any countries. As a result, we nee
continually assess whether there is any risk tamtetlectual property rights in many countriesahghout the world. Should these risks be
improperly assessed or if for any reason shouldigbt to develop, produce and distribute our paig@nywhere in the world be successfully
challenged or be significantly curtailed, it coblgive a material adverse effect on our financiatlt@n and results of operations.

INTERNATIONAL OPERATIONS

We currently conduct a significant amount of ousibess outside the U.S. We are subject to cemaieréent risks associated with operal
internationally including: (i) difficulties with mduct development meeting local requirementsfl(iftuations in foreign currency exchange
rates for which a natural or purchased hedge dotexist or is ineffective; (iii) longer collectiarycles for client billings (i.e., accounts
receivable), as well as heightened client collectiseks, especially in countries with highly inflatary economies and/or with restrictions on
the movement of cash out of the country; (iv) caampte with laws and regulations related to theeotibn, use, and disclosure of certain
personal information relating to clients’ custonse(i'e., privacy laws) that are more strict thamsthcurrently in force in the U.S.; (v) reduced
protection for intellectual property rights in soe@untries; (vi) inability to recover value addeads (“VAT”) and/or goods and services taxes
("GST") in foreign jurisdictions; and (vii) a potéal adverse impact to our overall effective incotae rate resulting from, among other things:
(a) operations in foreign countries with higher tates than the U.S.; (b) the inability to utilizertain foreign tax credits; and (c) the inabitiby
utilize some or all of losses generated in one orenfioreign countries.

SYSTEM SECURITY

The end users of our systems are continuously abad¢o our products through a variety of publid anivate telecommunications networ
We continued to expand our use of the Internet withproduct offerings thereby
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permitting, for example, our clients’ customeraige the Internet to review account balances, @aetices or execute similar account
management functions. Our communications netwomnkissgstems carry an inherent risk of failure assalt of human error, acts of nature and
intentional, unauthorized attacks from computercksas.” Opening up these networks and systemsrtoipaccess via the Internet increases
their vulnerability to unauthorized access andgation, as well as increasing the dependency o$ystems’ reliability on the availability and
performance of the Internet’s infrastructure. Gartystem security and other controls for CCS awvéewed periodically by an independent
party. We periodically undergo a security reviewoaf internal systems by independent parties, awve implemented a plan intended to
mitigate the risk of an unauthorized access tomttevorks and systems, including network firewafigusion detection systems and antivirus
applications.

The method, manner, cause and timing of an exteimdegtuption or outage in our networks or systemesimpossible to predict. As a result,
there can be no assurances that our networks atehsy will not fail, or that our business contiguystans will adequately mitigate any
damages incurred as a consequence. In additionldsbar networks or systems be significantly conmpiszd, it would most likely have a
material adverse effect on our financial condition results of operations, including our abilitymeet product delivery obligations or client
expectations. Likewise, should our networks oresyst experience an extended interruption or outaes their security compromised or data
lost or corrupted, it would most likely result in Bnmediate loss of revenue or increase in experseell as damaging the reputation of our
company. Any of these events could have both aneidiate, negative impact upon our short-term revemakeprofit expectations, as well as
our long-term ability to attract and retain nevealis.

PRODUCT OPERATIONS AND SYSTEM AVAILABILITY
Our product operations are run in both mainfranedistributed system computing environments, devi:
Mainframe Environment

CCS operates in a mainframe data processing cereaged by First Data Corporati¢‘ FDC"), with end users dispersed throughout the |
and Canada. These services are provided underaeanagnt with FDC, which runs through June 2008ggetiated in the third quarter of
2003). We believe we could obtain mainframe date@ssing services from alternative sources, if s&ag. We have a business continuity
plan as part of our agreement with FDC should D€ Elata center (the “FDC Data Center”) suffer areeded business interruption or outage.
This plan is tested on an annual basis.

Distributed Systems Environment

Several of the Broadband Divis’'s product applications operate in a distributedesys environment (also known “open systen”), running

on multiple servers for the benefit of certain otee We operate these distributed systems seméng iFDC Data Center. Under an agreement
with FDC that runs through June 2008 (renegotiaidtie third quarter of 2003), FDC provides theragiens monitoring and facilities
management services, while we provide hardwareatipg systems and application support. Typicaltese distributed product applications
interface to and operate in conjunction with CC&telecommunication networks. We substantially enmpénted our business continuity plan
for these applications, and test certain aspedisi®plan on a periodic basis. Security attackslistributed systems throughout the industry are
more prevalent than on mainframe environments duleet open nature of those systems.

The end users of our systems are continuously abadeo our CCS product through a variety of pubtid private telecommunications
networks, and are highly dependent upon the coatiravailability of our systems to conduct theiribass operations. Should the FDC Data
Center, or any particular product application d¢einal system which is operated within the FDC Dzgater or our facilities, as well as the
connecting telecommunications networks, experi@mcextended business interruption or outage, iiddoave an immediate impact to the
business operations of our clients, which couldehawnaterial adverse effect on our financial cooiand results of operations, as well as
negatively affect our ability to attract and retagw clients.



